
May 19, 2015

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor   

Council Members Adams, Edinger, Evans, Gookin, McEvers, Miller



PRESENTATIONS 



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Library  Services
Presented by:
Anna Wilson, Director of Title Services
Bette Ammon, Director of CdA Public Library
Tom Mollgaard, LCHS Assistant Principal



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Developing New Partnerships

• Coeur d’Alene School District 271
• Coeur d’Alene Public Library
• Coeur d’Alene Library Foundation
• Kroc Center



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

What?

• Opportunity for sharing space
• Public library branch in a school library
• Providing more materials
• Sharing resources
• Kids reading



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Background

• Library Board’s long-range plan 
– A public library in an area of the 

community not currently served
• Bette’s work in Montana
• Community feedback / input



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Public Library Process

We are here



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Our Research

• Library and district personnel
• Existing sites in Montana 
• Idaho Code, School District Board Policy
• Legal counsel review of draft agreement



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Where?

• Growing area of the city (northwest)
• Easy public access to library
• Lake City High School



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Positives for LCHS

• Promotes students’ use of public library
cards

• Opens students’ resources for projects /
research; inner-library lending system

• Provides students extended use of the
LCHS library

• More materials available to students



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Positives for the Public Library

• More library materials accessible to
more tax payers

• Utilize existing trails so children easily
get to the library in summertime

• Sharing existing resources



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

Timeline

• Up to policy makers
– School District Board Members
– City Council
– Library Board Members

• Suggestion –begin after October 1
• Goal – up and running by the end of

2015



Coeur d’Alene School District Division of Teaching & Learning www.cdaschools.org

What questions do you have?



CONSENT CALENDAR 



A JOINT MEETING OF THE 
COEUR D’ALENE CITY COUNCIL 

AND THE KOOTENAI COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
MAY 4, 2015 

 
The Coeur d’Alene met in a continued session with the Kootenai County Commissioners at the Kootenai 
County Commissioners office located at 451 Government Way, Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814 May 4, 2014 at 
4:00 p.m., there being present upon roll call a quorum. 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
Woody McEvers )    Members of City Council Present 
Steve Adams  ) 
Ron Edinger  ) 
Kiki Miller  ) 
Dan Gookin  ) 
Amy Evans  )    Member of Council Absent 
 
  
 
David Stewart, Chairman) Members of the Kootenai County Commissioners Present 
Dan Green    ) 
Marc Eberlein    )   
   
CITY STAFF PRESENT:  Jim Hammond, City Administrator; Renata McLeod, City Clerk; Steve 
Anthony, Recreation Director; Mike Gridley, City Attorney, Steve Anthony, Parks and Recreation 
Director, Jim Markley, Water Superintendent; Troy Tymesen, Finance Director; Hilary Anderson, 
Community Planning Director; and Keith Erickson, Communication Coordinator. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Widmyer called the meeting to order.   Commissioner Green opened the 
meeting on behalf of the Kootenai County Board of Commissioners. 
   
SAUSA PROGRAM (SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO U.S. ATTORNEY) – Commissioner Green stated 
that the SAUSA program has been in use in Treasure Valley for some time.  He explained that this 
program is in conjunction with the U.S. Attorney’s Office and the State of Idaho, specifically for the 
ability to prosecute felony crimes under Federal Court rather than state court.  This allows for stiffer 
penalties and longer sentencing for extreme crimes.  The program cross-deputizes a County Prosecutor as 
U.S. Attorney, who can then use the federal system.  In Canyon County they used the program to pursue 
gang issues.  Additionally, this allows for criminals to be sentenced to federal penitentiaries outside of the 
State of Idaho, thus alleviating housing costs to the State of Idaho.  In past discussions they talked about a 
regional prosecutor for North Idaho; however, this region would consist of the 10 northern counties that 
have various legal issues.  Commissioner Green stated that Prosecutor McHugh felt there would be a need 
in Kootenai County for crimes related to drug trafficking and child pornography.  He stated that the State 
of Idaho has set aside $35,000 for this position, which would cover a portion of the employee costs.  The 
total employee cost for a County Prosecutor would be $85,000; with the infrastructure and housing of the 
employee paid through the federal government.  The proposals to the area cities would be to fund a 
portion of the position on a per capita basis.  In this proposal the City of Coeur d’Alene portion would be 
$16,072 annually.  Commissioner Green stated that he believes this program would be another tool in the 
prosecutor’s arsenal for extreme crimes.  He further explained that the benefit to the City of Coeur 
d’Alene would be cost avoidance to the citizens and the state for the prosecution and housing of criminals 
within the County jail and State prisons.  Commissioner Eberlein explained that he is not in support of 

CC Min. May 4, 2015                                             Page 1 
 



this program as he believes in the separation of powers and that this might have the potential for abuse of 
power.  He stated that several North Idaho Commissioners are not in support and is concerned about the 
actual costs.  Commissioner Eberlein explained that he does not believe that Federal prosecution deters 
transient drug traffic and that he is concerned with the legal marijuana in Washington being brought into 
Idaho in small amounts and citizens being federal prosecuted.   

Councilmember Adams questioned if the County could fully fund the program without involving the 
cities.  Commissioner Green confirmed that the County could approve the program; however, it is a 
funding issue and involving the cities is a funding mechanism.  There would be no requirement for a City 
to participate.  Councilman Adams stated that there is public interest in this issue and asked if the County 
would be willing to have public forums to discuss it further.  Chairman Stewart confirmed they would be 
open to public input and said he is concerned about government overreach.  Councilmember Edinger 
asked for clarification regarding the costs and the division annually.   Commissioner Green reiterated that 
the employee cost would be $85,000 and the state would cover $35,000, with the remaining $50,000 left 
to be divided by the cities on a per capita basis.  Currently he would be looking at the cities of Coeur 
d’Alene and Post Falls, and potentially Hayden and Rathdrum.   Chairman Stewart expressed concern as 
to whether or not there was a large enough need for a program with stiffer punishments.  Commissioner 
Green stated that the Sheriff and the prosecutors had brought this forward with statistics to back it up.  
Commissioner Green explained that there is currently a state-funded investigator that just handles child 
pornography.   Councilmember McEvers reiterated that this program would push criminals to federal 
court and it would save costs locally and state-wide through the use of federal court and federal 
penitentiaries.   Chairman Stewart expressed concern that someone would be looking for folks to take to 
federal prosecution that should be handled at a state level.  Commissioner Green clarified that if there 
wasn’t a demand for this level of prosecution he wouldn’t support it and that the sentencing guidelines in 
federal court are much more defined with longer sentences.   

FOUR CORNERS UPDATE AND SHARED PARKING SOLUTIONS – Parks and Recreation 
Director Steve Anthony explained that the City has the opportunity to acquire 28 acres from the Bureau of 
Land Management.  He explained the four corners as the area consisting of the City Park, Memorial Field, 
and then through the BLM property (along the railroad tracks) to the West.  Mr. Anthony explained that 
the land planning consultants looked at the county campus as well, and that he wanted to clarify that the 
City is not planning that property but the consultant wanted to include it in the study.  He reviewed 
several aspects of the study including the potential of a connector from the County campus to the Mullan 
side of the street to the Park and Fort Grounds area, a planned location for the carousal in a seasonal space 
within the park, as well as room for the HREI building.  Additionally, the plan recommends the 
narrowing of Mullan Avenue to less than the current five lanes to make it more pedestrian friendly.   He 
expressed an opportunity for RV/trailer parking across from the county campus.  There are some planned 
additions for ADA accessibility at Independence Point and the City Beach area.  He reiterated that there 
are three options set out for Independence Point.  Mayor Widmyer explained that the master plan study 
was done as a requirement for the BLM land acquisition.  While the Independence Point area is out of the 
BLM property area, the BLM wanted to see plans for adjacent areas.   

RIPARIAN BUFFER ZONE FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT – Wastewater Superintendent Sid 
Fredrickson explained that the city began limiting nutrients in 1991, when limits were much more 
manageable.  Mr. Fredrickson explained that the new requirements are the most stringent in the country.  
He stated that the removal of riparian buffers could affect the nutrient loads.  The City is currently able to 
manage wastewater at 30 parts per billion and could not go much lower.  Councilmember Gookin asked 
for clarification regarding how riparian buffers and how close you build affect the nutrient levels.  Mr. 
Fredrickson explained that there needs to be a balance of fairness based on the soils and what is going to 
be developed and that fertilizer used close to the water is not a good thing.  Commissioner Green stated 
that their goal is to enhance water quality.  Mr. Fredrickson explained that increased phosphorous levels 

CC Min. May 4, 2015 Page 2 



cannot be explained by one specific thing.  Chairman Stewart questioned how grass to the water’s edge is 
not good for the lake, but there are swales throughout the county that drain into the aquifer which are 
being fertilized and maintained, and he wondered why they are less impacting than draining into the lake.  
Mr. Fredrickson explained that a properly constructed swale would retain the first half-inch of stormwater 
collected under the concept that the grass will hold those nutrients.  Nitrates are the biggest concern for 
the aquifer. Commissioner Stewart stated that his family owned and developed Arrow Point and that the 
only reason the lagoon is swimmable is that they worked with the government to place a filtration system 
to purify the lagoon, which would not be allowed under current regulations.  He expressed concern 
regarding lakefront property owners that want to stop the erosion to their property but can’t under current 
regulations.  Chairman Stewart stated that he thinks a common sense and best management practices 
should be the method of regulation.   Mr. Fredrickson explained that the Clean Water Act does not allow 
regulations of agricultural runoff but that occurs annually at Latah Creek and there are different designs 
that will help limit nutrient run off.  He expressed a desire for the county to look at best practices and 
options that best fit the situation and to be concerned with nutrients into the lake.  Chairman Stewart 
explained that the 25’ buffer zone has been in effect for over 20 years and it is not working.  Mr. 
Fredrickson reiterated that different soils are going to retain nutrients differently compared to other soils 
and hoped they keep that in mind.     
   
UPDATE ON SHORELINE REGULATIONS & NEW PROPOSALS – Commissioner Eberlein 
explained that his contacts at the Basin Commission state that 4% of the contaminates come from around 
the lake and the rest comes in from other rivers and water flow into the lake.  Floods bring in another 
source of contamination.  He expressed concern that the county’s 25’ setback is not working and that it is 
a one-size-fits-all solution that does not work with all the different types of bodies of water.  Additionally, 
he noted that phosphorous is a naturally occurring substance.  With the current regulations a land owner 
cannot install riprap or anything to protect the shoreline.  He has been talking with Kootenai 
Environmental Alliance and they agree that different solutions might work for different properties.   He 
would like to see allowances for patios and walkways rather than random weed patches.   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked how the County was enforcing the set back rule.  Commissioner Eberlein 
stated they are having problems with enforcement; however D.E.Q, the Army Corp, and the property 
owners would be involved.  He expressed interest in protecting local lakes.   Commissioner Green 
reiterated that enforcement is difficult and felt there will always be a setback to the water, but they could 
look at what is allowed within that zone.  Chairman Stewart stated that one can witness the water front 
properties from the lake and see that the 25’ buffer zones are not being maintained.  He questioned why 
the County has to be more regulatory than the Federal government.   
 
CITYLINK – Mayor Widmyer asked about the county study for charging a fare for Citilink.   
Commissioner Eberlein stated that he thinks staff is looking at grants.   Commissioner Green stated that 
the Commissioners have not weighed in on the issue yet.  Mayor Widmyer encouraged the 
Commissioners to look at charging a fare and having a pass system as he believes it would help with 
some of the current issues.  Chairman Stewart clarified that the City would encourage charging a fare.  
Mayor Widmyer confirmed that there are some folks that just ride around all day and he would not 
encourage a cash system but, rather, a pass system that would require identification as encouraged by our 
Police Chief.   Additionally, Mayor Widmyer asked that the County look at the bus stop locations that are 
concerning to the City; specifically, those in front of the liquor store that are a significant problem to the 
area businesses.  Commissioner Green stated that there was a public hearing and there was a lot of 
discussion regarding the route reduction.  
 
COMMISSIONER MEETINGS ON CDA TV – Councilmember McEvers invited the Commissioners 
to utilize the CDATV public education and government channel.  He explained that several local 
governments and education groups use CDATV to get their meetings aired to the county-wide community 

CC Min. May 4, 2015                                             Page 3 
 



through Time Warner Cable.  There is an opportunity for Thursday morning public service 
announcements, which would be rebroadcast throughout the next week.  He encouraged the 
Commissioner’s to air meetings and use the channel as a tool for open communication to the community.  
Commissioner Green stated that they have discussed it during the budget cycle and are considering a 
Public Relations Officer to help to communicate to the community and that would enhance their outreach.   
 
The Mayor stated that it is good to work together and create some efficiency for our tax-payers and that 
he looks forward to continued communication.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Edinger, that there being no other business this 
meeting be adjourned.    Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:23 p.m. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod,  
City Clerk  

CC Min. May 4, 2015                                             Page 4 
 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 

May 5, 2015 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room May 5, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., there being present 
upon roll call the following members: 

Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

Loren Ron Edinger ) Members of Council Present 
Dan Gookin   )  
Kiki Miller       )   
Steve Adams  ) 
Woody McEvers ) 
Amy Evans  )  

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Widmyer. 

INVOCATION:  An invocation was provided by Dave Hoit from Prairie Avenue Christian 
Center. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The pledge of allegiance was led by Councilmember Adams. 

Mayor Widmyer mentioned the shooting of Sergeant Greg Moore, who served this community 
for 16 years, and stated that his thoughts and prayers were with his friends and family.  In light 
of the tragic event the City Council will be amending the agenda to expedite the meeting.    

AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA:  Motion by: Gookin, seconded by Edinger to amend the 
agenda to include only Consent Calendar, Announcements, Public Hearing, and Executive 
Session.  All other items will be continued to the next Council meeting.  Motion Carried.    

CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin to approve the consent 
calendar.  

1. Approval of Council Minutes for April 21, 2015.
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted.
3. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for May 11, 2015 at

12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively.
4. RESOLUTION NO. 15-018:  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE,

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED
CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE
INCLUDING APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WAIVING OPPOSITION TO
ANNEXATION WITH PAUL AND JULIE STANCZYK FOR 1067 S. MILLVIEW
LANE – SKY BLUE ACRES; APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH KNIFE RIVER



CORPORATION FOR THE 2015 OVERLAY PROJECT; DECLARATION OF 
SURPLUS 1995 CROWN VICTORIA, 2000 CHEVROLET IMPALA, AND 1986 
ASTRO VAN; APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH T. LARIVIERE EQUIPMENT 
AND EXCAVATION, INC. FOR THE 2015 OPEN TRENCH PROJECT; APPROVING 
A SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AGREEMENT WITH COEUR D'ALENE 
SCHOOL DISTRICT #271 FOR THE 2015-2016 SCHOOL YEAR; AND APPROVING 
A SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AGREEMENT WITH NORTH IDAHO 
COLLEGE FOR THE 2015-2016 SCHOOL YEAR. 

ROLL CALL:  Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye. 
Motion Carried. 

APPOINTMENTS:  Mayor Widmyer asked for confirmation of the appointments of Lynn 
Fleming and Lewis Rumpler to the Planning Commission.   

MOTION:    Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin to approve the appointments of Lynn 
Fleming and Lewis Rumpler to the Planning Commission.  Motion Carried.  

PUBLIC HEARING:  ZC-1-15 – PROPOSED ZONE CHANGE FROM R-12 TO C-17 BY 
MILLER DEVELOPMENT; 3113 N. GOVERNMENT WAY 

STAFF REPORT:   Planner Lori Burchett reviewed the zone change location, located at 3113 
Government Way with access from 2nd Avenue.  The Planning Commission has heard this item 
and recommended approval.  She outlined the findings that will need to be included tonight as 
follows:  that the proposal is or is not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; that the 
location, design, and size of the proposal are such that the development will or will not be 
adequately served by existing streets, public facilities and services; that the physical 
characteristics of the site make or do not make it suitable for the request at this time; and that the 
proposal would or would not adversely affect the surrounding neighborhood with regard to 
traffic, neighborhood character, and/or existing land uses.   

Ms. Burchett explained that there have been several other zone change requests within the area 
from R-12 to C-17 that have previously been approved.  Utilities are available within the area but 
may need to be increased and/or extended.   A stormwater management plan would be required 
for development of the property and the trip generation would be sporadic and not concentrated.  
There are no recommended conditions with the request.   

DISCUSSION:  Councilmember McEvers stated that the Planning Commission Minutes stated 
that the Fire Department wanted two access points off of Second Street and wondered if that was 
problematic for the development.  Ms. Burchett stated that the applicant was interested in 
extending 2nd Street and the Fire Department is agreeable to the future access capability to the 
site.   Councilmember Gookin expressed concern with the references to the storage unit 
development throughout the staff report rather than sticking to the zoning issues.  He wanted to 
see more information regarding the effect of the zone change into the future specific to the higher 
intensity uses within a C-17 zone; therefore, he believes the staff report is inadequate.  Ms. 
Burchett stated that the Water and Wastewater Departments have services available within 200 

2  Council Minutes May 5, 2015                Page               



feet of the property and that the departments are more concerned with specific development 
requirements at the building permit stage.  Councilmember Gookin expressed concern regarding 
higher impact uses.  Councilmember Evans referenced the fact that page 9 of the staff report 
clarifies what is allowable in the zone.  Councilmember Gookin reiterated that he does not feel 
that the staff report addressed other uses and does not want a problem down the road regarding a 
future hotel or high density use.  Ms. Burchett clarified that during the comment review process 
with staff they also reviewed a project review specific to the storage unit development, which 
may have caused the overlap in the staff report.   However, with the staff review of traffic, water, 
and wastewater it was felt that the C-17 zone could be adequately served.  City Administrator 
Jim Hammond stated that he understands the concerns from Councilmember Gookin and will 
make sure that the future reports will clearly state that a specific zone can be adequately served 
to the highest use.  

MOTION:   Motion by Gookin to send the item back to staff to revise the staff report with 
additional information and bring it back to Council thereafter.  Motion failed for a lack of a 
second.   

DISCUSSION:  Mayor Widmyer asked if the item would have to go back to the Planning 
Commission.   Mr. Gridley stated that it would not have to go back to the Planning Commission.  
Councilmember Adams asked if the Planning Commission reviewed the same issues as brought 
forward by Councilmember Gookin.  Ms. Burchett clarified that the Planning Commission 
reviewed the item under the same staff report and that since that meeting she has followed up 
with the Wastewater Department and has clarified where the manholes are located.   
Councilmember Gookin reiterated that he wants to make sure that the information is not project 
specific but specific to the zoning requested.   Councilmember Edinger asked if this was urgent 
to hear tonight.  Mr. Hammond clarified that this has been advertised for tonight and is a public 
hearing that would need to be re-advertised if not heard tonight.   Councilmember McEvers 
asked to review the existing land use map with the previous zone change approvals.  He stated 
that he believes that the development is what will move the opening of 2nd Street and he thinks 
that the zoning fits.   

APPLICANT:  Chad Oakland stated that he is the owner of Miller Development Group, the 
applicant.  He clarified that he does plan to build storage units and it is his understanding that the 
utilities can handle the C-17 zone uses.  Councilmember Gookin stated that he does think the 
project fits in the area and clarified that his concern is for future changes to the land.  He believes 
that Council should be considering the entire impact of a C-17 zone at the time the zone is 
changed.  Mr. Oakland stated that Mr. Becker from the Wastewater Department is present if the 
Council has questions pertaining to Wastewater.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being 
received.   

APPLICANT REBUTTAL:  Mr. Oakland stated that Mr. Kulhanek, who is noted in favor of 
the zone change, lives adjacent to the proposed property.   

3  Council Minutes May 5, 2015 Page           



MOTION:   Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger to approve the proposed Zone Change 
from R-12 to C-17 by Miller Development, 3113 N. Government Way, and direct staff to prepare 
the Findings and Order.   

ROLL CALL:   Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye.  
Motion carried. 

MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Adams to enter into Executive Session as provided 
by Idaho Code 67-2345§ (c) to conduct deliberations concerning labor negotiations or to acquire 
an interest in real property which is not owned by a public agency.   

ROLL CALL:  Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Edinger Aye. 
Motion Carried. 

The City Council entered into Executive Session at 6:38 p.m.  Those present were the Mayor, 
City Council, City Administrator, Finance Director, City Engineer, and City Attorney. Council 
returned to regular session at 6:55 p.m. 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-022 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING CONDEMNATION PROCEEDINGS.  

MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers to approve Resolution No. 15-022, 
authorizing condemnation proceedings.   

ROLL CALL:  Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye. 
Motion carried. 

RECESS:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers to recess to Tuesday, May 12, 2015, at 
4:00 p.m. in the Old Council Chambers, City Hall, for a Council Strategic Planning Workshop.  
Motion Carried. 

The meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

_____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  

4  Council Minutes May 5, 2015                Page               



A CONTINUED MEETING OF THE 
COEUR D’ALENE CITY COUNCIL 

MAY 12, 2015 
 

The Coeur d’Alene City Council met in a continued session in the Old Council Chambers 
located within City Hall at 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814 May 12, 2015 at 
4:00 p.m., there being present upon roll call a quorum. 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
Woody McEvers )    Members of City Council Present 
Steve Adams  ) 
Ron Edinger  ) 
Kiki Miller  )           Arrived at 4:25 p.m. 
Dan Gookin  ) 
Amy Evans  )     
 
  
CITY STAFF PRESENT:  Jim Hammond, City Administrator; Renata McLeod, City Clerk; 
Steve Anthony, Parks and Recreation Director; Mike Gridley, City Attorney; Jim Markley, 
Water Superintendent; Troy Tymesen, Finance Director; Tim Martin, Street Superintendent; 
Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief; Ed Wagner, Building Services Director; Gordon Dobler, City 
Engineer; Lee White, Police Chief; Hilary Anderson, Community Planning Director; Sid 
Fredrickson, Wastewater Superintendent; Bette Ammon, Library Director; Melissa Tosi, Human 
Resource Director; and Keith Erickson, Communication Coordinator. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Widmyer called the meeting to order and thanked the Department 
Heads for the ideas they submitted.  He stated that this year is probably going to be a heavy 
emphasis on public safety.   Mr. Tymesen stated that the goal for the meeting is to do some 
visioning and to hear from the City Council what they would want staff priorities to be for next 
fiscal year.   
 
VISION 2030 UPDATE – Community Planning Director Hilary Anderson presented 
information regarding the current status of Vision 2030 goals.  With the Vision 2030 goals, there 
are 84 items noted that would be led by the City.  Staff has begun working on 25 items with 29 
more to start between 2015-2017.  There are 30 more that will begin after 2017.  Ms. Anderson 
provided the Council with a progress report outlining 29 in progress goals.  Some goals 
specifically set to begin within Fiscal Year 2015-2016 include completion of the acquisition of 
BNSF right-of-way; parking expansion and maintenance; East Sherman Avenue Master Plan; 
satellite public library branch; and public safety efforts.  She noted that staff will continue to 
work toward future goals and that many of the proposed goals align with the Vision 2030 plan.   
 
DISCUSSION:    Councilmember McEvers stated that many of the Vision 2030 projects have 
been on-going for a long time and they are now moving forward.  The City Council affirmed that 
they would like staff to continue working toward Vision 2030 goals. 
 

Cont. Council Meeting Minutes from May 12, 2015                                             Page 1 
 



LET’S MOVE UPDATE – Parks and Recreation Director Steve Anthony stated that the Let’s 
Move initiative is a joint project with the Panhandle Health District.   He stated that they are 
currently working with their third director from Panhandle Health District, so they are a little 
stalled in progress as they bring her up to speed.  The City has received bronze and silver status 
in their assigned areas.  Staff has completed the mapping of play spaces and the safe walking 
routes to schools.  Mr. Anthony explained that they are working on the community profile status.  
The City received the gold metal status for daycares which he credited to the hard work of 
Deputy City Clerk Kathy Lewis.  He clarified that the current partners for “Let’s Move” are 
School District #271, Panhandle Health, and the City, which is less than the initial large support 
group.   

DISCUSSION:  Mayor Widmyer expressed concern regarding the low amount of meeting 
attendance and how much staff time the project absorbs.  He recalled that the program was 
supposed to need city support but not a lot of staff resources.  Mr. Anthony stated that this is not 
a number one priority for his staff and that they work on it as they have time.  Councilmember 
Gookin stated that he was concerned with the rules imposed on the vendors in their lease 
agreements.  Councilmember McEvers stated that he did not want the program to be a burden on 
staff.  Councilmember Adams stated that he would like this item to come back to the Council 
with a status update.  The Council affirmed that they would like to have staff reevaluate the 
program.   

REVIEW OF STRATEGIC GOALS FY 14-15 - Communications Coordinator Keith Erickson 
stated that he reviewed the fiscal year 2014/2015 goals with input from the Department Heads.  
He found that there were no goals left un-addressed, as they were either completed or in-
progress.   

DISCUSSION:  Mayor Widmyer asked Mr. Dobler for an update on the levee recertification 
and an expected completion date.  Mr. Dobler explained that the work tasks for this year are 
complete and that the application is under FEMA review.   He clarified that there are some 
structural items that need to be completed including the closure near the old mill yard and 
reconstruction south of the museum and a replacement of the wall along Northwest Boulevard.   
Mr. Dobler believes the work will be done next summer.  Then, FEMA will issue a preliminary 
approval, any additional work can be completed, and then the City can submit for final approval 
in the fall of 2016.    

Councilmember McEvers asked Mr. Dobler for an update on the 15th Street overlay.  Mr. Dobler 
explained that the Capital Improvement Plan has set it forward for 2017.  Additionally, there are 
some funding issues with Government Way so it will depend if overlay funds will have to be 
used to cover the gap.  Councilmember McEvers asked if 15th Street was a priority due to traffic 
volume or some other pressure point.  Mr. Dobler felt it was a Council priority in the past.  
Additionally, it is the last collector that needs to be redone and it will take a large amount of 
money.    

Fire Chief Gabriel stated that May 19, 2015 will be the GO Bond election date.  

Cont. Council Meeting Minutes from May 12, 2015    Page 2 



Strategic Planning Discussion for FY 15-16 - Mayor Widmyer asked Police Chief White to 
review the Police Department needs for the next fiscal year.  Chief White stated that he would 
like to request staffing for six patrol officers, additional code enforcement, animal control, and 
report writers.  These positions are based on a crime rate analysis done earlier this year that 
exposed a need for 19 officers.  In order to begin to fill this gap he would utilize some part-time 
positions that would aid in the work load and stretch the need to higher officers over several 
fiscal years.  Chief White stated that they currently have two positions dedicated to crime 
analysis, which is a big part of targeting crime hot spots for patrol to focus on.  Currently patrol 
resources often go from call-to-call with no time for community education.    

DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin asked for a status update regarding electronic bill 
notification.  Mr. Tymesen explained that the recent upgrade to the Springbrook software allows 
for that function.  Councilmember Gookin expressed concern regarding continued references to a 
potential local option tax and wants to look at other options.  He felt such tool would include a 
resort city tax; going to voters to increase sales tax for a specific project; and/or a recreational 
district tax.  Councilmember McEvers clarified that any of those options would not provide 
funding for Police Officers as those options are project specific and he does not know of any 
tools that would allow for funding Police Officers.  Mayor Widmyer asked for a review of how 
the state divides sales tax.   Mr. Tymesen explained that it is a formula based on a city’s 
valuation of property and its population.   

Mr. Tymesen reviewed the Council submitted goals which were categorized as major goals, new 
ideas, continuous improvements, public safety, planning, communication, and urban renewal.  
Chief Gabriel stated that Fire Station 4 is one part of public safety and that the bond will be used 
for the fire engine for Station No. 4, but not the staffing.  The City has the land and Impact Fee 
funding for construction, but personnel costs are going to be needed to staff the station.  He felt 
that savings from the FRF would be a funding option for personnel.  The City Council affirmed 
that public safety is the highest strategic goal for 2015/2016.   

Mr. Tymesen reviewed the planning related goals.  Ms. Anderson mentioned that there are two 
town hall meetings scheduled regarding East Sherman Avenue and she has drafted a scope of 
work for a consultant for master planning of the East Sherman area.  The Planning Department 
will also look at possible code changes to promote businesses within that area, as well as 
possible incentives to rehabilitate older buildings.   Ms. Anderson confirmed that stakeholders 
that own property in the East Sherman area will be involved.   She noted that East Sherman 
master planning was included in the Vision 2030 plan as a community interest goal.     

Mayor Widmyer stated that the City of Boise has combined art and history into one committee, 
and he would like the Arts Commission to look at adding a historical subcommittee.  
Additionally, he noted several historical pieces in the City Park that he would like to see 
rehabilitated.   

Mr. Tymesen reviewed the communication category goals.  Councilmember McEvers stated that 
it was the City’s intent to have CDATV be a community channel and foster partnerships with 
School District #271 and North Idaho College.  He noted that the School District only holds one 
meeting a month and the investment in a studio is expensive.  A long-term vision discussed at the 

Cont. Council Meeting Minutes from May 12, 2015    Page 3 



committee level is for the City of Coeur d’Alene act as the community studio and the partners to 
share in the cost.  Additionally, streaming across the web may be the way of the future.  
Communication Coordinator Keith Erickson stated that social media provides a large pool for 
outreach. Councilmember Miller stated that it is important to track who is being reached with 
city-wide communication efforts.  She believes that the City Poll reaches other than the normal 
bloggers; however she would like to track who are the audiences.   Councilmember Miller 
expressed a desire to not duplicate efforts that other organizations should be doing and that the 
City should look toward partnership for communication.      

Mr. Tymesen reviewed the category of Urban Renewal which included a review of LCDC and an 
option to extend the River District.   Mayor Widmyer explained that a review of LCDC would 
include planning for the closure of the Lake District in 2021, as discussion regarding ramp down, 
outstanding obligations, etc. should take place soon.  He also explained that a review of River 
District should occur with closure scheduled for 2026.  There is an option to close the River 
District early, so more discussions should take place.  Councilmember Adams stated that one 
cost savings measure would be for the Council to take over LCDC and eliminate a paid position.  
Councilmember Gookin stated that he does not want to sit on the urban renewal board rather his 
goal is to wind down the district and repurpose it.  He believes that if urban renewal is used 
successfully it should have a solid plan that includes achievement measurements.     

Mr. Tymesen noted goals under the “New Ideas” category to include a downtown performing 
arts center and a community enhancement account.  Councilmember Gookin stated that in other 
cities the downtown includes a theater that encourages people to attend the businesses near the 
theater.  He felt it could be accomplished through an auditorium district and be owned by the 
City, but run independently.  He noted that this would be a cultural capital enhancement to the 
downtown.  Mayor Widmyer confirmed that performing arts have an economic boost to a 
community and businesses surrounding it.  Councilmember McEvers stated that a community 
enhancement account would be used for those unknown opportunities that arise during a fiscal 
year and could be carried over year-to-year if not spent.  Councilmember Gookin felt that all 
items should be noted in the budget.  Councilmember McEvers explained that things change 
throughout the year and one cannot know everything at the time the budget is set.     

Mr. Tymesen noted that Continued Improvement goals included items such as keeping property 
tax increase to a minimum, revamping the parking situation, and continued improvements to 
efficiencies and consistencies throughout the organization.  Councilmember Edinger asked for 
more information regarding revamping parking.  Mayor Widmyer stated that he reviewed the 
2007 Parking Study and found there were parts of the study that were not implemented; 
therefore, he believes it should be revisited.   

The Mayor reiterated that this is the year to prioritize public safety.  Councilmember McEvers 
stated that this may be the year to look at taking a 3% increase to specifically fund public safety.  
Mr. Tymesen clarified that the City does not have the new growth number so it is not time to 
dive into budget numbers yet.   

Cont. Council Meeting Minutes from May 12, 2015    Page 4 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-019 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CHERYL METCALF FOR 
CREATION AND INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC ART – CHIEF MORRIS ANTELOPE. 

STAFF REPORT:  Parks & Recreation Director Steve Anthony presented the request to 
approve the Contract with Cheryl Metcalf for creation and installation of public art.  Additionally 
he is requesting approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with North Idaho College (NIC) 
for the location of the art on NIC property.  The Arts Commission selected the piece entitled 
“Chief Morris Antelope” for the location at the trail head at NIC along the east bank of the 
Spokane River.  The contract with Ms. Metcalf is in the amount of $45,000 and could be 
installed by October 2015.   

MOTION:  Motion Gookin, seconded by Edinger to approve Resolution No. 15-019, approving 
an Agreement with Cheryl Metcalf for Public Art, “Chief Morris Antelope”  

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Evans mentioned that 300 citizens voted on the art piece 
selection and data collected demonstrates this piece was the choice of the community.  
Councilmember Gookin stated that this is a local artist and demonstrates our regional history.  
Mr. Anthony stated that the Coeur d’Alene Tribe is very excited about this piece.   

ROLL CALL:  Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye. 
Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-020 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH NORTH IDAHO 
COLLEGE FOR THE PLACEMENT OF PUBLIC ART.       

MOTION:  Motion by Edinger, seconded by Gookin to approve Resolution No. 15-020, 
approving a Memorandum of Understanding with North Idaho College for Placement of Public 
Art.   

ROLL CALL:  Evans Aye; Adams Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye. 
Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-021 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING A LETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH DEW DROP SPRINKLERS AND 
LANDSCAPING FOR INSTALLATION OF IRRIGATION ON THE WATER SIDE OF 
ROSENBERRY DRIVE. 

Cont. Council Meeting Minutes from May 12, 2015    Page 5 



STAFF REPORT:  City Engineer Gordon Dobler stated the installation of irrigation and 
landscaping completes the last task for the levee project this year.  The irrigation is instrumental 
in establishing ground cover outside the levee and is required for the certification.  He explained 
that NIC’s irrigation system does not meet the needs of this area.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Evans, seconded by Adams to approve Resolution No. 15-021, 
approving a contract with Dew Drop Irrigation for Levee Irrigation.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Edinger asked if the City is funding the entire contract amount.  
Mr. Dobler said that NIC has provided $100,000 this year to cover costs throughout the year, so 
one could argue that some of those funds could have deferred costs.  He explained that the City 
has covered over $350,000 in costs this year.  Councilmember Edinger stated that NIC should 
split everything.   Mr. Dobler thought that was the original agreement with NIC’s Board; 
however, early this spring the board stated that they were not aware of a 50/50 funding 
arrangement.  Mr. Dobler explained that while the discussions were ongoing regarding 
maintenance, NIC owns the ground and so they should be agreeable to maintain it.  Additionally, 
NIC will get benefit from the upgraded irrigation system and have agreed to pay for the water.  
Councilmember Edinger clarified that the City needs to get a formal maintenance agreement 
with NIC.  Mr. Dobler stated that he is working on an agreement now and hopes to have it to 
City Council within three months.  Councilmember McEvers asked if there were plans to 
resurface the dike road and stated that he does not want the City to have to cover the entire 
irrigation system costs.  Mr. Dobler explained that there are no current plans to overlay the road, 
but he could look at a chip seal which would cost approximately $100,000.      
 
ROLL CALL:  Adams Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers, that there being no other 
business this meeting be adjourned.    Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod,  
City Clerk  
 

Cont. Council Meeting Minutes from May 12, 2015                                             Page 6 
 



CITY COUNCIL  
M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: MAY 19, 2015 

FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, CITY CLERK 

RE: REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

I am requesting the City Council set a public hearing for the Council meeting scheduled June 2, 2015, 
to hear public testimony regarding the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER) for CDBG Plan Year 2014.    

request for ph 051915 CAPER.doc Page 1 of 1 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT  

DATE:  May 11, 2015 

FROM: Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Property Swap with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
DECISION POINT: 
Declare the City’s intent to exchange property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owners Association and 
set a public hearing for a proposed swap of real property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s 
Association.   

HISTORY: 
The City owns the small triangle of real estate (Lot 1, Block 2 Isles of Troy Subdivision) that serves as 
the entrance into the Coeur d’Alene North parking garage.  The property is heavily encumbered with 
an access easement for the Coeur d’Alene North building, a 20’ no-build easement along the eastern 
property line in favor of the abutting property to the east as well as a remnant of the flood protection 
wall.  The City has leased this property to the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association for a term of 
25 years.  The lease includes a provision that the parties would pursue a trade of this real estate if 
another parcel of land of equivalent value could be located.  The City recently determined that portions 
of Northwest Boulevard along the Coeur d’Alene North frontage is not wholly within City owned right 
of way.  As such, staff has worked with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association to prepare the 
proposed property swap.  Under the terms of the proposed exchange, the City would obtain a sliver of 
property along Northwest Boulevard to place all of Northwest Boulevard in City owned right of way 
and a 9 foot wide easement to allow for the placement of traffic control devices and signage, utilities 
and sidewalks.  Additionally, the City would retain an easement to maintain the flood protection wall 
for as long as is necessary.  The Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association would receive Lot 1, Block 
2, Isles of Troy Subdivision and $250, which represents the lease payments on the property.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The value of the currently owned lot is negligible to the City because it is relatively small and heavily 
encumbered, which renders it largely useless to others.  Likewise, the value of the sliver of land that 
the City is seeking to acquire is relatively small in monetary terms.  However, obtaining legal 
ownership of the Northwest Boulevard right of way is significant.  The proposal from the Coeur 
d’Alene North includes the City repaying the $250 lease payment.     

PERFORMANCE / QUALITY OF LIFE ANALYSIS: 
As noted above, the City has been looking for a property to trade with the Coeur d’Alene North for 
some time.  The proposed trade is significant for the City because it gives the City complete ownership 
of Northwest Boulevard in this area.  The City will retain the right to maintain the seawall for as long 
as it remains necessary.  The proposed land exchange requires a public hearing. 

DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Declare the City’s intent to exchange real property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association 
as outlined in the attached agreement and setting a public hearing for the proposed property exchange 
on June 16, 2015. 

Page 1 of 1 









DATE:
FROM:
SUBJECT:

CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

May 19, 2015
Christopher H. Bates, Engineering Project Manager
Amended Resolutaon No. 15-022A Authorizing Condemnation Action in
Phase 2 of the Govornment Way: Hanley Ave. to Prairie Ave. Project

b

DECISION POINT

The City Council must approve any action that involves litigation

HISTORY

The City Council at its regularly scheduled meeting on May 5, 2015, approved Resolution
No. 15-022 authorizing the initiation of legal action to acquire a strip of land in fee simple
for the purpose of right-of-way, and, a temporary easement lo allow for the widening of
Government Way. The resolution included detailed maps of the property to be acquired
but not written descriptions of the fee and easement areas.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

This amended resolution clarifies that oversight with the rnclusion of both written
descriptions of the acquisition area and temporary easement, and, the previously included
graphic representation of the areas involved.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Passage ofthe amended resolution does not result in any financial change to the
process.

SUMMARY

The original resolution authorizing the initiation of condemnation proceedings in Phase 2

of the Government Way widening prolect on Parcels 47 & 48, included detailed graphic

representations ofthe area to be acquired, but did not include the written descriptions.
The approval of this amended resolution looks to correct that oversight with the inclusion

of written descriptions of both the land in fee, and, the temporary easement, as well as the
previously included graphic representations.

AmendedRes



RESOLUTION NO. 15-022A 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING CONDEMNATION PROCEEDINGS. 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 15-022 was adopted on the 5th day of May to authorize 
condemnation proceedings; and  

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to repeal Resolution No. 15-022 and replace it with this Resolution 15-022A, 
which includes updated legal descriptions; and  

WHEREAS, the acquisition of public right-of-way for roadway purposes is a public use 
for which the City of Coeur d’Alene (the “City”) has the power of eminent domain under section 
7-701, Idaho Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City is engaged in the roadway project to widen and improve 
Government Way from Hanley Avenue to Prairie Avenue in Coeur d’Alene, Hayden, and Dalton 
Gardens, Kootenai County, Idaho, referred to as SMA-7155, Government Way, Hanley Avenue 
to Prairie Avenue, Project No A012(308), Key No. 12308 (the “Project). 

WHEREAS, to accomplish the Project, the City needs to acquire certain real property 
more particularly identified as Parcels 47 and 48 (Parcel ID Nos. 12308L47 and 12308L48) on 
the Project plans on file with the City of Coeur d’Alene and legally described on attached 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by reference (“the Property”); and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” are maps depicting the Property to be 
acquired from the above-referenced parcel. The Property to be acquired include fee simple 
rights-of-way and temporary easements. The fee simple right-of-way for Parcel 47 consists of 
0.033 acres. The fee simple right-of-way for Parcel 48 consists of 0.095 acres. The temporary 
easement for Parcel 47 consists of 0.018 acres. The temporary easement for Parcel 48 consists of 
0.070 acres.  

WHEREAS, the rights of access to and from the remaining real property belonging to the 
record title owners of the Property shall be as follows: 

a. Before the Project, such owners had access to and from the Property that may or
may not have been authorized under the rules, regulations, policies, and permits of the 
relevant governmental entity.  

b. After the Project, the property owners will continue to have access to and from
the remaining real property subject to the rules, regulations, policies, and permits of the 
relevant governmental entity. 

Resolution No. 15-022A 1 | P a g e



WHEREAS, the location of the proposed right-of-way for the Project is necessary and the 
right-of-way is located in a manner which is most compatible with the greatest public good and 
the least private injury, pursuant to Idaho Code § 7-705; and  

WHEREAS, the names and addresses of the record title owners of the Property and any 
other owner(s) and tenants under long-term leases known to the City are set forth below: 

Name: ChrisLinc Properties, LLC 
Marshall Clark 

Address: 2320 N. Atlantic #100 
Spokane, WA 99205 

WHEREAS, the City commenced negotiations to purchase the Property and, by certified 
U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the owner(s) at the address shown in the official records 
of the Kootenai County Assessor, on the 9th day of December, 2014, provided the owner(s) with 
a summary of rights form required by Chapter 7, Title 7, Idaho Code, and on the 9th day of 
December, 2014 provided the owner(s) with a written offer to purchase the Property and settle 
any severance and business damage claims related to the acquisition, and on the 9th day of 
December, 2014 provided the owner(s) with a copy of the appraisal; and 

WHEREAS, the City, by and through its employees, contractors, and agents, has sought 
in good faith to purchase the Property and property interests described above and to settle with 
the owner(s), or reputed owner(s) and any other claimants for severance damages, if any, to their 
remaining property where the Property is a part of a larger parcel, and for damages to any 
business located thereon which might result form said taking, but the City has been unable to 
make any reasonable bargain therefore, or reasonable settlement of such damages; and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City and the citizens thereof to 
commence condemnation proceedings, if necessary, to acquire rights of way on the above listed 
parcels;  

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City authorize Holland & Hart LLP to commence 
condemnation proceedings, if necessary, to acquire rights of way for the above listed parcel; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City, 
that the City acquire the Property described in Exhibit A and identified in Exhibit B through the 
exercise of its power of eminent domain.   

Resolution No. 15-022A 2 | P a g e



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Holland & Hart LLP is hereby authorized to 
commence with condemnation proceedings, if necessary, to acquire rights of way on the above 
listed parcels. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 

authorized to execute such agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
DATED this 19th day of May, 2015.   

 
_________________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_______________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 Motion by ____________, Seconded by ___________, to adopt the foregoing resolution.   
 
ROLL CALL:   
 
 COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted    
 
 COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted    
 
 COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted    
 
 COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted    
 
 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted    
 
 COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted    
 
      was absent.   Motion    .   
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 15-022A 3 | P a g e  



Project No. A012(308)
KeyNo. 12308

Parcel 47
12308tA7

PrqareA: 4-24-14
Fee Title Acquisition

That portion oflot L4,Block 6, Schloss Addition, recorded in Book F ofplats, page 47,
records of Kootenai county, Idaho, located in the Northwest euarter ofthe Northwest
Quarter of Section 25, Township 51 Nortll Range 4 West, B.M., Koote,,ai g6pa11,

Idaho, described as follows;

COMMENCING at a 3 inch brass cap marking the west euarter comer of said section
25 according to comer Perpetuation and Filing record recorded as Instument Number
2313280000, records of Kootenai Co,nty, Idaho, said corner being 9.7g feet right of
Govemment Way project centerline station 165+65.89, said comer bears North
00"38'45" East a distance of 2635.72 feet from a 2 inch iron pipe marking the Southwest
comer of said Section 25 according to comer Perpetuation and Filing record recorded as
Instrument Number 1 192849, records ofKootenai County, Idaho; Thence along the
South line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 51 Norttr, Range 4 West,
B.M., Kootenai County, Idaho, North 88.49,19,, West a distance of 9.7g feet to the
intersection of said project centerling point being centerline station 165+65.91; Thence
along said centerling parallel to the West line of said Northwest er:arter, North
01"04'19'East a distance of2350.95 feet to centerline station 189+16.g6; Thence South
88'55'41' East a disrrnce of39.78 feet to the Southwest corner ofsaid lot 14, point
beng39.78 feet right of centerline station l8q-16.86, said point being the TRUE
POINT OFBEGIIT$IING;

Thence along the West line of said I.ot 14, North East a distance of 97.19 feet
to the Northwest comer of said Iot 14, point being 39.76 feet right of centerline station
790+14.29;

Thence along the North line of said Lot 14, North 46.23'44, East a disr2nce of 19.30 feet;

Thence parallel to said centerlioe and West line, South 01"04'19" West a distance of
i 10.70 feet to the South line of said Lot 14;

Thence along said South line, North 89"09'44" West a distance of 13.72 feet to the
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, said point being 39.78 feet right of centerline station
189+16.86;

'12319

T,

t4

pl

or

[Nas-o1\cad\Civil3D Projects\41 102\SurVey\DOCSU,EGAIS\4-24-l4V-z{7.docx

Contaidng 1,427 square feet or 0.033 acres more or 1ess.

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text

jknight
Typewritten Text
A



Project No. A012(308)
KeyNo. 12308

Parcel 47
12308tA1

Prepared: 5- I 2- I 5

Temporary Construction Easement

That portion oflot 14, Block 6, Schloss Addition, recorded in Book F ofPlats, Page 47,
records ofKootenai County, Idaho, located in the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest
Quarter of Section 25, Township 51 North, Range 4 West, 8.M., Kootenai County,
Idaho, described as follows;

COMMENCING at a 3 inch brass cap marking the West Quarter comer of said Section
25 according to Comer Pe{petuation and Filing record recorded as Instrument Number
2313280000, remrds of Kootenai County, Idaho, said comer being 9.78 feet right of
Govemment Way project centerline station 165+65.89, said corner bears North
0003 8'45" East a distance of 263 5.72 feet from r 2 inch iron pipe marking the Southwest
comer of said Section 25 aocording to Comer Perpetuation and Filing record recorded as

Instrument Number \192849, records of Koote,nai County, Idaho; Thence along the
South line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 5l North, Range 4 West,
B,M., Kootenai County, Idaho, North 88'49'19" West a distance of 9.78 feet to the
intersection ofsaid project centerline, point being centerline station 165+65.91 ; Thence
along said centerline, parallel to the West line of said Northwest Quarter, North
01"04'19' East a distance of 2350.95 feet to centerline station 189+16.86; Thence South
88"55'41 ' East a disrance of 39.78 feet to the Southwest comer of said Iot 14, point
being 39.78 feet right of centedine station 189116.86; Thence along the southerly line of
said Irt 14, South 89'09'44" East a distance of 13.72 f*tto a point being 53.50 feet right
of centerline station 189+16.92, said point also being the TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING;

Thence North 01"04'19' East a distanc€ of 110.70 feet to the northerly line ofsaid tot
14, point being 53.30 fe€,t right of centerline station 190+28.71;

Thence along said northerly line, N orth 46"23'44" East a distance of9.84 feet;

Thence leaving said northerly line, South 0l o04'19" West a distance of 117.60 feet to
southerly line of said Lot 14;

Thence along said southerly line, North 89"09'44' West a distan
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, said point being 53.50 feet
right of centerline station 189+16.92;

ce of 7.00 feet t

s
12318 ov
s-,t

or

Containing 799 square feet or 0.018 acres more or less.

N:\Civil3D Projects\41102\SurvelrDOCS\LEGALS\5-12-15\L4TTempEase.docx

o-

(),
NN t{ts

\

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
A



Project No. A012(308)
KeyNo. 12308

Parc,el48
12308148

Prepared:424-14
Fee Title Acquisition

That portion of the Northwest euarter of the Northwest euarter of section 25, Township
51 Nortb, Range 4 Wes! 8.M., Kootenai County, Idaho, de,soibed as follows;

COMMENCING at a 3 inch brass cap marking the west euarter comer of said Sectiou
25 ac.,,dng to corner Perpetuation and Firing record recorded as Instument Number
2313280000, records of Kootenai county, Idaho, said comer being 9.7g feet right of
Govemment Way project centerline station 165+65.99, said comer bears North
00"38'45" East a distance of 2635.72 feet from a 2 inch iron pipe marking the southwest
comer ofsaid Section 25 according to comer perpetuation and Fit;"g record recorded as
Instrument Nnmb er 1192849, reards ofKootenai co.nty, Idaho; Thence alongthe
south lirre of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Tomship 51 North, Range 4-wesg
8.M., Kootenai County, Idaho, North 88"49,19,' West a distauc€ of 9.7g feet to the
inlersection of said project centerline, point being centerline station 165+65.91; Thence
along said centerline, parallel to the West line of said Northwest euarter, Nontr
01004'19" East a distaro- of 2442.46 feet to the beeinning ofa curve to the righ! having
a radius of 1000.00 feet, said point being at centerline station 190+0g.37; Thence
northeast along said curve, an arc length of5.92 fee! thronsh a central angle of
00"20'21", a chord bearing of North 01'14'30" East and a chord distance of 5.92 feet to
centerline station 190+14.29; Thence South 88"35'19, East a distance of39.76 feet to the
Northwest corner oflot 14, Block 6, Schloss Addition, recorded in Book F ofplats, page
47, records of Kootenai county, Idaho, said point being on the East right ofway ofsaidl
Government way, point being 39.76 feet right of centerline station teo+t+.2e, saa point
being the TRIIE POINT OF BEGINNING;

Thence along said East right of way and parallel to the west line of said Northwest
Quarter, North 01'04'19' East a distance of 202.87 feet to the South right ofway of
Prairie Ave, point being 3 1.12 feet right of said centerline station 192+1g.56;

Thence along said South right ofway, South 89.29,19" East a distance of 120.24 feer;

Thence South 00"30'41" West a distance of 17.50 feet;

Thence parallel to said South right of way, North 89"29,19" West a distance of 88.11
feet;

Thence South 47'07'27" West a distance of 25.75 feet;

Thence parallel to said centerline, Souttr 03"214'14" West a distance of 129.30 feet to the
beginning of a curve to the left, having a radius of 1001.53 feet;

\\)'Ias-01\cad\Civil3 D Projects\41 102\Survey\DOCS\LEGALS\4-24-l4U,48.docx

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
A



Thence southwest along said curve and parallel to said centeriine, an arc length of3l.94
fee! through a central anele of 01o49'38,', a chord bearing of South 02.46'39,' West and a
chord distznce of 31.94 fwt to the North line of said lot 14;

Thence along said North line, Sottth 46"23,44, West a distance of 9.57 feet to the TRUE
POINT OF BEGIIINING, said point being39.76 feet i$lt of centerline station
194114.29;

Q6ataining 4,155 square feet or 0.095 acres more or less.

12318

or

\\Nas-O1\cad\Civil3D Projects\41 102\Suvey\DOCS\LEGAJS\4-24-i4V,48.docx

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
A



That portion of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest euarter of section 25, Township
51 North, Range 4 Wes! B.M., Kootenai County, Idaho, described as follows;

COMMENCING at a 3 inch brass cap marking the west euarter comer of said Section
25 according to corner Perpetuation and Filing record recorded as Instrument Number
2313280000, records ofKootenai County, Idaho, said comer being 9.78 feet right of
Govemment Way project centerli[e station 165+65.89, said comer bears North
00o38'45" East a distance of 2635.72 fwt from a 2 inch iron pipe marking the Southwest
comer ofsaid Section 25 according to corner perpetuation and Filing record rccorded as
Instrument Numb s 1192849, records ofKootenai County, Idaho; Thence along the
South line of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 51 North, Range 4 West,
B.M., Kootenai County, Idaho, North 88o49'19" West a distanc.e of 9.78 feet to the
intersection of said project centerline, point behg centedine station 165+65.91; Thence
along said centerline, parallel to the West line of said Northwest euarter, North

East a distance of 2442.46 feet to the beginning ofa curve to the right, having
a radius of 100O.00 feet, said point being at centerline station 190+0g.37; Thence
northeast along said curve, an arc length of 5.92 feet, through a cenfial angle of
00'20'21., a chord bearing of North 01"14'30" East and a chord distance of 5.92 feet to
centerline station 19Gt-14.29; Thence South 88"35'19" East a distance of39.76 feet to the
Northwest corner ofl,ot 14, Block 6, Schloss Addition, recorded in Book F ofplats, page
47, records of Kootenai CountS Idaho, said point being on the East right ofway of said
Government Way, point being 39.76 feet right of centerline station 190+14.29; Thence
along the northerly line ofsaid t ot 14, Nodh 46o23,44,,East a distance of9.5? feet to a
curve to the righl having a radius of 1 001.53 fect, point being 46.50 feet right of
c€nterline station 19o+21.39, said point being the TRUE FOINT OF BEGINNING;

Project No. A0l2(308)
Key No. 12308

Parcel 48
12308rA8

Prepared:5-12-15
Temporary Consfiuction Easernent

Thence northeast along said curve, leaving said northerly line, an arc langth 31.94 f@\
through a central angle of01"49'38", a chord bearing of North 02o46'39,' East and a
chord distance of 31.94 f*t;

Thence North 03'44'14" East a distance of 129.30 feet;

Thence North 47"07'27" E ast a distance of25.75 feet to a point being 64.19 feet right of
centerline station 192+ 02.9 0 ;

Thence South 89"29'19" East a distance of29.l I feet;

Thence South 47o07'27" West a distance of 44.77 feet;

Nlcivil3D Projects\41102\^Survey\DOCS\LEGALS\5-12-l5U.4ETempEase.docx

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
A



Thence South West a distanc€ of 132.27 f@t to said northerly line;

Thence along said northerly linq South 46o23'2t4" West a distance o f 22.82 f@t to the
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, said point being 46.50 feet right of centerline station
190+21.39:'

Containing 3,052 square feet or 0.070 acres more or less.

L*

'12318
I5-
of

l

Nlcivil3D Projects\4 I 102\Survey\DOCS\LEGALSU-t2-15V/STempEa.se.docx

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
A



o.3ar

!?!9qa1l rRRY crRLsoN -

12.,Esl sys F rl[Y - 12.5cr
?4+151 S{rS rrr,tY - i2_5d
!?!gqfl sr6 ra{-Y _ tz5d 

-

itttl
I. TOTAL Ofi{ERSHIP AREAS SHOVII! RIPRES€NT
THE AREAS YIIIIHIN lHE SECTIONS AAUT'I]NG
GO\€RNI/ENT WAY AND UIBUR AVE AS
O€IIRMIIiED FROX ASSESSOS'S DAIA SIEETS
IHE OII{IRSHIP P RcfIs TERE NOT S.JRWYEO
AND SAIO AREAS ARE AFPROXIMAIT, REIIAINDER
AREAS IERE CAIOJTA1TD 3Y gEDUCNNC ANY
ACQUISINO{S MADE AS A RESULT OF I1{IS
PROJECT f.f,O,/ 1HOSE APPROXIUAI! AREAS AND
ARE AISO  PPROXMA]I.

ENO PROJECT
sTA. 192+41.85
A012(3O8)
N 22r7656.711

T.51N, R.4W., 8.M.
NE 1/4 OF SE 1/4,

sEc_ 26
S1LVEA LAXE PI ZA.
aa t, Pa 270-278,A.

c-4275-OO1-O0B-0

@

151N. R.4W., a.M.
sE r,/4 0F NE l,/4. SEC. 26

E 2fi9314.a72
M.P. 14.8J6
END CONSIRUCTIO{ _ 

-sr.192+2000
I4ATCH EXISTINC
N 22r76J+.910

i.ii!?.uJ.'ronu j;skffi @

I

sl NO.W- 26-! tOO a
RAYVOS T(ltFffT s

5lXOarV-26-rerD^
R^W(NO XO(SFETI \:, 5lNoaw-26-2mo^

ooocE lrFRrr^.r I.\l,
151N, R.4W.. B.M.

NE 1/4 OF NE 1/4, SaC.26

I

\
@ffc

1

51X0,1r-26-2551)
cDA lrllrotlAl caRoE{s rNc

o
I
a

()

Y'
EI
xt

d
6

a

n
4

1

d
6

21

6
I

(, ll
@ J

2
a

9

I

I
D-O0oo-025-t22s

ranTAGE SqJIA€ COII',IRACTOR'S

ca@laRllR
C€IIER CONooS.

coNDog
T.51N. R.4W., 8.t .

GOVERNMENT LOT 6
sdrloss lorxnori. a( F, Pc a7

T.51N; R.4UL, B.M.
sw 1/4 oF NW 1/4, *C. 25

sd+oss ADDtTlor{.

l5lN.
NW 1/,a OF

BK @r{Dos! 5Jt

+
sc^rE:1'=200',

426-8f,3
R a.M
Ni/ 1 s€c. 25

@
]DAHO

TRANSPORTATION
DEPARTMENT 0f

12318
1-5-r

IELO1.COm&ASS@lrEs

AO12(308)

vllt

aIA-7166
GOYEre'fT WAY

IIAII.EY AVE TO PRllN: AVE 3 r 1J

,$'
*g+

ocF

J'd
€

@
51NO4f,-26-0550

'!:
@

ittsor

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
B



a
I
I
I
I

E

t
E,

4
I
a

t
I
I
I
{

i
!

POINT OF COMMTNCEMTNT TO IRUE POIN] OI ETGINNING
TRUE POINT OF BECINNING

SIAI]ON & OFFSE I
APPROACH TYPL AND SIZE

N Aa19 19" Yr 9.7a / N 0r!.19'E r8r7,.6',l N 8855',ltr" rv 20.22
COMMERC]AL APPROACH 2'
COMMERCIALAPFROACH JO'

N aa19l9" W9.7a /N Oir0419" E 2396.A2 / N AA',5541" W 20.22

fi-ooo(F026-or 50

@
l-a464' R-lq5o.Od
b2at 5s'
CA-xO22al fE

N aa.9l9' W g,ra' / N 01!419" E 2142-16' / t=5.92' R=]00O.O0' 4,0O2O 21"
cB-N 011.30- E C0=5.92'l S aaJ5'19'E J9.76

cP&r o. 2090562000

E:21696t..372
I

I

I

>

N-0000-02Fo500

@

T.5lN. R.4W., B.M.
NE 1/4 OF NE 1/4, SEC. 26

l1 00@-026-0450
!-,t6.52' R-lOOo.Od
.-2!9'5s'
6-X022{1rE s1.72 LI
0-,ro.5l' +a1.11a

+6192, 6550

_-T_

-END 
PROJECT

sTA. 192+41.65
A012(J08)
N 2217656.711

--- -dxtriiiri(ei )
COIIEFUXE ROr Nlrl 1J9.62',

-E 
2369844.872

u.P. 1+836
I "E 26 21

+35 s,r so!o. r9'\r GoVERNM ENT WAY ro-apPROrcH

a5r 21
e\ 292-.]1" _

d_--T_ - _T_ --,
r 7') oo, 5r.50' Pr l;t\

SaaS,tlt 20,

a
t;

iE

\
5F

EF
J6!6
iaE

E!9

*v-
:36

@ er.2s Rr

t9 r5.oo'RT
D-lom-

ruLm! o$Eis-@r$o
cotoot {rrl. oF @Ilntar(Rs

sqJliq &( lJ,t of l.rsc., PAC€ !11

35.54, 50.6r' Rr 5O5O' Rr 0-@00-025-a225
cHFrsur{c

PROPERIIES tICI ,i o L=Jl.ea i-1@1.5J
&1'4e Ja'
Ca-SO?,L 39'l
0-31.1a'

o-9€@-046-0r lLo
SAllS i{\ESnrOtIS UC

lor 13. Bt( 0

D-a8oo-o06-o1.-0
clltdslnc PR@aI€5 Llc

LoT 1,t, Btx 6
T.51N, R.4W., B.M.

Ntv 1/4 OF Nr!/ t/4, SEC. 25
scllLoss amrroN, B( F. PG 47

END CONSIRUCTION
sTA. 192+20.OO
MATCH EXISTING
N 2217554.910
E 2359843.4,4€
M.P. 14.832

STAIION

N 88,1919'W 974 / N 010,119- E re0970 / S aa5s',41'E ls7a',

ra9+6r.sl, 20 22' LT

taa+22.31,20.22 tr

N asrsi19" ii.ia; /.{ or!.19'E 2r69.oJ / s ss55.r' E J9.78' |
N 88',4919_ vr 9.73' / N 0110119' E 2i5O.95 / S aas541' E 39.7a I

d,"e\
ffiD#h.f

IDAHO
TRANSPORTATION

DEPARTMENT
vz&
2318

0f
I,ELCH, C:cn,IER & ASSoCIAIES Y flN

A012(308)
ar^-7t55

GOVENTEI.T WAY
IIA'{.EY AYE. TO PRAIRE AVE lO 6 13

I

9o

{8J
qaE
886qE'

I

I

+22 31

it

ii
!l
ri

(

TO{l}
I, EASEMENTS SI]O$\I ARI fOR IEMPORARY CONSTRT)C1ION ONIY

COi/UEROAL APPROACTI 30'

I<mr*

t f8orc ro-

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
B



T.5',1N., R.4W., B.M.

/4 OF NE 1/4 SEC 26
T.5tN., R.4W.. 8.M.

sEr/4 oF sE1/4 SEC 2J!19llNE l
TA

d

N 2217323.572
E 236974J.954

L
I

1

s9o1I T --T
-1

A. 192+41.85 GOVT wAY -

6

J

192+OO 19f,+00 N1.OO.O1.[

N10419'E

\o!a
o

-\T--- T
73, ...50', Rr611- L-,16.52

IF2l9 55-
R=1000.0o
c6*N22117"E

\fY N 22t8408.a16
E 2369912.450

N 2217417.992
E 2369868.021

c-45 512 \\
FND CONSTRI,,CTION

15rN., R.4W.. B.M \i T.51N., R.4W., B.M
st!1 40FSffi SEC 2

A. 192+20.00
2217634.910 22542254 A. 19 4r.8T.B-M.

221!41 2(308)
T.S.l,t.

221i.21
TCH E STING f 2217656.711 -2252

2369844_472

I

L

6

2254 2250

2216

2244

2214

2244

I

xtSTtNc D

EXC.
EM€,

17A21CY

J7O LF
2244

la9+50 190+00 190+50 191+00 19r +50 t92+O0 192+50 l9J+00 195+25

lsc PA\ 17772
SII DlL SHT 63
139+52 l0 190+1a.32 !I

629 Sy, col sO DIL c-1 s I 60

sT . 188+50, a7,5' tT @Vr fi T0

sL 71+25. 32.t nI PRARIE

sIA. 133+50, 44.5' fiT @W IlY T0
A 75+70. J2.5' RT PRAIRIT

sll" 19+3955.33.1a Lr GOvr fi
sTA 191+91, 56.5/ ir CoW VrY

sT^ 7,r+,r21r, a3.94'. RT PilnE
sTf, 75+46 39, 55.3$ RT PRllRrE

cDl slD DlL c 2. 51rT 59
19 Fl, sTA. 139+a2, 43.t LT T0

sIA, 100+t8,1,t, 56.5{ LT
6 FI, SIA 101+JO. 5f LT TO

sTA I9t+J6. 51.5', LI

CDA SID DTL C_]. SHT 50
381 fl. STA 1!a+50, 35 LT GOVi yiY

T0 ST . 7,1+25, J2'RT PR &€
J86 tI, SIA 188+50, J5', RT @Vt *Y

't0 sTt 75+70. J2' nr PiaftE

co^ stD DIt c-17, 5rT 6r
r Er. 5lr l8a+67 R',l

1 EA STA. 189+05 Ll
1 El" sIA. 189+76 iT

r tA sTA 100+16, l5 LT
r EL sr t9l+05. J6' Lr

SURVEY i'ONUMENTS. REFERENCE
AXD R€A  CT ANY MONUVENTS
DISIJRAED OR DES]ROYEO,

CURB OROP AT EACK OF

AS?HALT, SIOEY'ALI AND/OR CURS

ALL EXISI]NG UlILIIIES TO
GRADE. WORK CONSIDERED
INCOENTAL TO OIHER ITEMS

.A

6l

SEE

llAlISi

sNttT 61

stitrl r,roNllliENT

SID€MLX SILEI
sEt 011 sHl 66

AI
AI

,Jea\

ws
IDAHO

TRANSPORTATION
DF]PARTMF]NTA

AI WTLCH, COMER & ASSOCIATES

A012(308)
8XA-7155

GOVER}IIIEIT WAY
HAT{LEY AVE. TO PRAIRIE AVE.

I'f,TE
ZEI!'EI'

G

11034

R,
nl

mryF;IE@

i
I
l)
i
E
E

ti
c

d
z
E

I
,E

I
I

I
6

)

EH->

E 236984J,444
.P. 1J.832

l-.-

I

l
L l

Il
t

l i

f r€.u.
12256.01

l

Resolution No. 15-022A Exhibit "   "

jknight
Typewritten Text
B



 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE  
 STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: May 11, 2015  
FROM: Gordon Dobler, Growth Services Director 
SUBJECT: Approval of Standard Drawings  
  
 
DECISION POINT 
 

Staff is requesting approval of various standard drawings which have been 
recently revised. 

 
HISTORY 
 

Water and Wastewater departments have revised the existing drawings and 
Water has added several more new drawings.  In addition Engineering revised 
several drawings to address minor house keeping issues. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

There is no cost associated with adopting the standards.  There may be a small 
cost differential to property owners and developers in implementing the new 
standards. 

 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
 

The revisions and additions will result in lower maintenance costs, uniformity, and 
consistency. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Committee direct staff to prepare a resolution 
approving the revised drawings indicate don the attached list.  The drawings are 
available for review in the Council Office. 



RESOLUTION NO. 15-023 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
APPROVING REVISIONS TO VARIOUS STANDARD DRAWINGS FOR THE WATER, 
WASTEWATER AND ENGINEERING DEPARTMENTS. 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a policy establishing Standard Drawings pursuant to 
Resolution No. 99-086 on May 18, 1999, as amended by Resolution No. 02-009 on November 26, 
2001; Resolution No. 04-102 on November 16, 2004; Resolution No. 06-019 on March 21, 2006, 
Resolution No. 06-066 on October 17, 2006, Resolution No. 07-009 on February 6, 2007; Resolution 
No. 08-016 on April 1, 2008; Resolution No. 11-016 on May 3, 2011; and  

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has proposed a revision to various Standard Drawings for the 
Water, Wastewater and Engineering Departments; and  

WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee has reviewed the proposed revision to the 
Standard Drawings at their May 11, 2015 meeting and has recommended that the City of Coeur 
d'Alene adopt the revised Standard Drawings for Public Works Construction, a copy of which is 
attached as Exhibit “1”.  A full version of the Standard Drawings is on file in the office of the City 
Clerk; and,  

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof that such revised Standard Drawings for Public Works Construction be adopted; 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
revised Standard Drawings for Public Works Construction be and is hereby adopted. 

DATED this 19th day of May, 2015. 

_____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

Resolution No. 15-023 1 | P a g e



 

 
      
 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 

ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 

Resolution No. 15-023 2 | P a g e  



CtTy OF COEUR D'ALENE
STANDARD DRAWINGS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMNETE

I Curb & Gutter
{ Curb
,t Curb & 6utter, Rolled
/ Curb & 6utler, Medion ..............................
/ Stdewalk Joints & Sections

Drivewoy Approoch, Residentiol
r' W /Park S1rip...................................

{ W/O ?ork Strip, 5' Wolk ..........

,/ W/O Park Strip, 3' Wolk ..........
y'w/culvefi

Not used

rr Drivewoy Approoch, Urbon ...................

'/ w /Grossy Swole .........................

Drivewoy Locotion & Width .....................

Pedestrion Romp ....................

Cross Gutter
Curb fnlet, Type A -.-...........

lrnlet Apron

Miscellaneous

Street Nome Sign Locotion
Street Nome 5i9n Detoils

Erosion/Sed. Control Notes, Pg 1

Erosion/Sed. Control Notes, Pg 2

c-l
c-2
c-3
c-4
c-5

c-6
c-7
c-8
c-9
c-Lo
c-11

c-12
c-13
c-14
c-15
c-16
c-17

l^Is.€rl^NEous (coNr.l

Rock Construction Entry Detail ........,.

Drywell Inlet Protection
Silt Fence Detoil
Utility Locotions

M-18
M-19
M-20
M.2L
M-22
M-23
M-?4
M-25
M-26
M-27
M-28
M-29
M-30
M-31
M-32
M-33
M-34
M-35

ss-1
s5-2
ss-3
55-4
ss-5
ss-6
ss-7
ss-8
ss-9
s5-10
ss-11

General Plon Notes, pg I
General Plan Notes, p9 2

/Pavement Notes - Poge 1

Povement Notes - Poge 2

M-1

M-2

y' Sewer Sysfem Notes
Woter Syslem Noies ...............................

Not used

Not used

Strow Bole Dike
{ Poveme,nt Design Stondords

Povement Morking Notes
Storm System Notes
Multi-use Poth

Removoble Bollord

SEVYER

y'Stondord Sewer Monhole
y'lnterrcl Drop Monhole

r/iewer Service Loterol Morkers ..........

/iewer Topping Sodd1e ....,........................

{sewer lre.nci & Bockfill Detoil
/Force Main Locoting Wire Box
/Temporory Tee Sewer Extension .........

STORAI DRAINAoE

Cotch Bosin, Type 1

{ Grote Frame, Type I
Grote Frame, fype ?

Not used M-3 /Doghouse Monhole
Typicol Street Sections, p9 1

Typicol Street Sections, p9 2
/Sewer lAonhole Thickened Collor .........
y'Monhole Frome & cover
/Sewer Service Loterols

M-4
M-5
M-6
M-7
M-8
M-9
M-10
M-11

M-t2
M-13

M-14
M-15
M-16
M-17

sD-1
sD-2
sD-3

,/ = 16,yrsef,

REVISED 51712015

Resolution No. 15-023 Exhibit "1"



CIry OF COEUR D'ALENE
STANDARD

TABLE OF

SToR DR^rN^6E - (Cont.)

/cot.h Bosin Grote,l-Way sD-4B
Cotch Bosin Instollstion Detoil ............ SD-5

y/ Type A Dtywell
Type B Dryurell

"/ Residentiol Street Swole
Pipe Bedding/Bockfill: Storm Droin ...

Curb Inlet Box, Type 1

Curb Inlet 9ox, Type 2 sD-10
sD-11Swole Droin

W^TER

"/ l" coppercetter Stondord Pit Setting

SD-6A
SD-68
sD-7

DRAWIN6S
CONTENTS

Water - (Cont.)

,,/ Spill Resistont Vocuum Breoker Assy.
{ Approved 3" or Lorger DCVA, PI ........

/ Approved 1" & 2" DCVA for PI
{ Approved DCVA for Irr. Install.
/ epproved Air 6ap Stondord
,,/ Monitoring Well Cosing Modificotions

"[ 
Valve Operoting Nut Depth

,,/ 24' Monhole Cover, Hern fron Works
./RPBA Instoll for frr. Systen .............

y' RPBA Instoll for fnterior PL..............
y' y aZ Service Reconnect ....................

/Wot"" Moin Flushing chart .................

{ Approved Pressure Testing Methods
./ lllowoble leak Loss Toble ....................

,/ approved RPBA for Ext. PI .................

,/ Approved DCVA for Int. PI
Abondoned Corp, 1" IPS
Abondoned Corp, Copper
Abondoned Corp, Direct Top ...............

/ RP Int. Bldg Isol., Bosement, Smoll ....

,,/ Dc tnt. Bldg Isol., Bosehent, Smoll ....
/ RP tnt. Bldg rsol., Lorge ..........................

/,pP rnt. Bldg Isol., Bosement, Large .....
v DC Int. Bldg Isol., Lorge .........................
JrbC Tnt. Bldg Isol.. Bosement, Lorge....
r' RP Dischorge Rotes Chort

w-23
w-24
w-25
w-26
w-27
w-28
w-?9
w-30
w-31
w-32
w-33
w-34
w-35
w-36
w-37
w-38
w-39
w-40
w-41
w-42
w-43
w-44
w-45
w-46
w-47
w-48

sD-8
sD-9

t/ Wdle? Meter Pit Locotions
{ Typical6' Fire Hydront Setting ..........
/ Fire Hydrant Locolions
y'Curb Stop Box Assembly
y' Frost-free Blowoff Assembly ..............

/ L' Air P,elief Assembly
r'A.C. Moin Crossing

g/Thrust Blocking ..............

fihrust Block Beoring Ateo ....................

JPipe Bedding & Bockfill
{Cosl lron Volve Box - Two Piece .........

y'Volve Box Adjusthents for overloy ..

/2' Stondard Pit Setting
/3" and Lorger Meter Setting, Std. ....

/3" and Larger Meter Seiting, frr. .....
y'3" and Larger Service Voult
tl Pressure Sustoining Volve Assy. .......
,/Prcssure Reducing Stotion Assy. .........

/PPB A Prcfiise fsolotion, Std. ................

/RPBA Premtse fsolation, Alt. ...........
/Atmospheric Vocuum Breoker ..............

w-1
w-2
w-3
w-4
w-5
w-6
w-7
w-8
w-9
w-10
w-11
w-12
w-13
w-14
w-15
w-16
w-17
w-18
w-19
w-20
w-21
w-22

,/ = ler/BCL

REVTSED 5t7 t2015

Resolution No. 15-023 Exhibit "1"



RESOLUTION NO. 15-024 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING A STATE 
AND LOCAL AGREEMENT WITH IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
FOR DESIGN OF SELTICE WAY FROM HUETTER AVENUE TO NORTHWEST 
BOULEVARD; APPROVAL OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SIGNALIZED AT-
GRADE CROSSING OF THE PRAIRIE TRAIL AT THE INTERSECTION OF 
CARRINGTON LANE AND HANLEY AVENUE; DECLARATION OF INTENT TO 
EXCHANGE PROPERTY WITH THE COEUR D’ALENE NORTH OWNER’S 
ASSOCIATION.  

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the 
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions 
set forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as 
Exhibits “A through D” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows: 

A) APPROVING A STATE AND LOCAL AGREEMENT WITH IDAHO
TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT FOR DESIGN OF SELTICE WAY
FROM HUETTER AVENUE TO NORTHWEST BOULEVARD;

B) APPROVAL OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SIGNALIZED AT-
GRADE CROSSING OF THE PRAIRIE TRAIL AT THE
INTERSECTION OF CARRINGTON LANE AND HANLEY AVENUE;

C) DECLARATION OF INTENT TO EXCHANGE PROPERTY WITH THE
COEUR D’ALENE NORTH OWNER’S ASSOCIATION;

AND; 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene 
and the citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene 
that the City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through D" and incorporated herein 
by reference with the provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are 
hereby authorized to modify said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive 
provisions of the agreements or other actions remain intact. 

Resolution No. 15-024 1 | P a g e



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 19th day of May, 2015.   
 
 
                                        
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
     Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 

Resolution No. 15-024 2 | P a g e  
   



Public Works Committee 
 STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE:  May 11, 2015 
FROM: Gordon Dobler, Engineering Services Director 
SUBJECT: Approval of State/Local Agreement for Design of Seltice Wy  
  
 
DECISION POINT 
 

Staff is requesting Council approval of an agreements\ with ITD for design of Seltice 
Way, from Huetter Ave to Northwest Blvd. 

 
HISTORY 
 

In 2013, we applied for a federal grant of $305,000 for the design only.  The grant was 
approved for this fiscal year.  We have been working with ITD since last November on 
this agreement and received the State/Local agreement for execution last week.  We 
were notified by e-mail on May 6th that the agreement must be fully executed by both 
parties prior to the end of the month in order to retain the funding.   

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

There is a 7.34% match required, so the total match for design is estimated at 
$22,387(included in the $305,000). Staff anticipates that the cost for design will exceed 
the grant amount and therefore we have obtained a commitment from LCDC for up to an 
additional $250,000 this fiscal year.  The total project cost including construction is 
estimated to be $3,705,000 however this will probably increase once final design is 
complete. We have budgeted the match for design this fiscal year.  Although funds for 
construction are not programmed yet, it is anticipated that they will be available in FY 
2020 or FY 2021.   

 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
 

The project includes the reconstruction of Seltice Way, from Huetter to the Prairie trail 
overpass, installation of a signal at Atlas Rd and possibly Huetter Ave, installation of 
sidewalks, bike lanes, drainage facilities, and street lighting.  In addition, sidewalk would 
be extended on the south side to Northwest Blvd.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the attached State / Local agreement with ITD.  Because 
of the tight time frame we are requesting that the agreement be executed upon approval 
by the Public Works Committee and ratified by Council. 
. 



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"



Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "A"

jknight
Text Box
Seltice Way: Huetter/Northwest Blvd



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT  

 
 

DATE:  May 11, 2015 

FROM: Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney  

SUBJECT: Prairie Trail Crossing Bella Terra (formerly Hawks Nest) Subdivision 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
DECISION POINT: 
Recommend that the full Council approve the development of a signalized at-grade crossing of the 
Prairie Trail at the intersection of Carrington Lane and Hanley Avenue in the Bella Terra subdivision.   
 
HISTORY: 
On November 4, 2014, the City Council approved a contract with Welch-Comer to study the viability 
of grade separated crossings (either a tunnel or a bridge) at the intersection of the Prairie Trail and the 
future extensions of Hanley Ave. and Carrington Lane as well as providing cost estimates for each 
alternative.  Cost estimates were necessary to enable staff to determine the feasibility of obtaining 
grant funding for the potential development of grade separated crossings.  Welch-Comer has now 
provided its final report and recommends the development of a signalized at-grade bike crossing rather 
than a grade separated crossing because of site topography and cost.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The annexation agreement for Hawks Nest called for the development of a grade separated crossing 
and obligated the developer to provide the earthwork for the crossing but not any retaining walls or 
other work necessary to develop a grade separated crossing.  Costs for grade-separated crossings could 
run between $585,000 and $1,400,000 or more depending on the type of crossing and its alignment.  
Excavation could run in the $130,000 range.  Development costs for a signalized at-grade bike 
crossing would be nominal since much of the cost would be the responsibility of the developer in 
developing the required intersection.  Staff has investigated potential grants to help pay for grade-
separated crossings and it appears that the city could compete for up to $500,000 in TAP funding in the 
2018 grant cycle with all remaining costs being paid for by the city.       
 
PERFORMANCE / QUALITY OF LIFE ANALYSIS: 
Staff contacted the League of American Bicyclists to determine if any of alternatives provided a bigger 
impact for the city in its goal of becoming a silver level bike friendly community.  The League 
indicated that a signalized at-grade bike crossing would have the largest impact in our ranking because 
of its ease of use and sense of safety as compared to grade-separated crossings.  This is consistent with 
the report from Welch-Comer.  Based on this information and the potential cost, staff recommends 
developing a signalized at-grade bike crossing.  However, the Pedestrian/Bicycle Committee and the 
Centennial Trail Foundation have indicated that the preference of each group is a bridge, tunnel, at-
grade crossing, in that order. 
  
   
 

F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 19, 2015\Bella Terra Prairie Trail Crossing SR.docx Page 1 of 2 



DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend that the full Council approve the development of a signalized at-grade bike crossing of 
the Prairie Trail at the intersection of Carrington Lane and Hanley Avenue in the Bella Terra 
subdivision.   
 
 

F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\May 19, 2015\Bella Terra Prairie Trail Crossing SR.docx Page 2 of 2 



wELtrH;SPII0HHNIT

Memorandum

TO:

FROM:

PRJ. #:

SUBJECT:

DATE:

HILARYANDERSON, GORDON DOBLER, P.E., MONTE MCCULLY, WARREN
WILSON; CITY OF COEUH D'ALENE

CHRIS BOSLEY, P.E.;WELCH COMER ENGINEERS

41197

REVISED PRA]RIE TRAIL CROSSING ANALYSIS

MARCH 12,2015

Proiect Purpose

The City of Coeur d'Alene has contracted Welch Comer Engineers to provide engineering
analyses for various alternatives for the future crossing of the Prairie Trail and Hanley Avenue.
The Prairie Trail is a popular shared-use trail that follows a former railroad alignment from the
CentennialTrail at the Riverstone development northwest through Coeur d'Alene to Huetter
Road. The trail is popular with wheelchair users and hand cyclists due to the flat grades and
crowned centerline that allows them to straddle the center and avoid the path cross-slope. The
trail is grade-separated beneath Seltice Way, lnterstate 90, and Appleway Ave. At-grade
crossings are present at several street crossings. Lower volume streets such as Golf Course
Road and Player Drive are crossed with high-visibility crosswalks and stop signs on the trail.
Higher volume streets such as Atlas Road and Kathleen Avenue are crossed with high-visibility
crosswalks and traffic signals. Hanley Avenue is planned to be extended beyond its current
terminus east of the trail west to Huetter Road, necessitating a trail crossing. As directed, Welch
Comer Engineers studied the feasibility of tunnel options, bridge options, and an at-grade
crossing options. Planning-level cost estimates have been provided for the most feasible bridge
and tunnel options and do not include design and construction engineering costs.

Analysis

Assum ptions and Constraints

The following assumptions and constraints were used in the layout and analysis of the various
alignments:

. Keep improvements within the existing Prairie Trail right-of-way.

. To the maximum extent feasible, protect the full right-of-way width of Hanley Ave so as
to not prohibit future widening or other unforeseen changes to the roadway.

. Provide 12 feet of vertical clearance through a tunnel to allow equestrians to pass.

. Provide '16 feet of vertical clearance over Hanley Ave.

. Provide tunnel and bridge widths comparable to the existing Prairie Trailwidth.
o Maintain ADA accessibility through the crossing.
. Pressure sewer, gravity sewer, and water mains all exist in the proposed crossing area.

With a 10O'-wide right-of-way on the Prairie Trail and using 3:1 cuVfill slopes, the trail elevation
could reach approximately 12.5'above or below existing ground elevation before a retaining wall
will be required. To reach the proposed intersection location, the trail would have to leave the
existing trailright-of-way, which would require extensive retaining walls to avoid/minimize
impacts to Hanley Ave and adjacent properties south of Hanley Ave. The area north of Hanley

X:V(41V1 197 CDA Prairie Trail Ped-Bike CrossingVlev. Memorandum 03121 S.docx

www.welchcomsr.com

208-664-9382

877-815-5672 {1drk€er

208-664-5946 t,axi

350 E. Kathlesn Ave.

Coeur d'Alene, l0 838.15

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



Prairie Trail Crossing Analysis
Page 2

Ave is less constrained and therefore, retaining walls are either not needed or are substantially
reduced.

BJieUe Alternative

Bridge alternatives were analyzed for several alignments that cross over only Hanley Avenue or
both Carrington Lane and Hanley Avenue (see Figure 1). With the close proximity of residential
housing, a bridge seems inappropriate. Users of the bridge would essentially be looking down
into the backyards of neighboring homes. Push-back from the neighborhood is likely.
Additionally, due to the relatively flat terrain, a long ramp would be required to gain the needed
elevation to cross Hanley Avenue. Compact ramp designs are possible but cost prohibitive and
may be restrictive to long wheel-base bicycles such as hand cycles, tandems, or bicycle pulling

trailers. Studies have shown that pedestrians and bicyclists will cross streets at-grade if the
grade-separated crossing is perceived as being non-direct or requiring additional effort. ln the
right location, a bridge crossing could provide a high level of service tor trail users. However, in

this location this atternative does not appear to be the best solution.
The planning-level cost estimate for a 60-foot long bridge to cross only Hanley Ave is
approximately $740,000. This assumes that crossing Carrington Lane would be accomplished at
the street grade. Additional cost would be associated with an additional bridge crossing. The
planning-level cost estimate for a l Bojoot long bridge to cross the intersection diagonally is

approximately $1,420,000. These costs could be reduced by approximately $200,000 if all
earthwork is performed by the developer, as has been discussed. However, not all earthwork
can be completed prior to construction of the retaining walls, due to right-of-way constraints.

Tunnel Alternatives

Tunnel alternatives were analfzed for several alignments that cross beneath only Hanley Avenue
or both Carrington Lane and Hanley Avenue (see Figure 1). The planning-level cost estimate for
a 6o-foot long tunnel to cross only Hanley Ave is approximately $585,000. This assumes that
crossing Carrington Lane would be accomplished at the street grade. Additional cost would be
associated with an additional tunnel crossing. The planning-level cost estimate for a 18o-foot
long bridge to cross the intersection diagonally is approximalely $1 ,035,000. This cost could be
reduced by approximately $130,000 iJ all earthwork is performed by the developer, as has been
discussed. However, not all earthwork can be completed prior to construction of the retaining
walls, due to right-of-way constraints.

Raising the grade ol Hanley Ave could help reduce the costs associated with the tunnel option,
but would be offset by the need for water and pressure sewer main relocations and the
increased cost to construct Hanley Ave and the intersecting Carrington Lane, which are much
wider than the trail. Additionally, elevating Hanley Ave and Carrington Lane may also be subject
to neighborhood push-back with the increased visibility and traffic noise.

Tunnels can be used effectively to safely cross roadways, providing a high level of service for
trail users. However, the tunnel alternaiive is not recommended for this location for the following
reasons:

The relatively flat terrain has a similar impact on the tunnel options as in the bridge
options, necessitating long ramps to maintain conformance to ADA standards.
The curvature in the alignments needed to Jollow righl-of-way constraints would not
provide direct line-of-sight for users and may be a perceived security issue, Iikely
intimidating many trail users and causing them to avoid it.

A long, diagonal tunnel that passes beneath Carrington Lane and Hanley Ave does not
provide direct access to the either street, forcing pedestrians to "back track" to access
pedestrian and/or bicycle facilities on either street.
The depressed approaches to the tunnel would require additional maintenance to
remove drifting snow and other debris that would blow into the depressions.

X:\K41\41197 CDA Prairie Trail Ped Bike Crossing\Bev. Memorandum 031215.docx

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



Prairie Trail Crossing Analysis
Page 3

At- Grade Crossin g Altem at ives

Signalized, at-grade crossings of Hanley Ave and Carrington Lane were analyzed for crossing
the interseciion in one stage and in two stages.

A two-stage crossing would cross Hanley Ave and Carrington Lane as conventional signalized
pedestrian crossings. lf programmed to permit it, crossing both streets could be accomplished
in one full signal phase (crossing Hanley Ave on the Caninqton Lane green time and crossing
Carington Ave on the Hanley Ave green time). Wilh a crossing distance from the push button to
the opposite curb of approximately 66 feet (scaled from drawings provided by Tri-Stale
Consultants), the required crossing time would be approximately 22 seconds, using the required
3 lys walking speed from the current Manual on Uniform Traflic Control Devices (MUTCD). The
entire crossing time would be a minimum of 40 seconds, depending on signal timing and lhe
presence of motor vehicle traffic.

A one-stage crossing would cross diagonally through the intersection on an exclusive crossing
phase of the traffic signal. Two variations of accommodating the one-stage crossing movement
were discussed with City staff, including allowing all trail users to cross diagonally and allowing
only bicyclists to cross diagonally while pedestrians (which require a longer crossing time) cross
in two stages. ln the second scenario, the bicycle signal would be triggered by a sensor capable
of detecting bicycle traffic. Pedestrians would use the pedestrian signal buttons, crossing two
streets in two signal phases. Pavement markings should be used that illustrate the desired
crossing direction for bicyclists. The use of a bicycle signal head requires FHWA approval for
experimentation, but is a relatively simple process.

With a crossing distance of approximately 102 feet (scaled lrom drawings provided by Tri-State
Consultants), the required diagonal crossing time for pedestrians would be approximately 34
seconds, using the required 3 fvs walking speed from the current Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices (MUTCD). The required diagonal crossing time for a bicycle would be
approximately 13 seconds, per the 2012 AASHTO Bike Guide.

The existing signalized crossings of the Prairie Trail and Kathleen Ave and Atlas Road were
compared to the proposed crossing. The Kathleen Ave crossing (-40 feet in width) provides
approximately 10 seconds ot "WALK" and countdown time combined, plus 3 seconds ol all red.
The Atlas Road crossing (-36' in width) provides approximately 14 seconds of "WALK" and
countdown time combined, plus 3 seconds ol all red.

Potential motor vehicle traffic delay on Hanley Ave is likely of more importance than thal on
Ca.rington Lane. This delay will only be realized periodically when trail users cross the
intersection and traffic on Hanley Ave is present near the crossing. Tralfic counts for the Prairie
Trail were not available to quantify the frequency of this event. However, peak traffic hours for
Hanley Ave and the Prairie Trall are not liksly concurrent. Peak traffic volumes on Hanley Ave are
anticipated to be during weekday morning and evening commute hours, while Prairie Trail peak
hours are anticipated to be after conventional work hours and on weekends.

An exclusive signal phase at Hanley Ave and Canington Lane to accommodate a diagonal
crossing of the Prairie Trail is the recommended alternative. This altemative provides the best
balance ol trail user convenience, motor vehicle delay, and capital investment. Because bicycle
signals are a relatively new traffic control device, it is recommended that an engineer familiar
with their installation and timing be involved in the project to ensure a successful
implementation.

q3'tz-tr.o
\{r -\,St or roj

X:\K41\41197 CDA Prairie Trail Ped_Bike Crossing\Rov. Memorandum 0312'15.docx

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



€
mr

in;I
Iil
iE
i0

K

gf,n':-{-

\
l

II
m

1'f,

I
m

Hi e
<qi om{ 'Tt

1Hil8
itrfiHiiD-o
EH H

fi8 #
f,
o
u
z
o

o)
o-

ezz
m

bv
6
6,m

9r3i9l'l

,r'

.t
*'t/_

sisiEiEiHiE
iitri-iEi5

I

i*',"l
i**+i,

J'ld'"
tm{,,

ru
ffi
ffi[tt ltlh--

N:\Cly$O P(rsdstat lgnProduc{on Drsr*r0su1 197Ds02.du,g. l,tz20l5 l:23j0i PM, coostoy, l:1

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



TEM UNIT OIjANITY UNITFRCE TOTAL

MOBUZAION (8olo) LS 1.00 $ 38,000.00 $ 38,000.00

SDM ENT AI".ID EFMON @NIFOL LS 1.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

EVIOVAL OFAS]T{ALT s/ 1,500.00 $ 4.00 $ 6,000.00

DCAVATIOI\ CY 1 1,090.00 $ 12.00 $ 133,080.00

ASFIqLIPATH $ 12,4ffi.OO $ 4.50 $ 56,160.00

FETAININGWAII $ 3,500.00 $ 40.00 $ 140,000.00

E}.,.ICBRAUNG tF 1,000.00 $ 10.00 $ 10,000.00

G.lAFmAL(CN I-{ANTEYA\e tF 240.00 $ 40.00 $ 9,600.00

60''IUNNE- SIFI.JCIUE, EIVEFED tF 60.00 $ 554.00 $ 33,240.00

INSIALLruNNf, LS 1.00 $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00

FE NrcFCED @NICFEIE rcON NGS CY 70.00 $ 250.00 $ 17,500.00

SIOFMWATERSISIEM LS 1.00 $ 15,000.@ $ 15,000.00

UGFmf\lc LS 1.00 $ 9,500.00 $ 9,5oo.oo

TRAffiCONTROL LS r.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

UTIUTYFEOCATION ts 1.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00

@Nn NGI{CY AtVt OUNr ( 1 5olo) CA 1.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 7,000.00

TOTAI. 585,080.00

FRAIRETRAILGO' ruNNE-@T.ICPruAL@ST ESNMATE

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



ITEM UNIT QIJANTry UNITFf{CE TOTAL

MOBUZAION (8olo) LS 1.00 $ 48,000.00 $ ,18,000.00

SDM ENTAAID EFMON @NTFN LS 1.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 5,000.00

FEMC}/ALOFA,$TIALT ST 1,500.00 $ 4.00 $ 6,000.00

HLL CY 11,090.00 $ 20.00 $ 221,800.00

ASi.IALTPATH s 9,600.00 $ 4.50 $ 43,200.00

FEI-AININGWALL s 3,500.00 $ 40.00 $ 140,000.00

FEI{CE RAIUI\lG tF 1,000.00 $ 10.00 $ 10,000.00

60' BRDGE SIRJCIUE EIVtFED rs 1.00 $ 69,300.00 $ 69,300.00

INSIALLBRDGE ts '1.00 $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00

@T{CFEIEBRDGEDEO( CY 21.O0 $ 150.00 $ 3,150.00

BRDGEAEIJTM ENTS EA 2,N $ 35,000.00 $ 70,000.00

TRAFHC@NTFO- LS 1.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

@i{T|NTGEI{CYA/l OUNI ( I sold CA 1.00 $ 97,000.00 $ 97,000.00

TOTA 738,.t50.00

PRAIRETRAILGO' BRDGE@NCEPruAL@ST ESNMATE

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



QUAI\Mry UNITPRCE

MOBUZATION(87o) ls 1.00 $ 67,000.00 $ 67,000.00

SD M ENT AT{D ErcgON @NIFOL ts 1.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

FEMOVALOFASHqLT SY 1,500.00 $ 4.00 $ 6,000.00

ECAVATICN CY 11,090.00 $ 12.00 $ 133,080.00

A$ftALTPA]H $ 12,480.00 $ 4.50 $ s6,160.00

FETANNGWAI.I- s 9,800.00 $ 40.00 $ 392,000.00

FEI\,rcERAIUI{G t_F 1,000.00 $ 10.00 $ 10,000.00

G.IAFDRATL(CN l+NtEYA\ts tF 240.00 $ 40.00 $ 9,600.00

180', ruNNE_SIR.JCTUFE DE JVEFED I.F 180.00 $ 554.00 $ 99,720.00

INSTA-LruNNE- ls 1.00 $ 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00

FE NrcFCED @i{CFEIE rcOI NGS l.F 190.00 $ 250.00 $ 47,500.00

STOFMWATERS\SIEM ts 1.0c $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00

UGFINNG ls 1.0c $ 12,500.00 $ 12,500.00

TRAHC@NITFOL ts 1.0c $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

UTIUTYFf,@ANCN rs 1.00 $ 10,0@.00 $ 10,000.00

@Nn NIGB{CYAIU OUNI ( 1 5olo) OA 1.00 $ 135,000.00 $ 135,000.00

TOTAI. 1,033,560.00

PRAI FUE TRAI L { 80' ruNNE.@NCFruALGT ESNMATE
IlEM UNIT TOTAL

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



UNIT OIIANIry UNITFRCE TOTA

MOBUZAnON (87o) LS '1.00 $ 92,000.00 $ 92,m0.00

$DMENTANIDEFGCN@NIFO LS 1.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 5,000.00

EVOVALOFAS+{ALT ST 1,500.00 $ 4.00 $ 6,000.00

HLL CY 10,200.m a 20.00 $ 204,000.00

ASI-ALTPAIH s 9,600.00 $ 4.50 $ 4:1,200.00

FETANITIGWAI s 9,800.00 a zlo.00 $ 392,000.00

ENCSRAIUNC tf 1,0m.00 $ 10.m $ 10,000.00

180' BRDGESTRJCIUE MI/BED LS 1.00 $ 362,800.00 $ 362,800.m

INSIAT.L BRDCE ts 1.00 $ 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00

CO}.ICFEIEBRrcEMO( CY 21.N $ 150.00 $ 3,150.00

ERDGEABJTMBITS EA 2.00 $ zlo,ooo.oo $ 80,000.00

IRAFHCOVTFo. LS 1.00 $ 5,000.00 $ s,000.00

@NTl NGE\CYAI\I OUNr ( 1 5olo) CA 1.00 $ 185,000.00 $ 185,000.00

TOTA 1,418,150.00

FRAIRETRAILISO' BRDGE@hICEPTALGT ESNMAIE
IIEM

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "B"



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT  

DATE:  May 11, 2015 

FROM: Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Property Swap with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
DECISION POINT: 
Declare the City’s intent to exchange property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owners Association and 
set a public hearing for a proposed swap of real property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s 
Association.   

HISTORY: 
The City owns the small triangle of real estate (Lot 1, Block 2 Isles of Troy Subdivision) that serves as 
the entrance into the Coeur d’Alene North parking garage.  The property is heavily encumbered with 
an access easement for the Coeur d’Alene North building, a 20’ no-build easement along the eastern 
property line in favor of the abutting property to the east as well as a remnant of the flood protection 
wall.  The City has leased this property to the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association for a term of 
25 years.  The lease includes a provision that the parties would pursue a trade of this real estate if 
another parcel of land of equivalent value could be located.  The City recently determined that portions 
of Northwest Boulevard along the Coeur d’Alene North frontage is not wholly within City owned right 
of way.  As such, staff has worked with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association to prepare the 
proposed property swap.  Under the terms of the proposed exchange, the City would obtain a sliver of 
property along Northwest Boulevard to place all of Northwest Boulevard in City owned right of way 
and a 9 foot wide easement to allow for the placement of traffic control devices and signage, utilities 
and sidewalks.  Additionally, the City would retain an easement to maintain the flood protection wall 
for as long as is necessary.  The Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association would receive Lot 1, Block 
2, Isles of Troy Subdivision and $250, which represents the lease payments on the property.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The value of the currently owned lot is negligible to the City because it is relatively small and heavily 
encumbered, which renders it largely useless to others.  Likewise, the value of the sliver of land that 
the City is seeking to acquire is relatively small in monetary terms.  However, obtaining legal 
ownership of the Northwest Boulevard right of way is significant.  The proposal from the Coeur 
d’Alene North includes the City repaying the $250 lease payment.     

PERFORMANCE / QUALITY OF LIFE ANALYSIS: 
As noted above, the City has been looking for a property to trade with the Coeur d’Alene North for 
some time.  The proposed trade is significant for the City because it gives the City complete ownership 
of Northwest Boulevard in this area.  The City will retain the right to maintain the seawall for as long 
as it remains necessary.  The proposed land exchange requires a public hearing. 

DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Declare the City’s intent to exchange real property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association 
as outlined in the attached agreement and setting a public hearing for the proposed property exchange 
on June 16, 2015. 

Page 1 of 1 



City of Coeur d'Alene  / Coeur d'Alene North HOA Easement Agreement - Page 1 of 3 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Easement Agreement is entered into this_ day of ______, 2015, between 
Coeur d'Alene North Homeowners Association, Inc., an Idaho corporation, 301 1st Street, 
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814, acting on behalf of the condominium owners pursuant to the 
authority granted to the board of directors through the Restated Declaration of Covenants, 
Conditions and Restriction recorded as instrument #1820890 August 12, 2003, (hereinafter 
Grantor) and the city of Coeur d'Alene, a municipal corporation, 710 E. Mullan St., Coeur 
d'Alene, ID 83814 (hereinafter Grantee). 

WHEREAS, a public sidewalk, public utilities, traffic control signage and traffic 
light controls are currently located within the Coeur d'Alene North Condominium's 
common space; and 

WHEREAS, Grantee desires to obtain a perpetual, non-exclusive easement for the 
installation, maintenance and replacement of those existing facilities. NOW THEREFORE, 
Grantors do hereby grant to Grantee a permanent and perpetual non-exclusive easement for 
the installation, replacement, improvement, operation and maintenance of a public 
sidewalk, underground public utilities, traffic control signage and traffic control light 
controls and apparatus public, over, upon and across a portion of the common spaces of the 
following described real property, limited to the location shown with crosss-hatches on 
Exhibit "A", which extents nine feet from the curb line towards the building, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

Lot 1, Block 1 Park View Tower Condominium Plat located in Township 
50 N, Range 4 W, Boise Meridian, and recorded in Book Fat Page 143. 

As full and complete consideration for the easement Grantee agrees to indemnify, 
to the extent allowed by law, and hold the Grantor and its members harmless for damages 
to the sidewalk, and/or injuries to persons and property, caused by the Grantee's use of the 
easement and installation, operation, maintenance or replacement of the facilities 
authorized by this Easement Agreement. 

Grantee shall have and hold said easement for the limited purposes set above. The 
Grantor herein expressly limits the grant of this easement to its respective interest and 
authority, and that of its successors, in that parcel of land over, under, upon and across 
which said easement lies. 

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



 

City of Coeur d'Alene  / Coeur d'Alene North HOA Easement Agreement - Page 2 of 3 

 This Easement Agreement shall run with the land and shall be binding on the heirs 
and assigns of the parties. 
 
GRANTOR  
Coeur d'Alene North Homeowners 
Association, Inc. 
 
By       
Its President 

GRANTEE  
City of Coeur d'Alene 
 
 
      
Steven Widmyer, Mayor 

 ATTEST: 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 

:ss 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this _ day of ______, 2015, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, personally 
appeared Archie McGregor known, or identified to me to be the president, of the corporation 
that executed this instrument or the person who executed the instrument on behalf of said 
corporation, and acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
             

Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
Residing at:      
Commission Expires:     

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 

:ss 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this _ day of ___________, 2015, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared Steven Widmyer and Renata McLeod, or identified to me to be the Mayor 
and City Clerk, of the city of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, executing the herein 
instrument, and acknowledged to me that such city of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
             

Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
Residing at:      
Commission Expires:     

  

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



 

City of Coeur d'Alene  / Coeur d'Alene North HOA Easement Agreement - Page 3 of 3 

 

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



   
 

Coeur d’Alene North Land Exchange Agreement - 1 

 COEUR D’ALENE NORTH LAND EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of  ________, 20__, by and 
the city of Coeur d’Alene,, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation duly organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the state of Idaho, whose address is 710 E. Mullan St., 
Coeur d’Alene, Idaho  83814 hereinafter “City," and Coeur d’Alene North Homeowners 
Association Inc., a Idaho non-profit corporation, 301 N. 1ST Street,  Coeur d’Alene, ID  83814,  
“Coeur d’Alene North.”     
 
         WHEREAS, Coeur d’Alene North is the owner of real property, hereinafter referred to as 
Parcel A, more particularly described as: 
 

That portion of Lot 1, Block 1 of Park View Tower recorded in Book F of Plats, 
Pages 143 through 143H, located in Section 14, Township 50 North, Range 4 
West, Boise Meridian, Kootenai County, Idaho, described as follows; 
 
COMMENCING at the northernmost corner of said Lot 1, marked by a bare 5/8 
inch rebar, said point also being on the southerly right of way of Government 
Way;  Thence South 63° 47’ 59” West a distance of 39.19 feet to a point on said 
southerly right of way, said point being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Thence South 74° 24' 29" West a distance of 66.03 feet to the beginning of a 
curve to the left, having a radius of 30.00 feet;  
 
Thence southwesterly along said curve, an arc length 51.03 feet, through a 
central angle of 97° 28' 10", a chord bearing of South 25° 40' 24" West and a 
chord distance of 45.10 feet;  
 
Thence South 23° 03' 41" East a distance of 416.08 feet to the beginning of a 
curve to the left, having a radius of 100.00 feet;  
 
Thence southeasterly along said curve, an arc length 41.49 feet, through a 
central angle of 23° 46' 27", a chord bearing of South 34° 56' 55" East and a 
chord distance of 41.20 feet to a point on the southeasterly line of said Lot 1;  
 
Thence along said southeasterly line, South 37° 23' 37" West a distance of 21.25 
feet to a point on the easterly right of way of Northwest Blvd, said point being 
the southernmost corner of said Lot 1;  
 
Thence along the westerly and northwesterly lines of said Lot 1 the following 4 
courses: 

1)    along said easterly right of way of Northwest Blvd, North 23° 03' 41" West a 
distance of 455.48 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having a 
radius of 48.41 feet;  

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



   
 

Coeur d’Alene North Land Exchange Agreement - 2 

2)    northeasterly along said curve, an arc length 91.92 feet, through a central 
angle of 108° 47' 18", a chord bearing of North 31° 19' 58" East and a chord 
distance of 78.72 feet to the southerly right of way of said Government Way;  

3)   a long said southerly right of way, North 85° 43' 37" East a distance of 26.64 
feet to the beginning of a curve to the left, having a radius of 104.89 feet;  

4)    along southerly right of way, northeasterly along said curve, an arc length 
20.72 feet, through a central angle of 11° 19' 08", a chord bearing of North 
80° 04' 03" East and a chord distance of 20.69 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

 
CONTAINING 5,363 square feet or 0.123 acres more or less. 
 
Parcel A is shown as  the Land Exchange property on the attached  
Exhibit prepared by Welch-Comer Engineers. 

 
 WHEREAS, a portion of the paved Northwest Boulevard traffic lanes was constructed on 
Parcel A during the Northwest Boulevard and Lakeside Avenue reconstruction project in the 
1980’s; and 
 

WHEREAS,  this Agreement is being entered into in lieu of the City pursuing eminent 
domain to obtain the ownership of  Parcel A; and 

 WHEREAS, the City is the owner of real property, hereinafter referred to as Parcel B, more 
particularly described as: 

 Lot 1 Block 2, Isles of Troy Subdivision, in the City of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai 
County, Idaho, recorded at Book J Page 183 in the records of the Kootenai County 
Recorder. 

 WHEREAS, Parcel B is adjacent to property owned by the Coeur d’Alene North and is 
encumbered by a non-exclusive easement granted to the Coeur d’Alene North for driveway 
access to the Coeur d’Alene North first floor parking garage, by a  pre-paid twenty-five year lease 
granted to the Coeur d’Alene North, and a 20ft “no-build” easement granted to the adjacent 
property; and 
 

WHEREAS, Parcel B is underutilized by the City for public purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the values of Parcel A and Parcel B are roughly equivalent; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City deems it to be in the public interest and desires to exchange with 
the Coeur d’Alene North Parcel B for Parcel A in order for the entire paved portion of Northwest 
Boulevard traffic lanes be under the ownership and control of the City; and 
 

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



   
 

Coeur d’Alene North Land Exchange Agreement - 3 

 WHEREAS, title 50, chapter 14 of the Idaho Code authorize the City to enter into an 
agreement to exchange real property.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE,  
 
   Section 1:  Declaration of Intent.  The City hereby declares its intent to exchange the real 
property described as Parcel B, subject to all easements of record and the City retaining an 
easement for the continued use, maintenance and operation of the flood protection wall on the 
property for as long as it remains necessary, for the real property described as Parcel A, without 
any money consideration, except the refund of the lease payment, finding that the properties to be 
exchanged are of comparable value to the parties and that the exchange of said property is for the 
benefit of the City and will allow the City to own the land over which the Northwest Boulevard 
pavement improvements were constructed. 
 
 Section 2:  Binding Covenants    
 
      The foregoing and following are binding covenants of the Exchange Agreement 
("Agreement"), not merely recitals, and  represent considerations, promises, conditions and 
warranties  binding upon the parties hereto.  
 
      Section 3:  Real Property  
 
      The real properties subject to this exchange are in Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, 
Idaho, and consist of Parcels A and B, and are more particularly described above. 
 
      Section 4:  Consideration  
 
      The City agrees to convey fee simple title in the real property described above as Parcel B 
to Coeur d’Alene North and Coeur d’Alene North agrees to convey to the City fee simple title in 
the real property described above as Parcel A and that such mutual conveyances and the refund of 
the Lease payment from the Coeur d’Alene North to the City in the amount of $250.00, shall be 
the sole considerations for this Agreement.   
 
     Section 5:  Signage 
 
 The current City sign regulations require on-premises signs to be set back at least six feet 
from the property line.  The parties acknowledge and agree that after the completion of this land 
exchange  the new properly line for the Coeur d’Alene North fronting Northwest Boulevard will 
be measured from the curb line, which is in excess of six feet from the existing sign on the Coeur 
d’Alene North property.  
 
 
 

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



   
 

Coeur d’Alene North Land Exchange Agreement - 4 

Section 6:  Transaction Costs  
 
     The parties shall each pay their own costs of this transaction including but not limited to 
each party's attorney costs. 
          
 Section 7:  Contingency 
 

This Agreement is entered into contingent upon the approval of the Coeur d’Alene City 
Council after complying with the public hearing process set out in Idaho Code 50-1403 and the 
Coeur d’Alene North complying with the legal requirements of its Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions.   

 
Section 8:  Conveyance 
 
Each party agrees to deliver to the other party a quitclaim deed conveying fee simple title 

to the parcel of property being exchanged within fifteen (15) calendar days of completion of all 
of the requirements of the provisions of Idaho Code Sections 50-1403 and the requirements of 
the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions.    

   
      Section 9:  Entire Agreement   
 
      This agreement shall be by this reference incorporated herein, all of which constitute the 
entire agreement between the parties thereto, and may not be modified except by an instrument in 
writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
      Section 10:  Law Applicable  
 
      This agreement is being executed in the state of Idaho and shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho. 
 

Section 11:  Costs and Fees 
 

Should it become reasonably necessary for either party to commence any civil action to 
enforce or interpret any provision of this agreement or any right or obligation in connection 
therewith, then the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief 
thereunder, to its costs of such proceeding, including a reasonable attorney fee.  Should either 
party be reasonably required to send notice of default to the other as provided herein, the 
defaulting party shall pay the non-defaulting party its reasonable costs and fees incurred in the 
preparation of such notice; and such fees and costs shall be paid before such default is considered 
cured. 
 
      

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



   
 

Coeur d’Alene North Land Exchange Agreement - 5 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto subscribed their hands 
effective the day and year first above written. 
 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE  COEUR D’ALENE NORTH     

  HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC. 
 
 
________________________  By__________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor    Isa President 
 
ATTEST:       
     
________________________ 
Renata, McLeod, City Clerk     

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



   
 

Coeur d’Alene North Land Exchange Agreement - 6 

STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    :ss 
County of Kootenai  ) 
 
 On this ___ day of ________, 20__, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, personally 
appeared Steve Widmyer and Renata McLeod known, or identified to me to be the Mayor and 
City Clerk, of the city of Coeur d’Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, executing the herein 
instrument, and acknowledged to me that such city of Coeur d’Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the date 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    :ss 
County of Kootenai  ) 
 
 On this ___ day of _________, 20__, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared ________________________ known , or identified to me to be the 
___________________, of the corporation that executed this instrument or the person who 
executed the instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such 
corporation executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the date 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 
 
 

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"



ES 

L=20.72 R=104.89 
6.=11"19'08" 

CB=N80"04'03"E 
CD=20.69  BARE 5/8" REBAR 

 
 
 

L=91.92 R=48.41 
108"47'18" 

CB=N31"19'58"E 
CD=78.72 

 
 
L=51.03 R=30.00 
97'28'10" 

CB=S25"40'24"W 
CD=45.10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

----LAND EXCHANGE 
5363   SQ FT 
0.123   ACRES 

PARK VIEW  TOWER 
LOT 1,  BLOCK  1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N 
z 

 
 
 
 
 

SCALE:  1 "=60'  L=41.49 R=100.00 
6.=23"46'27" 
CB=S34"56'55"E 
CD=41.20 

 
ISLES OF TROY 

LOT 1,  BLOCK   2 

ou 
 
OlD 

<0..: 
LLII- 
C!>O 
O....J 
::::::> 
::::tE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.welchcomer.com 
350 E. Kathleen Ave. 
Coeur d'Alene, 10 83815 

 
 
 

208-664-9382 
(toll free) 877-815-5672 

(fax) 208-664-5946 

 
CITY OF COEUR  D'ALENE 

LAND EXCHANGE 
ALONG NORTHWEST BLVD. 

SEC. 14, T. 50 N., R. 4 W. 

!:'.9. .  - 9.::.................-- ?<?.1 
i .1?. ! !':1.  -!?.Y.:........................... 
::.D..R...A...W...N....B..Y...:............................T..J.F 
:·oDATW·EG·:..N...A..M...E...:......4..1.2..0..1..E...X.30:1.:9.D:.:W15G 

sHE·Ei-N.c..i...........  1...0F..1 

Resolution No. 15-024 Exhibit "C"

http://www.welchcomer.com/


ES 

L=20.72 R=104.89 
6.=11"19'08" 

CB=N80"04'03"E 
CD=20.69  BARE 5/8" REBAR 

 
 
 

L=91.92 R=48.41 
108"47'18" 

CB=N31"19'58"E 
CD=78.72 

 
 
L=51.03 R=30.00 
97'28'10" 

CB=S25"40'24"W 
CD=45.10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

----LAND EXCHANGE 
5363   SQ FT 
0.123   ACRES 

PARK VIEW  TOWER 
LOT 1,  BLOCK  1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N 
z 

 
 
 
 
 

SCALE:  1 "=60'  L=41.49 R=100.00 
6.=23"46'27" 
CB=S34"56'55"E 
CD=41.20 

 
ISLES OF TROY 

LOT 1,  BLOCK   2 

ou 
 
OlD 

<0..: 
LLII- 
C!>O 
O....J 
::::::> 
::::tE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.welchcomer.com 
350 E. Kathleen Ave. 
Coeur d'Alene, 10 83815 

 
 
 

208-664-9382 
(toll free) 877-815-5672 

(fax) 208-664-5946 

 
CITY OF COEUR  D'ALENE 

LAND EXCHANGE 
ALONG NORTHWEST BLVD. 

SEC. 14, T. 50 N., R. 4 W. 

!:'.9. .  - 9.::.................-- ?<?.1 
i .1?. ! !':1.  -!?.Y.:........................... 
::.D..R...A...W...N....B..Y...:............................T..J.F 
:·oDATW·EG·:..N...A..M...E...:......4..1.2..0..1..E...X.30:1.:9.D:.:W15G 

sHE·Ei-N.c..i...........  1...0F..1 

http://www.welchcomer.com/


ANNOUNCEMENTS 



OTHER COMMITTEE MINUTES 
(Requiring Council Action) 



April 27, 2015 
GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
12:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS  STAFF  
Council Member Ron Edinger, Chairperson Juanita Knight, Senior Legal Assistant 
Council Member Steve Adams  Wes Somerton, Chief Criminal Deputy City Attorney 
Council Member Amy Evans  Warren Wilson, Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney 
 Chief Lee White, Police  
  Sgt. Christie Wood, Police Community Relations  
 Keith Erickson, Communications Coordinator  
 Jim Hammond, City Administrator 
 Troy Tymesen, Finance Director  
 
Item 1.  Approving Council Bill No. 15-1009 – Off Street Parking Amendments.  
(CB 15-1009) 
 
Wes Somerton explained that the proposed amendments provide new definition, new rules for conduct within 
parking facilities and specific prohibited activities within parking facilities, and makes these changes consistent 
throughout the city code as applied to parking facilities and the definitions of public property. Mr. Somerton 
noted in his staff report that the structure of McEuen Park allowed the consolidation of numerous off-street 
parking facilities and created a parking garage.  The parking garage has seen an increase of police calls for 
service at the facility, many for disruptive behavior and actions that create public safety concern and conflict 
with the intended uses of the parking facilities. Complains from conflicting uses, including property damage, 
illegal drug usage and illegal speed contest have increased since the parking garage opened in March 2014.   
 
Councilmember Evans said she is the committee liaison for the Parking Commission and knows they have put a 
great deal of time and effort into this amendment to make sure everything has been addressed.  
 
Councilmember Adams asked about the no smoking regulations for any enclosed areas. Mr. Somerton said 
that is for the stairwells, elevators, and bathrooms.    
 
Councilmember Edinger asked if there have been a lot of problems at the parking facility. Chief White said the 
majority of complaints are criminal in nature and more nuisance/quality of life type things.  They do get 
frequent complaints about regarding loitering and speeding.  Chief White said they are confident this 
ordinance addresses all the concerns and give them the ability to take action, if necessary.    
 
MOTION: by Adams seconded by Evans to recommend that Council adopt Council Bill No. 15-1009 
approving amendments to the Off Street Parking Regulations. Motion Carried. 
 
Item 2.  Repeal Municipal Code Chapter 1.1- entitled Legislative Process.  
(CB 15-1007) 
 
Warren Wilson said he is recommending the repeal of Municipal Code Chapter 1.10.  He explained that 
Chapter 1.10 contains the City’s regulations governing initiative and referendums.  These regulations are 
largely superseded by the Idaho Code provisions for initiatives and referendums contain in I.C. Title 34 Chapter 
18. On April 6, 2015, Governor Otter signed HB 216aa into law. HB216aa, when it takes effect on July 1, 2015, 
will void all city rules regarding initiatives and referendums. Because of the lead time required necessary to 

General Services Committee Meeting 04/27/15  Page 1 of 2 



qualify an initiative /referendum for the ballot, it is too late for anyone seeking an initiative this year to do so 
prior to July 2, 0215. As such, M.C. Chapter 1.1- can be repealed now with no impact.   
 
MOTION: by Evans seconded by Adams to recommend that Council adopt Council Bill No. 15-1007 
repealing Chapter 1.10 entitled Legislative Process. Motion Carried.  
 
Item 3.   Approval of School Resource Officer Agreement with the Coeur d'Alene School District #271. 
(Resolution No. 15-018) 
 
Chief White is requesting Council approve an agreement to continue the SRO program with SD #271 for fiscal 
year 2015-2016.  Chief White said we have maintained the SRO partnership since 1999.  Both entities have 
deemed the SRO program not only successful but vital to providing campus safety. The partnership’s success 
can be tangibly measure in the reduction of campus related crimes and case clearance rates. The District has 
agreed to pay $359,660 of the personnel costs associated with this program as well as all the overtime costs 
incurred by the SRO for school events.   
 
Councilmember Evans asked how the 7 schools were identified.  Sgt. Wood said those are schools that are 
within the city limits.    
 
MOTION: by Adams seconded by Evans to recommend that Council adopt Resolution No. 15-018 
approving a School Resource Officer agreement with SD #271 for fiscal year 2015-2016. Motion 
Carried. 
 
Item 4.   Approval of School Resource Officer Agreement with North Idaho College.  
(Resolution No. 15-018) 
 
Chief White is requesting Council approve an agreement with North Idaho College to provide one police officer 
on campus for the 2015-2016 school year.  Chief White said the Police Department has responded to calls for 
service on the campus with appreciation form the NIC administration.  In response to national and local trends, 
with regard to providing campus safety, NIC has deemed a police presence as a positive enhancement to their 
campus.  NIC has agreed to pay $51,500 of the personnel costs associated with this program as well as all the 
overtime costs incurred by the SRO for school events. The SRO is responsible specifically monitoring and 
patrolling the college campus.   
 
Councilmember Edinger asked if there have been any issues since the legislature passed weapons on campus.  
Chief White said he doesn’t believe it has affected them too much this school year.  Sgt. Wood said there have 
been just a handful of incident, usually just a misunderstanding where a person on campus will see another 
person with a concealed weapon. She said they don’t spend a lot of time on verifying the enhanced weapons 
permit, they only really deal with it if there is a behavior associated with the incident.  There are a lot more 
issues having to do with drugs, mental health issues, etc.     
 
MOTION: by Adams seconded by Evans to recommend that Council adopt Resolution No. 15-018 
approving an agreement to provide one police officer to be assigned to the North Idaho College 
campus for fiscal school year 2015-2016. Motion Carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:16 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Juanita Knight  
Recording Secretary 

General Services Committee Meeting 04/27/15  Page 2 of 2 



GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE  
STAFF REPORT 

 
FROM: Parking Commission 
  Wes Somerton – Chief Criminal Deputy City Attorney 
 
DATE:  April 23, 2015 
 
RE:  AMENDED CITY CODE REGARDING PARKING FACILITIES 
 
DECISION POINT: 

Adopt the proposed ordinance amendments regarding city off-street parking facilities.   
 
HISTORY: 

The restructure of McEuen Park allowed the consolidation of numerous off-street parking 
facilities and created a parking garage. The parking garage has seen an increase of police calls 
for service at the facility, many for disruptive behavior and actions that create public safety 
concerns and conflict with the intended uses of the parking facilities. Complaints from 
conflicting uses, including property damage, illegal drug usage and illegal speed contest have 
increased since the parking garage opened in March 2014.            
 The proposed ordinance amendments provide new definitions, new rules for conduct 
within parking facilities and specific prohibited activities within parking facilities, and makes 
these changes consistent throughout the city code as applied to parking facilities and the 
definitions of public property.  
  
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 

Direct costs included are staff time to prepare, Parking Commission review and 
publication costs of the proposed ordinance changes.  Without tools to control and curb 
behaviors within the parking facilities repair costs will increase. 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
 The Parking Commission reviewed and provided comments, edits and valuable insight on 
how to reasonably address the unique problems and opportunities all the city parking facilities 
present. Currently law enforcement and parking enforcement can only encourage persons who 
gather for purposes other than the intended use of the parking facility to move on; however the 
enforcement personnel have very limited means to require compliance.  

The proposed amendments establish rules of conduct for parking facilities and prohibit 
uses that conflict with the intended uses. Some parking facilities see conflicts between busy 
vehicle parking and associated pedestrian use and uses by persons that have no connection to 
vehicle use of the facility.   These changes will allow the city enforcement personnel to ensure 
the parking structure is used as intended as a safe and clean parking facility.    
 
DECISION POINT:  

Adopt the ordinance amendments which include consolidating facilities, renaming and 
redefining public property, establishing rules of conduct, prohibiting activities that conflict with 
the purpose of the off-street parking facilities.   



   
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1009 

 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 
4.05.030, 4.15.010, 4.15.020,  4.15.030, 4.15.040, 4.15.060, 4.15.070, 4.15.080, 4.15.090, 4.15.100, 
4.15.110, 4.15.115, 4.15.120, 4.15.130, 4.25.030, 4.25.070, 4.25.120, 8.36.100, 8.48.030,10.04.010, 
10.22.100, 10.24.020, 10.27.010, 10.27.020, AND REPEALING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 
4.15.050; TO UPDATE DEFINITIONS, REVISE THE ALLOWED USES OF THE CITY 
PARKING LOT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND,  AND UPDATE RULES OF CONDUCT 
FOR CITY PARKING FACILITIES; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS improvements to McEuen Park allowed for the consolidation of public off-
street parking areas adjacent to the McEuen Park;  
 
 WHEREAS the City of Coeur d’Alene constructed a public off-street parking facility 
adjacent to Front Avenue between Third Street and Sixth Street which includes a parking garage; 
 
 WHEREAS the McEuen parking facility provide cover from the elements of weather and 
creates locations where persons may hide or conceal themselves from public view which creates 
a public safety concern; 
 
 WHEREAS since opening in March 2014 unlawful activities conducted in the parking 
garage include underage drinking, theft, property damage, unruly and rowdy crowds and groups 
of people congregating within the city parking garage that disrupts the use and purpose of the 
parking facility; 
 
 WHEREAS based on the parking facilities being adjacent to large public parks the use of 
the parking surface for activities other than vehicle parking creates a public safety concern due to 
congestion of vehicles and people; 
 
 WHEREAS the city takes this opportunity to update public property definitions; 
 
 WHEREAS the city finds it is appropriate to identify activities that are not appropriate for 
public parking facilities; 
  

NOW THEREFORE, after recommendation by the General Services Committee it is deemed 
by the Mayor and City Council to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene that said 
amendments be adopted; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 1 | P a g e  
 



   
 
SECTION 1. That Municipal Code Section 4.05.030 is amended to read as follows:  
 
4.05.030: DEFINITIONS: 
A. Public Property: Whenever in this title, or in this municipal code generally, areas of public 
property are described by the following terms, such terms refer to the areas of property described 
below: 
 
BLUEGRASS PARK: An approximate 11 acre park located in the Coeur d'Alene Place 
subdivision at 5757 Dalton Avenue and generally bounded by Dalton Avenue on the south and 
west sides, private residences on the north side and Lafayette Lane on the east side (Lot 1, Block 
14, Coeur d'Alene Place Subdivision). 
 
BRYAN FIELD: An approximate 1.5 acre park located at 1135 North 10th Street and generally 
bounded by Maple Avenue to the south, private residences to the west, Harrison Avenue to the 
north and 10th Street on the east (Tax # 3962 and 3964). The park is owned by School District 
271 and maintained by the city. 
 
CANFIELD MOUNTAIN TRAIL COMPLEX: An approximate 24 acre, natural open space area 
located at 2305 Mountain Vista Drive in the Copper Ridge subdivision and generally bounded by 
Mountain Vista Drive on the south and west sides (Lot 17, Block 1, Copper Ridge Subdivision). 
 
CANFIELD SPORTS COMPLEX: An approximate 16 acre playfield located at 5525 Mountain 
Vista Drive and generally bounded by Dalton Ave. on the north, Mountain Vista Ave, on the 
east, private residences on the south and Canfield Middle School and private residences on the 
west (Lot 1, Block 17, Canfield Park Subdivision and Tax #15594). 
 
CHERRY HILL PARK: An approximate 30 acre park and natural open space area located at 
1525 Hazel Avenue and generally bounded by Best Hill Road to the east, Hazel Avenue to the 
south, 15th Street and Fire Station #3 to the west, and private property to the north (Tax # 18342 
and a portion of Tax # 18970). 
 
CITY BEACH: A public beach located in City Park and generally bounded on the east by the 
west line of Government Lot 49, on the west by Park Drive, on the north by the south line of the 
concrete seawall abutting the south edge of the city park, and the south by Coeur d'Alene Lake. 
 
CITY HALL PARKING LOT FACITILITY: A parking lot facility adjacent to city hall, paved, 
reserved and designated for the parking of vehicles east of the west line of Seventh Street, which 
is the east line of McEuen Field, south of Mullan Avenue, west of the west line of Eighth Street, 
and north of the north line of Young Avenue.  bounded by Eighth Street on the east, the right-of-
way of Young Avenue on the south, McEuen Park on the west, and City Library on the north.  
This parking facility contains areas reserved for city vehicles and city hall specific business uses 
and overflow boat trailer parking for the Third Street Boat Ramp. 
 
CITY PARK: An approximate 17 acre park located at 415 West Mullan Road and generally 
bounded by Lake Coeur d'Alene to the south, Park Drive to the west, Mullan Road to the north 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 2 | P a g e  
 



   
 
and the Human Rights Institute, the Museum of North Idaho, and Independence Point to the east 
(portions of lots 48 and 49 of the Fort Sherman Abandoned Military Reserve recorded in book 
"B" of Plats at page 153A, Records of Kootenai County, in sections 13 and 14, Township 50 
North, Range 4 West, Boise Meridian). 
 
COEUR D'ALENE SOCCER COMPLEX: An approximate 8.5 acre playfield located at 6701 N. 
Courcelles Parkway in the Coeur d'Alene Place subdivision and generally bounded by Skyway 
Elementary School on the south, Courcelles Parkway on the east, Charlemagne Drive to the north 
and private property to west (Lot 3, Block 1, Coeur d'Alene Place Seventh Addition and Tax 
#18992). 
 
COMMERCIAL DOCK: A floating dock extending from Independence Point into Lake Coeur 
d'Alene but excluding a private sea-plane dock attached to the end of the commercial dock with a 
gangway and gate. 
 
EAST TUBBS HILL PARK: An approximate 2 acre natural open space area and trail head 
located at 982 E. Lakeshore Drive and generally bounded by Lake Coeur d'Alene on the south, 
Tubbs Hill on the north and west and E. Lakeshore Drive on the east (Tax # 882). 
 
FERNAN LAKE NATURAL AREA: An approximate 47.20 acre natural open area located at 
2751 East Potlatch Road on the south shore of Fernan Lake generally bounded by Lake Fernan 
on the north and private property on the south, east and west (Government Lot 1 in Section 20, 
except the south 100 feet thereof, and the east 1050 feet of Government Lot 2 in Section 19, 
Township 50 North, Range 3 West, Boise Meridian). 
 
FIRST STREET DOCK: A floating dock extending into Lake Coeur d'Alene located between the 
Hagadone office building and the Coeur d'Alene Resort inside of the resort's floating dock at the 
extension of First Street south from Sherman Avenue. 
 
FOREST CEMETERY: An approximate 21.20 acres cemetery located at 1001 Government Way 
and generally bounded by Short Avenue to the north, Government Way to the east, Lincoln Way 
to the west and private homes on A, B, C and D streets to the south (Ft. Sherman Aban'd Mil 
Res: Forest Cemetery; Forest Cemetery 1st & 2nd Addn's, Tx #904, All In Lots 9 & 10 Fort 
Sherman Abandoned Military Res). 
 
FORT SHERMAN PLAYGROUND: Fort Sherman Playground is A large mostly wooden 
playground facility encompassed within a wooden picket fence located in City Park between the 
Kiwanis Bandshell and Mullan Park Drive. 
 
FOURTH STREET AND COEUR D'ALENE AVENUE PARKING LOT FACILITY: A parking 
lot abutting the southwest corner of the intersection of 4th Street and Coeur d'Alene Avenue 
(Lots 3 and 4, Block H, The Town of Coeur d'Alene and Kings Addition, and the north 85 feet of 
Lots 5 and 6, Block H, The Town of Coeur d'Alene and King's Addition, Book "C" of Deeds, at 
page 144, records of Kootenai County, Idaho). 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 3 | P a g e  
 



   
 
FOURTH STREET PARKING LOT: An approximate .75 acre parking lot located at the south 
end of 4th Street and generally bounded by Tubbs Hill/McEuen Field on the south and east, the 
Coeur d'Alene Resort on the west and Front Street on the north (Beginning at the SE corner of 
Block Q of Coeur d'Alene and Kings Addition to Sec. 13, Twp. 50 N., R. 4 W.B.M.; thence S. 60 
ft. to the true point of beginning; thence S. 390 ft.; thence W. 600 ft.; thence N. 390 ft.; thence E. 
600 ft. to the true point of beginning). 
 
HUBBARD STREET BEACH: An approximate 0.4 acre park located on the south side of the 
800 block of West Lake Shore Drive across from the end of Hubbard Street and generally 
bounded by Lake Coeur d'Alene to the south, North Idaho College beach front to the west, 
Lakeshore Drive to the south and private beaches to the east (Finch's Sub-Div, Lt 6 EX Tax # Blk 
2). 
 
INDEPENDENCE POINT: An approximate 3.1 acre passive use area within City Park located at 
105 Northwest Boulevard, generally bounded on the north by a line extended from the seawall to 
the southwest line of Northwest Boulevard, on the northeast by the southwest line of Northwest 
Boulevard, on the east by the east line of Lot 49 and the southerly prolongation thereof to Coeur 
d'Alene Lake and on the west and the south by Coeur d'Alene Lake and the west line of Lot 49. 
 
INDEPENDENCE POINT BEACH: A beach within Independence Point generally bounded by 
Lake Coeur d'Alene to the south, the Commercial Dock to the west, the Independence Point 
parking lot to the north and Coeur d'Alene Resort property to the east. 
 
INDEPENDENCE POINT PARKING LOT FACILITY: An 87 space parking lot facility located 
at the intersection of First Street and Northwest Boulevard at Independence Point reserved and 
designated for public parking. 
 
JENNY STOKES FIELD: An approximate 4 acre sports field located at 3880 N. Ramsey Road 
and generally bounded by Fire Station #2 and the Street Department yard to the south, Ramsey 
Road to the west, Kathleen Avenue to the north and private property to the east (Schreiber Addn, 
Tx # 14468 In Lt 2 Ex Pr/W). 
 
JEWETT HOUSE: An approximate 2.2 acre special use facility, located at 1501 East Lakeshore 
Drive and generally bounded by Lake Coeur d'Alene to the south, 15th Street to the west and 
private property to the north and west (Tax # 11205). 
 
JEWETT HOUSE BEACH: The shoreline and beach in Government Lot 3, Section 19, 
Township 50 North, Range 3 West, Boise Meridian, lying east of the west line of Section 19 and 
west of a line that is 200 feet east of and parallel with the west line of Section 19, along with all 
that land in Government Lot 5, Section 24, Township 50 North, Range 4 West, lying west of the 
east line of Section 24 and east of a line that is 20 feet west of and parallel with the east line of 
Section 24 and south of the south line of East Lakeshore Drive. 
 
JOHNSON MILL RIVER PARK: An approximate 2 acre park located at 4340 W. Shoreview 
Lane generally bounded by the Spokane River on the south, the Mill River Home Owners 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 4 | P a g e  
 



   
 
Association Park on the west, Shoreview Lane on the north and private property beginning at the 
approximate west right of way line of Grand Mill Road extended on the east (Lot 2, Block 6, 
Mill River 1st Add). 
 
LANDINGS PARK: An approximate 11 acre park located at 3849 West Long Meadow Drive in 
the Landings subdivision generally bounded by private residences and West Long Meadow Drive 
to the south, Carrington Lane to the west, West Princeton Lane to the north and North Talon 
Lane to the east (Lt 1, Blk 6, Landings At Waterford 1st Add, Lt 1, Blk 8, Landings At Waterford 
2nd Add & Lt 1, Blk 1, Landings At Waterford 3rd Add). 
 
LEGACY PLACE PARK: An approximate 1 acre park located at 1201 West Joy Avenue 
generally bounded by Joy Avenue on the south, Barbie Street to the west, private farm land to the 
north and Aaron Street to the east (Lot 1, Block 2, Legacy Place). 
 
LIBRARY PARKING LOT FACILITY: An approximate 1 acre parking lot facility adjacent to 
the Coeur d'Alene Public Library at the southwest corner of Front Avenue and Eighth Street. (All 
or portions of Lots 1 through 12, Block 38, Coeur d'Alene and Kings Addition, Kootenai County, 
ID.) 
 
MCEUEN FIELD PARK: An approximate 15 acre park and sports field located at 420 East Front 
Avenue and generally bounded by Front Street Avenue on the North, Tubbs Hill on the south, 
City Hall and Coeur d’Alene Public Library to the east and the Coeur d'Alene Resort on the west 
(Ptn of Lt 1 & Vac City of Cda). McEuen Field Park includes Veterans Memorial Plaza, the 
Third Street Parking Lot, the McEuen parking Facility and the Third Street Boat Ramp and 
Mooring Docks and Legion Field.   
 
MCEUEN FIELD PARKING LOT FACILITY: The partially enclosed parking structure located 
between Third Street and Sixth Street directly beneath and south of Front Avenue including the 
driverways, stariways and elevators contained therein. The paved area reserved for parking 
within McEuen Field (Beginning at a point which is at the intersection from the west of the south 
curbline of Front Street extended from the west and the west curbline of Fifth Street extended; 
Thence, southerly, 150.5 feet, said point being the true point of beginning; Thence, westerly, 17.5 
feet to the west curbline of the parking lot as it now exists; Thence, southerly, 98.5 feet, along the 
west curbline, which is adjacent to and runs parallel with the sidewalk as it now exists, to a point; 
Thence, easterly, 76.4 feet along the south curbline of the existing parking lot, to a point; Thence, 
northerly, 107.6 feet along the east curbline of said parking lot, which runs adjacent to and 
parallel with the sidewalk which abuts the public restroom and public tennis courts, to a point; 
Thence, westerly, 58.9 feet to a point; Thence, southerly, 9.1 feet to the point of beginning). 
 
MEMORIAL FIELD: An approximate 5 acre park and play field located at 501 West Mullan 
Road and generally bounded by Mullan Road on the south, Park Drive on the west, West Garden 
Avenue on the north and former BNSF rail line on the east (Sherman Park Add Lt 72 & A 
Portion Of Lt 48 Ft Sherman Aban'd Mil Res Ex R/W). Memorial Field includes the Memorial 
Field Skateboard and BMX Freestyle Park, Memorial Field Parking Lot Facility and the large 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 5 | P a g e  
 



   
 
wooden grandstand on the north side of Mullan Road between the softball field and Mullan Road 
the Memorial Field Parking Facility. 
 
MEMORIAL FIELD PARKING LOT FACILITY: An approximate 40 space paved parking area 
reserved for public parking within Memorial Field and generally bounded by Mullan Road, the 
Memorial Field grandstands and the former BNSF rail line. 
 
MEMORIAL FIELD SKATEBOARD AND BMX FREESTYLE PARK: A skate park and BMX 
freestyle park and playground located within Memorial Field at 480 West Garden Avenue and 
generally bounded by Memorial Field softball field on the south, Park Drive on the west, West 
Garden Avenue on the north and the former BNSF rail line on the east. 
 
MUSEUM PARKING LOT FACILITY: An approximate 107 space paved parking area reserved 
for public parking adjacent to the North Idaho Museum (Beginning at the intersection of the 
south right-of-way line of Mullan Avenue with the east right-of-way line of the Burlington 
Northern Railroad; thence southeasterly 600 feet or more or less along said east line; thence east 
to the west right-of-way line of Northwest Boulevard; thence northwesterly along said west line 
and continuing westerly along the south right-of-way line of Mullan Avenue to the point of 
beginning) generally bounded by Northwest Boulevard to the east, North Idaho Museum and City 
Park to the south, City Park to the west and Mullan Road to the north. 
 
NORTH PINES PARK: An approximate 3.5 acre park located at 1015 East Lunceford Lane and 
generally bounded by East Lunceford Lane to the south, fenced private property to the west and 
north and 12th Street to the east (Lot 37, Blk 1, North Pines). 
 
NORTHSHIRE PARK: An approximate 3.3 acre park located at 3889 West Nez Perce Road and 
generally bounded by West Nez Perce Road on the south, Abbey Road on the west, undeveloped 
land owned by School District 271,currently used as a dog park private property on the north, and 
Atlas Road to the east (Lot 1 Northshire Park Add). 
 
PERSON FIELD: An approximate 7 acre park and play field owned by the City of Coeur d'Alene 
and School District 271 located at 701 North 15th Street and generally bounded by Garden 
Avenue to the south, 13th Street to the west, an alley serving private residences off of 
Pennsylvania Avenue to the north, and 15th Street to the east (Lot 2, Block 1, Persons Add). The 
dividing line between School District 271 property and city owned property is just east of the 
eastern edge of the track. 
 
PHIPPENY PARK: An approximate 2.5 acre park located at 827 North 8th Street and generally 
bounded by private residences to the south, Seventh 7th Street to the west, Montana Avenue to 
the North and Eighth 8th Street to the East (South 101 feet of Block 9, Block 10 and the North 
100 feet of Block 11, Reid's Add To Cda and Tax #832). 
 
RAMSEY PARK: An approximate 29 acre park and sports field located at 3525 North Ramsey 
Road and generally bounded by the Kroc Center on the south, the Prairie Trail to the west, a 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 6 | P a g e  
 



   
 
private office building and apartments to the north and Ramsey Road to the east (Lots 1 and 2, 
Secondary Addition EX R/W & N2-NE-SE E OF RR EX R/W). 
 
RIVERSTONE PARK: An approximate 11 acre park and pond located at 1805 Tilford Lane in 
Riverstone and generally bounded by the Prairie Trail to the south, private property to the west, 
north and east (Lots 9 and 12, Block 1, Riverstone West 1st Add). 
 
RIVERVIEW CEMETERY: An approximate 7.2 acre cemetery located at 1065 North Lincoln 
Way and generally bounded by Northwest Boulevard and private property on the west, Harrison 
Avenue on the north. The cemetery has irregular property lines. The south side is bordered by 
condominiums and a commercial business. Lincoln Way on the east and private property on the 
south (Ft Sherman Abn'd Mil Res; Forest Cemetery Annex & Forest Cemetery Annex Replat Into 
Riverview Addition, All In Lot 2 Fsamr). 
 
SHADDUCK LANE PARK: An approximate 6 acre park located at 1875 East Shadduck Lane 
and generally bounded by Shadduck Lane to the south, North Deerfield Drive to the west and 
Magnolia Drive to the north and east (Lot 1, Block 4, Canfield Park). 
 
SUNSET FIELD: An approximate 5 acre park and sports field located at 1355 East Best Avenue 
and generally bounded by Best Avenue on the south and private property on the west, north and 
east (W 240' - Tax #3076, Tax #4201 & E 65' Of Tax #3287). A commercial building on Best 
Avenue is located between the two parking lots on the south side of the property. 
 
SUNSHINE MEADOWS PARK: An approximate 2.5 acre park located at 2625 West Larix 
Court and generally bounded by West Larix Court and private property on the south, West 
Timberlake Loop on the west and north and Courcelles Parkway on the east (Sunshine Meadow 
4th Add, Tr A). 
 
THIRD STREET BOAT RAMP AND MOORING DOCKS: A watercraft launch and mooring 
facility located within McEuen Field Park at the south end of 3rd Street (Beginning at a point on 
the 3rd Street ramp adjacent to the City seawall, said point being located at the approximate 
elevation 2,128 feet (WWP datum) above sea level and being 312 feet, more or less, northerly 
from the southwest corner of said seawall; said point also bearing south 16°09'18" east a distance 
of 451.91 feet from the easternmost Western Frontiers property point on Front Avenue as shown 
on the survey recorded in book 4, page 4A, book of surveys, Kootenai County, Idaho; thence 
northerly 343 feet, more or less, along said seawall to its northwest corner; thence easterly 67 
feet, more or less, to the edge of the asphalt paving; thence, northerly along the edge of the 
paving 177 feet, more or less, to a point; thence, west north 42°23' west, 112.6 feet, more or less, 
to the curb on the west side of the City property; thence, southerly along the curb, 280 feet, more 
or less, to the northwest corner of the ramp; thence, southerly 57.4 feet, more or less, along the 
west edge of the ramp to a point located at the approximate elevation of 2,128 feet (WWP 
datum); thence generally east 112.1 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning).  The double 
lane boat ramp is accessed through the from Third Street Parking Lot and includes three service 
docks directly adjacent to the boat ramps. Boat trailer parking for this facility is located southeast 
of the ramp within the Third Street Parking Lot in the McEuen Parking Facility and the City Hall 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 7 | P a g e  
 



   
 
Parking Facility. The mooring docks are directly west of Tubbs Hill and southeast of the Third 
Street Boat Ramp. 
 
THIRD STREET PARKING LOT: A 600 space paved parking lot located within McEuen Field 
generally bounded by the mooring docks and the boat ramp on the south, Veteran Memorial 
Plaza on the west, Front Street on the north and the landscaped areas of McEuen Field on the east 
(Beginning at the SE corner of Block "P" of Coeur d'Alene and Kings Addition in Sec. 13, Twp. 
50 N., R 4 W.B.M.; thence S. 480 ft. to the true point of beginning; thence S. 220 ft.; thence 
southwesterly along the base of Tubbs Hill to a point that intersects the extended east-west line 
of the seawall; thence westerly along said east-west line 120 ft. more or less to a point that is on 
the NS line of the seawall; thence N. 340 ft.; thence SE 230 ft. more or less to the true point of 
beginning). 
 
TUBBS HILL: An approximate 120 acre, natural open space area located at 210 South 3rd Street. 
Tubbs Hill extends into Lake Coeur d'Alene and is generally bounded by Lake Coeur d'Alene on 
the south, west sides and on part of the east sides of the property the Lake. The remainder of the 
east side of the park is bounded by East Tubbs Hill Park. The north side of Tubbs Hill is 
bordered by McEuen Field Park and several single family residences. There are several privately 
owned parcels within Tubbs Hill, three of which contain residences.    
 
TWELFTH STREET BEACH: A small waterfront access area on Lake Coeur d'Alene on East 
Lakeshore Drive. The public access area is generally the width of 12th Street extended south to 
the lake. 
 
VETERANS CENTENNIAL NATURAL AREA: An approximate 16 acre natural open space at 
3013 East Fernan Hill Road and generally bounded by private property on the south and west 
sides, an undeveloped forest area on the north and the Victoria Estates subdivision on the west 
(Tax #14228 [In Se-Ne], Tx#14738 [In Ne-Se] Ex Tx#17561). Veterans Centennial Natural Area 
is owned by the Coeur d'Alene Parks Foundation, LLC. 
 
WINTON PARK: An approximate 6.5 acre park located at 810 West Lacrosse Street Avenue and 
generally bounded by Idaho Transportation Department property associated with the US 95 
interchange with Northwest Boulevard to the south, private property and Winton Elementary 
School to the west, Lacrosse Street Avenue to the north and Melrose Place to the east (College 
Add To Cda, Lt 1, N2 Lt 2, 7, 8 & 9 Blk 8, Lts 1, 2, & 3 Blk 9 & Ptn of Vac Sts & Alley). 
 
B. General Terms: Whenever the following terms are used in this title, they have the following 
meanings unless the context indicates otherwise: 
COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY: Commercial displays, commercial enterprises, commercial 
promotions, arts and crafts displays, exhibits and other commercial activities with items for sale, 
including food concessions. 

MOTORIZED FOOD CONCESSIONS: Motorized vehicles from which food and beverages are 
sold, including trailer houses and vans. 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 8 | P a g e  
 



   
 
OVERSIZED VEHICLE: A vehicle that cannot fit into a parking stall without protruding over 
the marked stall lines or extending beyond the end of the marked stall lines.   

PARKING FACILITY: Any property owned by the City of Coeur d’Alene on which private 
vehicles are allowed to park.  A parking facility can be a garage, a permanent surface lot, semi-
permanent surface lot or an area that is used on a temporary basis for vehicle parking, and 
includes ancillary fixtures, equipment and utilities for the use, operation and maintenance of such 
facilities. 

PARKING OFFICIAL: Any peace officer or reserve officer of the Coeur d’Alene Police 
Department, any person providing security services in any City parking facility pursuant to any 
contract with the City or any person, firm or corporation managing City owned or leased parking 
facility on the City’s behalf. 

PARKING TENANT: Any individual, group, or entity that has a valid city issued special permit 
to occupy a portion of a City parking facility. 

ROBOT: A self-powered, programmable, mechanical device capable of operating autonomously 
or via remote control. This definition does not include autonomously-operated motor vehicles 
defined under Chapter 1, Title 49, Idaho Code.  

SECTION 2. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.010,  is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.010: COEUR D'ALENE PUBLIC PARKING LOT FACILITY CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT FUND:  
 
A. There is hereby established within the City of Coeur d'Alene a "capital improvement fund" 
which shall be known and cited as "the Coeur d'Alene public parking lot facility capital 
improvement fund". The levy or appropriation to such fund shall not exceed in the aggregate in 
any one year more than four-hundredths of one percent (0.04%) of the market value for 
assessment purposes of the city of Coeur d'Alene in that year. The total amount of such fund shall 
never exceed in the aggregate four-tenths of one percent (0.4%) of the market value for 
assessment purposes of the city of Coeur d'Alene. The fund shall not be subject to the provisions 
of Idaho Code section 50-1014 (which provides that the city council of the city may transfer an 
unexpended balance in one fund to the credit of another fund). 
 
B. The purposes for which the Coeur d'Alene public parking lot facilities capital improvement 
fund may be used are as follows: 

1. The acquisition of land, buildings, structures, equipment and appurtenances necessary 
for the parking of motor vehicles. for public parking lots or buildings. 

2. The construction of public off-street parking facilities, buildings, structures, equipment 
and appurtenances necessary for the parking of motor vehicles. 

3. The improvement of Coeur d'Alene public parking facilities by upgrading equipment 
and appurtenances, grading, paving, sealing, signing, striping, draining or otherwise capital 
improving of such city parking facilities. 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 9 | P a g e  
 



   
 
C. None of such funds shall be expended unless specifically appropriated by the City Council 
pursuant to Idaho Code sections 50-1001 through 50-1003, both inclusive. (Ord. 3382 §17, 2010) 
 
SECTION 3. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.020 is amended to read as follows: 
  
4.15.020: SIGN ERECTION:  
 
A. The street superintendent shall cause appropriate signs and markings to be erected and painted 
on the surface of the parking lots facilities or otherwise establish in the parking lots facilities 
directions to carry out the purpose of the regulations set forth in this chapter. Signs containing the 
regulations provided in this chapter for each parking lot facility shall be placed in a conspicuous 
place at the entrances to the parking lots facilities so as to be visible to any person entering the 
parking lot facility. 
 
B. The street superintendent shall cause appropriate signs and markings to be erected and painted 
in conspicuous places on the 3rd Third Street watercraft launching Boat Rr amp to carry out the 
purpose of the regulations contained in this chapter. 
 
SECTION 4. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.030 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.030: PARKING AND LAUNCHING FEES:  
 
A. The city council will establish parking and watercraft launching fees for the parking lots 
facilities and launch ramps regulated by this chapter. 
 
SECTION 5. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.040  is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.040: PARKING REGULATIONS FOR ALL PUBLIC PARKING LOTS FACILITIES:  
  
The following regulations govern the use of the 3rd Street, 4th Street, 4th Street and Coeur 
d'Alene Avenue, Independence Point, McEuen Field, Memorial Field, Museum and Library 
Parking Lots all public parking Facilities as defined by Section 4.05.030 of this Title: 
 
A. Parking Regulations: 
 

1. Vehicles can only be parked within the stalls designated by markers and as nearly in the 
center of the designated stalls as possible. 
 

2. Vehicles cannot be parked or left unattended on any driving isle in the parking facility. 
 

3. Trailers cannot be left parked in any parking facility unless attached to a parked motor 
vehicle. 

 
B.  Other Regulations: 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 10 | P a g e  
 



   
 

1. Vehicles can only be driven in a parking facility on the designated deriving isles and only 
in the direction indicated by signs or traffic control devices. 
 

2. Vehicles cannot be driven in a parking facility faster than five (5) miles per hour. 
 

3. Vehicles can only be driven into or out of a parking facility at the designated entrances 
and exits. 
 

4. No portion of any parking facility can be used in any manner that endangers the person or 
property of another or disrupts the normal operations of the parking facility, including but 
not limited to, conduct that involves the use of abusive or threatening language or 
gestures, conduct that creates unreasonable noise, or conduct that consists of loud or 
boisterous physical behavior; placing objects such as bicycles, backpacks, carts or other 
items in a manner that interferes with free passage within the facility. 
 

5. No person can distribute, throw or affix to vehicles any literature, handbills or fliers in 
any City parking facility.   
 

6. No person can camp or sleep in a parking facility, either in, on or near a vehicle, between 
the hours of eleven o'clock (11:00) P.M. and six o'clock (6:00) A.M., unless the camping 
or sleeping is permitted by the City in conjunction with a special event being held on City 
property.   
 

7. No person shall deface, or destroy, signage or other City property located within a parking 
facility. 
 

8. Other than City authorized events, no person shall participate in gatherings within the 
parking facility; 
 

9. All persons within a City parking facility shall obey posted regulations and / or the 
direction of an authorized parking official.  
 

10. It is unlawful for any person to intentionally come into contact with buildings, stairs, 
stairways, railings, curbs, planters, benches, chairs, tables, curbs, plants or shrubbery, 
signs, light poles, pillars or other improvements or fixtures with any skateboard, skates, 
in-line skates, rollerblades or similar device(s). 

 
C.  The parking provisions contained in this chapter do not apply to City vehicles operated in the 
normal course of city business. 

 
A. Vehicles can only be parked within the stalls designated by markers and as nearly in the 
center of the designated stalls as possible. 
 
B. Vehicles can only be driven in the parking lot on the designated roadways and only in the 
direction indicated by signs. 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 11 | P a g e  
 



   
 

 
C. Vehicles cannot be driven in the parking lot faster than five (5) miles per hour. 
 
D. Vehicles cannot be parked or left unattended on any roadway in the parking lot. 
 
E. Vehicles can only be driven into or out of the parking lot at the designated entrances and 
exits. 
 
F. No portion of the parking lot can be used in any manner that endangers the person or 
property of another. 
 
G. No person can distribute, throw or affix any literature, handbills or fliers in the parking lot 
into any car parked in the parking lot or on any car parked in the parking lot. 
 
H. No person can camp or sleep in the parking lot, either in, on or near a vehicle, between the 
hours of eleven o'clock (11:00) P.M. and six o'clock (6:00) A.M., unless the camping or 
sleeping is permitted by the city in conjunction with a special event being held on city 
property. 
 
I. Trailers cannot be left parked in the parking lot unless attached to a parked motor vehicle. 
 
J. The parking provisions contained in this chapter do not apply to city vehicles operated in 
the normal course of city business. (Ord. 3442, 2012: Ord. 3382 §17, 2010) 

 
SECTION 6. The Municipal Code Section 4.15.050 is hereby repealed. 
 
4.15.050: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE 3RD STREET PARKING LOT:   
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the 3rd Street Parking Lot: 
 
A. Vehicles, including motor vehicles with an attached trailer, longer than forty four feet (44') 
cannot be parked in the parking lot. 
 
B. Single unit vehicles cannot park in stalls marked for multi-unit vehicles except from twelve 
o'clock (12:00) midnight December 21 until twelve o'clock (12:00) noon March 20 annually. 
 
C. Cranes are not allowed in the parking lot unless the mayor declares an emergency.   
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 12 | P a g e  
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=4.15.040


   
 
SECTION 7.  That Municipal Code Section 4.15.060 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.060: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE 8TH STREET CITY HALL PARKING 
LOT FACILITY: 
  
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the 8th Street City Hall Parking Facility: 
 
A. No vehicle can be parked or allowed to remain parked in the parking lot facility continuously 
for more than forty eight (48) hours unless the owner has purchased a permit from the city to do 
so. . 
 
B. Single vehicles cannot park in stalls marked for over-sized or multi-unit vehicles. On 
weekdays and Saturdays between October 1 and April 30 annually, vehicles shall not be parked 
or allowed to remain parked in the first two (2) rows of the parking lot between the hours of 
seven o'clock (7:00) A.M. and nine thirty o'clock (9:30) A.M.  
 
C. The City, by permit or contract, may authorize mobile food concessions and other vehicles to 
park in spaces designated by the City and may exempt special events held in McEuen Park from 
any of the requirements of this chapter pertaining to the use of this parking facility.   
 
D.   No person shall enter or remain within the parking facility for any purpose other than to park 
or retrieve a motor vehicle or to do valid and legitimate business with a City parking facility or 
structure tenant or official. 
 
E. It is unlawful for any person to operate or ride on any skateboard, roller skates, rollerblades, 
in-line skates, coaster, sled, toy wagon, scooter or similar device on any vehicle travel ramp or 
within the parking facility. This prohibition shall not apply to handicapped person using wheeled 
equipment in order to be ambulatory. 
 
SECTION 8. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.070 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.070: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE 4TH FOURTH STREET AND COEUR 
D'ALENE AVENUE PARKING LOT FACILITY:  
 
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the 4th Fourth Street and Coeur d'Alene Avenue Parking Lot Facility: 
 
A. A parking permit is required to park in the lot facility except on holidays, weekends and 
weekdays after six o'clock (6:00) P.M. Each permittee must park in the assigned parking stall and 
must hang or display the parking permit, showing the calendar year and permit number, from the 
vehicle's rearview mirror. The monthly permit fee must be paid in advance by the fifteenth day of 
each month for the succeeding month or the permit becomes invalid. 
 
B. No trailers, RVs, or oversized vehicles can be parked in the lot facility.   

Council Bill No. 15-1009 13 | P a g e  
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=4.15.040


   
 
 
SECTION 9. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.080 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.080: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE INDEPENDENCE POINT PARKING 
LOT FACILITY:  
 
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the Independence Point Parking Lot Facility: 
 
A. No trailers, RVs or oversized vehicles can be parked in the lot facility. 
 
B. No vehicle can be parked or allowed to remain parked in the parking lot facility continuously 
for more than forty eight (48) hours unless the owner has purchased a permit from the city to do 
so. 
 
C. The City, by permit or contract, may authorize mobile food concessions and other vehicles to 
park in spaces designated by the City and may exempt special events held in City Park from any 
of the requirements of this chapter pertaining to the use of this parking lot facility.   
 
D.   No person shall enter or remain within the parking facility for any purpose other than to park 
or retrieve a motor vehicle or to do valid and legitimate business with a City parking facility or 
structure tenant or official. 
 
E. It is unlawful for any person to operate or ride on any skateboard, roller skates, rollerblades, 
in-line skates, coaster, sled, toy wagon, scooter or similar device on any vehicle travel ramp or 
within the parking facility. This prohibition shall not apply to handicapped person using wheeled 
equipment in order to be ambulatory. 
 
SECTION 10. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.090 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.090: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE MCEUEN FIELD PARKING LOT 
FACILITY:  
 
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the McEuen Field Parking Lot Facility: 
 
A. No trailers, RVs, multi-unit vehicles or oversized vehicles can be parked in the facility except 
in the designated boat trailer parking stalls. Vehicles exceeding eight feet (8’) in height are 
prohibited from parking in this facility.  Unless a parking space is otherwise designated by the 
city, no vehicle can be parked or allowed to remain parked longer than two (2) hours in any space 
in the parking lot. 
 
B. The City, by permit or contract, may authorize mobile food concessions and other vehicles to 
park in spaces designated by the City and may exempt special events held in McEuen Park from 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 14 | P a g e  
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=4.15.040


   
 
any of the requirements of this chapter pertaining to the use of this parking facility.  No trailers, 
RVs or oversized vehicles can be parked in the lot. 
 
C. Smoking of cigarettes, cigars, pipes and any lighted instrument in the elevators or any 
enclosed portion of McEuen Parking Facility is prohibited.  The city, by permit or contract, may 
authorize mobile food concessions to park in spaces designated by the city. 
 
D. No person shall enter or remain within the parking facility for any purpose other than to park 
or retrieve a motor vehicle or to do valid and legitimate business with a City parking facility or 
structure tenant or official. 
 
E. It is unlawful for any person to operate or ride on any skateboard, roller skates, rollerblades, 
in-line skates, coaster, sled, toy wagon, scooter or similar device on any vehicle travel ramp or 
within the parking facility. This prohibition shall not apply to handicapped person using wheeled 
equipment in order to be ambulatory. 

 
SECTION 11. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.100 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.100: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE MEMORIAL FIELD PARKING LOT 
FACILITY:  
 
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the Memorial Field Parking Lot Facility: 
 
A. Vehicles longer than twenty feet (20') in total length, trailers, RVs or other oversized vehicles 
cannot be parked in the lot facility. 
 
B. Parking between the hours of eleven o'clock (11:00) P.M. and six o'clock (6:00) A.M. is 
prohibited unless the City approves longer hours for baseball or softball events. 
 
C. The City, by permit or contract, may authorize vehicles serving the Museum Of North Idaho, 
or the cultural center to park in spaces designated by the City and may exempt special events held 
in City Park or Memorial Field from any of the requirements of this chapter pertaining to the use 
of this parking lot facility.   
 
SECTION 12. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.110 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.110: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE MUSEUM PARKING LOT FACILITY:  
 
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the Museum Parking Lot Facility: 
 
A. Vehicles longer than twenty feet (20') in total length, trailers, RVs or other oversized vehicles 
cannot be parked in the lot facility except that RVs may park in designated parking spaces. 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 15 | P a g e  
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=4.15.040
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=4.15.040


   
 
B. Parking between the hours of eleven o'clock (11:00) P.M. and six o'clock (6:00) A.M. is 
prohibited. 
 
C. The City, by permit or contract, may authorize vehicles serving the Museum Of North Idaho, 
or the cultural center to park in spaces designated by the City and may exempt special events held 
in City Park or Memorial Field from any of the requirements of this chapter pertaining to the use 
of this parking lot facility.   
 
SECTION 13. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.115  is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.115: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS FOR THE LIBRARY PARKING LOT FACILITY:  
 
In addition to the provisions of section 4.15.040 of this chapter, the following regulations govern 
the use of the Library Parking Lot Facility: 
 
A. No person shall allow his/her vehicle to be parked in the Library Parking Lot Facility for more 
than two (2) hours. 
 
B. Vehicles longer than twenty feet (20') in total length, trailers, RVs or other oversized vehicles 
cannot be parked in the lot facility. 
 
C. The City, by permit or contract, may authorize vehicles serving the Coeur d'Alene Public 
Library to exceed the restrictions set forth in this section and allow parking in spaces designated 
by the City. 
 
D. The City may exempt special events held in the City from any of the requirements of this 
chapter pertaining to the use of this parking lot facility.   
 
SECTION 14. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.120 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.120: SOUTH 3RD STREET WATERCRAFT LAUNCHING THIRD STREET BOAT 
RAMP REGULATIONS:  
 
The following regulations govern the use of the South 3rd Street watercraft launching Third 
Street Boat R ramp: 
 
A. Vehicles, other than emergency vehicles, cannot be parked on or travel on the launch ramp 
except while in the process of launching or loading watercraft. 
 
B. Vehicles, other than emergency vehicles, cannot park or travel on the launch ramp for longer 
than is reasonably necessary to launch or load watercraft and in no event may they remain parked 
for more than fifteen (15) minutes. 
 
C. Vehicles, other than emergency vehicles, cannot park or travel on the launch ramp in a manner 
that blocks the ingress or egress of other vehicles launching or loading watercraft.   

Council Bill No. 15-1009 16 | P a g e  
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=4.15.040


   
 
 
SECTION 15. That Municipal Code Section 4.15.130 is amended to read as follows: 
 
4.15.130: ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES:  
 
Any violation of this chapter related to vehicle parking is subject to the enforcement processes 
and penalties contained in title 10, chapter 10.27 of this code. All other violations of this chapter 
are an infraction punishable as provided in Municipal Code Chapter 1.28.    
 
SECTION 16. That Municipal Code Section 4.25.030 is amended to read as follows.  
 
4.25.030: BEER, WINE AND LIQUOR PROHIBITIONS ON PUBLIC PROPERTY:  
 
A. No person shall possess any container, whether open or not, containing any beer, wine or 
other alcoholic beverage on any City owned, leased or maintained beach, natural area, park, 
parking facility, playground or play field. 
 
B. The provisions of this section do not prohibit the City from issuing permits for the possession 
and consumption of beer, wine or other alcoholic beverages at the following locations: 
1. Riverstone Park gazebo and amphitheater; 
2. Jewett House; 
3. City Park; 
4. McEuen Park; 
5. Upon city right of way On pedal bike(s) and/or nonmotorized recreational vehicles where 
passenger areas are separate from the driver areas when operated on City rights-of-way.   
 
SECTION 17. That Municipal Code Section 4.25.070 is amended to read as follows. 
 
4.25.070: FIREWORKS PROHIBITED ON PUBLIC PROPERTY:  
 
Except when permitted as a part of a public display authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for 
any person to have in his or her possession or to use fireworks of any kind on any city owned, 
leased or maintained beach, natural area, park, playground or play field, dock, parking lot facility 
or other property.   
 
SECTION 18. That Municipal Code Section 4.25.120 is amended to read as follows. 
 
4.25.120: BICYCLES, SKATEBOARDS, ROBOTS AND TOY VEHICLES ON PUBLIC 
PROPERTY: 
 
A. It is unlawful for any person to ride or operate a toy or wheeled vehicle except wheelchairs 
being used to transport physically impaired persons on the band shell in City Park. 
 
B. It is unlawful for any person to ride a skateboard in Veterans' Memorial Park Plaza or at the 
Veterans' Memorial. 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 17 | P a g e  
 



   
 
 
C. It is unlawful for any person to ride or operate any toy vehicles, including remote control 
vehicles, at Cherry Hill Park. 
 
D. It is unlawful for any person to ride or operate a bicycle on any portion of Tubbs Hill owned 
or leased by the city of Coeur d'Alene, except city employees in the normal course of city 
business. 
 
E. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the mayor and/or city council from allowing bicycle, 
skateboard, or other exhibits or demonstrations by permit or other ordinance. 
 
F.   Nothing in this section applies to robots that are operating in compliance with all posted 
regulations. 
  
SECTION 19. That Municipal Code Section 8.36.100 is amended to read as follows.  
 
8.36.100: LITTERING:  
 
It is unlawful for any person to dispose of, throw away or leave any empty container or other 
litter on any public park, grounds, parking facility or thoroughfare within the city; provided, 
however, that such empty container or other litter may be deposited in receptacles provided 
especially for that purpose. (prior code §6-1-9) 
 
SECTION 20. That Municipal Code Section 8.48.030 is amended to read as follows. 
 
8.48.030: DEFINITIONS:  
  
That for the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall be applicable: 
 
PUBLIC PROPERTY: Includes Pubic property as defined in section 4.05.030 of this code, 
including but not limited to, Tubbs Hill, all city docks, Third Street boat launching Boat Ramp, 
Independence Point and Parking Lot Facility, City Beach, City Park and McEuen Field Park and 
the McEuen Parking Facility and Eighth Street City Hall Parking Lot Facility. as defined in 
section 4.05.030 of this code. 
 
PUBLIC WATERS: Any river, lake, or other body of water within the corporate boundaries of 
the city of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, other than those which are entirely privately owned, regardless 
of navigability. 
 
RACE: Any race which is sanctioned or approved by the Unlimited Hydroplane Racing 
Association and any successor in interest thereto. 
 
 UNLIMITED HYDROPLANES: Boats weighing in excess of six thousand (6,000) pounds 
designed for competitive racing, specifically including all boats licensed or approved at the 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 18 | P a g e  
 



   
 
present or at any time hereafter by the Unlimited Hydroplane Racing Association and any 
successor in interest thereto. 
 
SECTION 21. That Municipal Code Section 10.04.010 is amended to read as follows. 
 
10.04.010: PLACEMENT AND MAINTENANCE:  
 
The street superintendent shall cause to be placed and maintained such traffic control signs, 
signals and markings upon the streets, alleys, public parks, public parking lots facilities and other 
public and City owned property as the City Engineer may deem necessary to indicate and carry 
out the provisions of this title and the provisions of the most recent edition of the "Manual On 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices" as adopted pursuant to Idaho Code sections 49-201 and 209, 
and to regulate, warn or guide traffic. Prior to installation, the City Engineer shall provide written 
direction for the type and location of traffic control signage or pavement marking.   
 
SECTION 22. That Municipal Code Section 8.22.100 is amended to read as follows. 
 
10.22.100: FORT GROUND RESIDENTIAL ON STREET PARKING PERMIT AREA:  
 
A. The boundary designated pursuant to this chapter as the Fort Ground residential on street 
parking permit area shall be as follows: 
 

1. Bounded on the west by Hubbard Street Avenue, on the east by Park Drive and Lincoln 
Way, on the north by River Avenue, including North Military Drive, and to the south by 
Lake Coeur d'Alene. 

 
B. Parking in the Fort Ground area during the hours of seven thirty o'clock (7:30) A.M. to five 
thirty o'clock (5:30) P.M., Monday through Sunday, except holidays and special events, as 
defined below, shall be allowed only for vehicles displaying either a resident's decal or a visitor's 
permit tag. 
  
C. Holidays shall be the following nationally recognized days: Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr./Idaho Human Rights 
Day, Presidents' Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, and Labor Day and Columbus Day. 
 
D. Special events shall include Art On The Green, North Idaho College commencement day, or 
other special events as permitted by the City. 
 
E. Fees for parking permits shall be designated by resolution. 
 
F. The homeowners' association shall notify the City Clerk, annually, of the name of an 
association member who shall be in charge of the distribution of temporary permits for special 
events. The association representative shall be responsible for distributing the temporary passes 
for individual homeowner's special events on an as needed basis. The City Clerk may annually 
issue the association representative twenty (20) temporary hangtags, free of charge. These passes 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 19 | P a g e  
 



   
 
shall be distributed to individual homeowners for residential events in which they are expecting 
several visitors. The association representative shall monitor the number of permits distributed to 
any one street, to ensure that there are an adequate number of spaces remaining on the block for 
the homeowners not included in the special event. 
 
SECTION 23. That Municipal Code Section 10.24.020 is amended to read as follows.  
 
10.24.020: LIMITED TIME PARKING SPACES AND ZONES:  
 
A. No owner or operator of any vehicle shall on any day, except Sundays and holidays, between 
the hours of nine o'clock (9:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) P.M., allow or cause said vehicle to 
be continuously parked longer than fifteen (15) minutes in any parking space posted for fifteen 
(15) minute parking. 
 
B. No owner or operator of any vehicle shall allow or cause such vehicle to be continuously 
parked for a period of more than two (2) hours on any day between the hours of nine o'clock 
(9:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) P.M., except Sundays and holidays, along the following 
described portions of streets and avenues within the city: 
 
Sherman Avenue from Second Street to Seventh Street; 
The east side of First Street from Sherman Avenue to Indiana Avenue; 
The west side of First Street from Sherman Avenue to the south side of the intersection of First 
Avenue Street and Coeur d'Alene Avenue; 
Second Street from Sherman Avenue to Wallace Avenue; 
Third Street from Front Avenue to Indiana Avenue; 
Fourth Street from Front Avenue to Indiana Avenue; 
Fifth Street from Front Avenue to Coeur d'Alene Avenue; 
Sixth Street from Front Avenue to Lakeside Avenue; 
The north side of Indiana Avenue between Third Street and Fourth Street; 
Lakeside Avenue from First Street to Seventh Street; 
The south side of Front Avenue from Fifth Street to Sixth Street; 
The north side of Front Avenue from Third Street to Seventh Street; 
Coeur d'Alene Avenue from First Street to Fifth Street. 
 
Such other spaces and/or zones and for such amount of time as may hereafter be established by 
duly passed resolution of the city council. 
 
Within the meaning of this section, the term "holiday" includes the following days only: January 
1, the last Monday in May, July 4, the first Monday in September, December 25, and the day 
designated and set aside as Thanksgiving Day.   
 
Holidays shall be the following nationally recognized days: Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day,  
Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr./Idaho Human Rights Day, Presidents' 
Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day and Columbus Day. 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 20 | P a g e  
 



   
 
SECTION 24. That Municipal Code Section 10.27.010 is amended to read as follows. 
 
10.27.010 VIOLATION OF TRAFFIC OR PARKING PROVISIONS OF TITLE CITY CODE; 
PENALTY 
 
A violation of any of the traffic provisions set out in this title shall be an infraction unless another 
penalty is provided by state law, and, upon being found to have violated a traffic provision of this 
title, shall be penalized as allowed by state law. 
 
A violation of any of the parking provisions set out in this title the City Code shall be punishable 
by a civil penalty in an amount established by resolution of the City Council as set forth in and 
enforced pursuant to section 10.27.020 of this chapter. 
 
Nothing in this section shall limit the ability of the City to impound vehicles as set forth in 
section 10.28.010 of this title. 
 
SECTION 25. That Municipal Code Section 10.27.020 is amended to read as follows. 
 
10.27.020 CHARGES FOR VIOLATION 
 
A. Any person violating any of the parking provisions set forth in this title City Code shall be 
assessed a civil penalty for each violation. The civil penalties for each violation shall be 
established by resolution of the City Council. 
 
B. Any police officer, or other person(s) designated by the City or Chief of Police, observing any 
parking violation shall issue a ticket describing such violation and the charge assessed for the 
violation to the person committing the violation. The ticket shall be payable to the City Cashier 
within ten (10) days of the violation. Failure to pay the civil assessment set forth on the parking 
ticket shall result in further action being taken by the city as set forth in section 10.27.040 of this 
chapter. 
 
SECTION 26.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
SECTION 27.  Neither the adoption of this ordinance nor the repeal of any ordinance shall, in 
any manner, affect the prosecution for violation of such ordinance committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance or be construed as a waiver of any license or penalty due under 
any such ordinance or in any manner affect the validity of any action heretofore taken by the City 
of Coeur d'Alene City Council or the validity of any such action to be taken upon matters 
pending before the City Council on the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 28.  The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, 
sentence, subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or 
inapplicable to any person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or 
inapplicability shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 21 | P a g e  
 



   
 
subsections, words or parts of this ordinance or their application to other persons or 
circumstances.  It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that this ordinance would have 
been adopted if such illegal, invalid or unconstitutional provision, clause sentence, subsection, 
word, or part had not been included therein, and if such person or circumstance to which the 
ordinance or part thereof is held inapplicable had been specifically exempt therefrom.   
 
SECTION 29.  After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly enacted an 
Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene at a regular session of the City Council on May 19, 
2015. 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED and SIGNED this 19th day of May, 2015.  
 
 
 
                                   ________________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 22 | P a g e  
 



   
 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ALENE ORDINANCE  NO. ______ 
Amending Various Municipal Code Sections Regarding Off Street Parking 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, 
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 4.05.030, 4.15.010, 
4.15.020,  4.15.030, 4.15.040, 4.15.060, 4.15.070, 4.15.080, 4.15.090, 4.15.100, 4.15.110, 4.15.115, 
4.15.120, 4.15.130, 4.25.030, 4.25.070, 4.25.120, 8.36.100, 8.48.030,10.04.010, 10.22.100, 10.24.020, 
10.27.010, 10.27.020, AND REPEALING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 4.15.050; TO UPDATE 
DEFINITIONS, REVISE THE ALLOWED USES OF THE CITY PARKING LOT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT FUND,  AND UPDATE RULES OF CONDUCT FOR CITY PARKING 
FACILITIES; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY.  THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS 
SUMMARY. THE FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED ORDINANCE NO. ______ IS 
AVAILABLE AT COEUR D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR D’ALENE, 
IDAHO 83814 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK.   

 
 
             
      Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 1 | P a g e  
 



   
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
 I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I have 
examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ______, Amending Various Municipal 
Code Sections Regarding Off Street Parking, and find it to be a true and complete summary of said  
ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 19th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Deputy City Attorney 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1009 2 | P a g e  
 



GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
STAFF REPORT  

 
 

DATE:  April 27, 2014 

FROM: Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney  

SUBJECT: Repeal of Initiative and Referendum Code Contained in Chapter 1.10  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
DECISION POINT: 
Recommend that the full City Council repeal Chapter 1.10. 
 
HISTORY: 
Chapter 1.10 contains the City’s regulations governing initiative and referendums.  These 
regulations are largely superseded by the Idaho Code provisions for initiatives and referendums 
contained in I.C. Title 34 Chapter 18.  Further, on April 6, 2015, Governor Otter signed HB 
216aa into law.  HB216aa, when it takes effect on July 1, 2015 will void all city rules regarding 
initiatives and referendums.  Because of the lead time required necessary to qualify an 
initiative/referendum for the ballot, it is too late for anyone seeking an initiative this year to do so 
prior to July 1, 2015.  As such, M.C. Chapter 1.10 can be repealed now with no impact.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
There is no financial impact to this decision.           
 
PERFORMANCE / QUALITY OF LIFE ANALYSIS: 
Initiatives and referendums are now regulated under state law, which mandates that all city 
regulations on this subject are void.  Repealing Chapter 1.10 will remove the voided provisions 
from the city code book thereby reducing confusion over which rules apply.      
         
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend that the full City Council repeal Chapter 1.10.   
 



     
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1007 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO BY REPEALING CHAPTER 1.10 ENTITLED 
LEGISLATIVE PROCESS THAT PROVIDES LOCAL RULES REGARDING INITIATIVES AND 
REFERENDUMS; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, after recommendation by the General Services Committee, it is deemed by the 
Mayor and City Council to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene that said amendments 
be adopted; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 
 
SECTION 1. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Chapter 1.10 is hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION 2.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  Neither the adoption of this ordinance nor the repeal of any ordinance shall, in any 
manner, affect the prosecution for violation of such ordinance committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance or be construed as a waiver of any license or penalty due under any such ordinance 
or in any manner affect the validity of any action heretofore taken by the City of Coeur d'Alene City 
Council or the validity of any such action to be taken upon matters pending before the City Council 
on the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 4.  The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, sentence, 
subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any 
person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, subsections, words or parts of 
this ordinance or their application to other persons or circumstances.  It is hereby declared to be the 
legislative intent that this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or 
unconstitutional provision, clause sentence, subsection, word, or part had not been included therein, 
and if such person or circumstance to which the ordinance or part thereof is held inapplicable had 
been specifically exempt therefrom.   
 
SECTION 5.  After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the provisions 
of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of Coeur d'Alene, 
and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 

Council Bill No. 15-1007 1 | P a g e  
 



     
 

 Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly 
enacted an Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene at a regular session of the City Council on 
May 19, 2015. 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED and SIGNED this 19th day of May, 2015.  
 
 
 
 
                                   ________________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1007 2 | P a g e  
 



     
 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ALENE ORDINANCE  NO. ______ 
Repeal Municipal Code Chapter 1.10 – Legislative Process 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR 

D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO BY REPEALING CHAPTER 1.10 ENTITLED 
LEGISLATIVE PROCESS THAT PROVIDES LOCAL RULES REGARDING INITIATIVES AND 
REFERENDUMS;; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY.  THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS 
SUMMARY. THE FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED ORDINANCE NO. ______ IS 
AVAILABLE AT COEUR D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR 
D’ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK.   

 
 
             
      Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1007 1 | P a g e  
 



     
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I have 
examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ______, Repeal Municipal Code 
Chapter 1.10 – Legislative Process, and find it to be a true and complete summary of said ordinance 
which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 19th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Deputy City Attorney 
 

Council Bill No. 15-1007 2 | P a g e  
 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

April 27, 2015 
4:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT                                                STAFF PRESENT 
Councilmember Woody McEvers     Amy Ferguson, Executive Assistant  
Councilmember Dan Gookin      Dennis Grant, Eng. Proj. Mgr. 
Councilmember Kiki Miller     Jim Hammond, City Administrator 
        Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney 
        Tim Martin, Street Superintendent 
        Mike Becker, WW Project Manager 
        Troy Tymesen, Finance Director 
        Keith Erickson, Communications Coor. 
 
    
       
Item 1  Approval of Low Bidder for the 2015 Overlay Project  
Consent Calendar 
 
Dennis Grant, Engineering Project Manager, presented a request for council approval of Knife River 
Corporation – Northwest as the low bidder for the 2015 Overlay Project.   
 
Mr. Grant stated in his staff report that the City of Coeur d’Alene received four responsive bids.  Knife 
River Corporation – Northwest was the low bidder.  The Streets to be overlaid this year are Kathleen 
Avenue from Player Drive to Highway 95 and from Government Way to Honeysuckle Driver, Dalton 
Avenue from Government Way to 4th Street, and 4th Street from Kathleen Avenue to 500’ North of 
Honeysuckle Drive.   
 
Mr. Grant said that the last overlay was completed in 2012.  He noted that Kathleen Avenue from 
Highway 95 to Government Way is on their capital improvements projects list coming up within the next 
couple of years (widening Kathleen to match Kathleen west of Highway 95).   
 
Councilmember McEvers asked how the streets are chosen for overlay.  Mr. Grant said they have a 
pavement rating program that they are currently updating to produce their 5 year overlay plan.  They 
coordinate the plan with Wastewater and Stormwater.  Next year they are going to incorporate the chip 
seal program and will hopefully be able to do the Northshire neighborhood off of Atlas.   
 
Mr. Grant said they like to focus on arterials because they get the most traffic.  The Street Department has 
been doing some patching for them over the last four or five years on Kathleen.   
 
Councilmember McEvers commented on the savings of almost $200,000.  Mr. Grant said there are a 
couple of other projects that may be coming up so they want to make sure that they have the funds 
available.  If the funds aren’t used this year, they will be used next year.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin,  seconded by Miller, to recommend that Council approve Knife 
River Corporation – Northwest as the low bidder for the 2015 Overlay Project, and approving 
Resolution No. 15-018 authorizing an agreement with Knife River Corporation – Northwest for the 
2015 Overlay Project in the amount of $459,021.50.  Motion carried.    
 

Public Works Committee 04/27/15 
 

1 



Item 2  Declare Surplus Used Equipment 
Consent Calendar 
 
Tim Martin, Street Superintendent, presented a request for council consent to declare various pieces of 
used assets and items to be deemed surplus and authorization to proceed to auction. 
 
Mr. Martin explained in his staff report that the equipment/vehicles are deemed to be of little value to 
departments.  There is no cost to the taxpayers and very minimal cost to the department to shuttle the 
items to the Auction house in post falls.  The Auction house takes a percentage of the bid. The items to be 
declared surplus are: 
 

• 1995 Crown Victoria, Admin 103 
• 2000 Chevrolet Impala, Planning 901 
• 1986 Chevrolet Astro Van, Parks Department 

 
Mr. Martin commented that the vehicles have been dormant for many years.  He confirmed that 
Administration and the Finance Department will be reviewing the fleet each year to eliminate non-
productive vehicles and decrease insurance costs.     
 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller, seconded by Gookin, to recommend approval of Resolution No. 15-
018 declaring the requested items as surplus and authorize staff to proceed to auction.  Motion 
carried.     
 
Item 3  Assistant Street Superintendent/Ongoing Organizational Shift 
Agenda 
 
Tim Martin, Street Superintendent, presented a request for input in regard to the addition of an Assistant 
Street Superintendent position.   
 
Mr. Martin explained in his staff report that since the retirement of the Assistant Street Superintendent in 
2012, this position has laid dormant and unfunded in the department’s budget.  Since that time, the Street 
Department has had two supervisors retire and a third field supervisor is retiring in September.  The 
Assistant Street Superintendent position will have more added managerial focus on the day-to-day 
operations, supervisory duties and managing teams and tasks.  The Assistant Street Superintendent 
position is not in the current financial plan.  Mr. Martin explained that the Street Department will be 
doing the asphalt patching work for the Water Department this summer, which will save the Water 
Department money and will generate the funding necessary to implement and sustain the Assistant Street 
Superintendent position in the general fund and assist with the costs. 
 
Mr. Martin reviewed the current organizational structure of the Street Department, and the proposed 
changes.  He noted that since 2012, the Street Department has lost over 170 years of service through 
retirement, and with that they have lost a lot of experience, leadership, and continuity.  He also 
commented that the Electrician/Signal Technician position has probably saved the city thousands of 
dollars doing electrical work and signal upgrades.  He believes that now is the best time to fill the 
Assistant Street Superintendent position to help create more continuity moving forward.  Late summer 
they would like to hire the Lead Workers that specialize in certain areas.   
 
Mr. Martin said that council will see a request for two street maintenance workers and one heavy 
equipment operator in the 2015/2016 budget.  He noted that the trades are getting very busy and it is hard 
to find part-time equipment operators during the summer months.   

Public Works Committee 04/27/15 
 

2 



 
Mr. Martin said that the Assistant Street Superintendent would have a pay grade of 15, and the Field 
Supervisor would be pay grade 12.  The Lead Worker positions would be a pay grade 11.   He explained 
that dollars being pulled into the General Fund for utility and drainage work would cover the cost.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked why the Drainage Utility was not funding the positions.  Mr. Martin said 
they have looked at funding the position through the utility, but he believes that part of the drawback is 
where the person will work – whether close to the utility or out at the Street Department.  What works for 
them is having four lead workers who have passion for what they are doing, and it is part of the leadership 
that they want to develop moving forward.   
 
Councilmember Miller said it looks like the department is taking six people in management and turning it 
into nine people in management, with four people being lower management than the other ones.  Mr. 
Martin said that he prefers to look at it as gaining leadership in that they lost a lot of leadership when the 
field supervisors retired.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked if the Assistant Street Superintendent would be hired from within the 
department.  Mr. Martin said that they would be looking for the best candidate, and will open it up to 
outside applicants.   
 
Councilmember Miller said that it feels like the department would be adding top heavy management.  
Councilmember Gookin asked why it is necessary to have an extra body between the Street 
Superintendent and the Field Supervisor.  Mr. Martin explained that he is in meetings most of the day, 
and the Field Supervisor is managing many concerned citizen calls and questions from the field.  Trying 
to plan, organize and keeping the work flowing is getting harder and harder to manage.   
 
City Administrator Jim Hammond explained that the street maintenance workers and heavy equipment 
operators are a decision to be made down the road.  The real challenge is for Mr. Martin to manage the 
office, and manage stormwater.  In reality, stormwater is a separate division and what Mr. Martin is trying 
to do is get more boots on the ground because he can’t get all of his work done in the office and be out 
making sure that the field supervisors are on task with their responsibilities.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked what would happen if council approved the Assistant Street Superintendent 
position and then during a budget process down the road the increase isn’t approved.  Mr. Hammond said 
that the Street Department is generating more revenue by taking on work that would normally have been 
done by outside contractors and bringing more money into their department.  They are also charging 
Water and Wastewater less than what they would pay for outside services. 
 
Mr. Hammond explained that the lead workers would be supervising and actually doing the work.  Mr. 
Martin explained that the electrician, while residing in the Street Maintenance Department, provides 
maintenance to the signal and street lights that the city owns.  He also takes direction from the City 
Engineer through a work order process, and when someone needs a new outlet at City Hall, the request is 
made through Howard Gould in Building Maintenance, and the electrician will come and do the work.  
Mr. Martin also noted that this is the first summer that they are tasking themselves with taking on the 
asphalt repair with the Water Utility.   
 
Councilmember Gookin said that he would like to bring this forward for a presentation to the entire 
council.  Councilmember Miller said that she thinks the timing is right and if the program is creating more 
training opportunities and “depth on the bench” as well as covering the positions with the ability to not 
have a dramatic increase in the budget, then she thinks it is necessary and she supports it.  It is creating 
more efficiencies and an opportunity to manage growth.   

Public Works Committee 04/27/15 
 

3 



MOTION:   Motion by Gookin , seconded by Miller, to recommend that council approve the Street 
Department reorganization plan as presented.  Motion carried.   
 
 
Item 4  Bid Results for 2015 Open Trench Project 
Consent Calendar 
 
Mike Becker, Wastewater Utility Project Manager, presented a request for council acceptance of the low 
bit of T. LaRiviere Equipment & Excavation, for the 2015 Open Trench Project. 
 
Mr. Becker stated in his staff report that six bids were received for this project, with T. LaRiviere 
Equipment and Excavation, Inc. submitting the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $142,835.00.  This 
item is included in the FY 2015/2015 Wastewater Utility Budget. 
 
Mr. Becker said they have located a spot that is in pretty dire need of repair on Coeur d’Alene Avenue 
between 18th and 20th.  He noted that the pipe on Coeur d’Alene Avenue has numerous breaks, numerous 
damaged sections and numerous root intrusions which increase crew maintenance and the potential for a 
sewer backup.   
 
Mr. Becker reviewed the project scope which entails replacing 640 lf of pipe, two manholes, reconnecting 
8 laterals, replacing a portion of the storm system, adding one storm drain manhole, and replacing the 
entire street.  He noted that 8 residents will be impacted, 71 residents will be inconvenienced.  Public 
notification letters have already gone out and there will be no major construction during the school year, 
and the construction is not within the 2015 Ironman Route.  They anticipate a 45 calendar day 
construction time, with completion no later than August 31st, and only minor cleanup remaining after 
school starts.  A portion of the street will be blocked and detour routes set in place.   
 
Councilmember Gookin mentioned the Fernan project and the issue with the contractor interfacing 
properly with the residents.  Mr. Becker said that they have already initiated conversations with the 
residents on Coeur d’Alene Avenue on both sides of the street, even though the southern side of the street 
won’t be impacted.   Once they have a construction schedule from the contractor, they will send out a 
notice for an open house meeting to be held at the Wastewater Utility for anyone with questions.  Mr. 
Becker noted that when you keep an open line of communication, complaints tend to minimize and that is 
his goal as project manager of this project.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if Mr. Becker had ever worked with the winning bidder before.  Mr. 
Becker said that they did utility work for McEuen, and the Engineering Department was happy with their 
work.  He also noted that the mayor and city council did not receive any complaints about last year’s open 
trench project and so he believes that the process that is now being employed will help to minimized that.   
 
Mr. Becker said that while the contract is structured for 45 days, they will give latitude for the contractor 
to determine the start date, but the “drop dead” date for completion is August 31st.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked if this is the same area where there were some septic conversions going on.  
Mr. Becker confirmed that it is in the same area and noted that last year council approved the Wastewater 
Utility to work with local residents to get off of their septic systems and put in public sewer infrastructure 
to help service that area.  The sewer in that area is very shallow, so before they start introducing more 
sewer flower, they need to fix the debilitated sewer pipe first.  There will be eight properties that will 
reconnect to the sewer line, but they are presently already connected to it.   
 

Public Works Committee 04/27/15 
 

4 



MOTION:  Motion by Miller,  seconded by Gookin, to recommend that Council approve T. 
LaRiviere Equipment and Excavation, Inc.  as the low bidder for the 2015 Overlay Project, and 
approving Resolution No. 15-018 authorizing an agreement with T. LaRiviere Equipment and 
Excavation, Inc. for the 2015 Open Trench Project in the amount of $142,835.00.  Motion carried.    
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:03 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Amy C. Ferguson 
Public Works Committee Liaison 

Public Works Committee 04/27/15 
 

5 



Public Works 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:  April 27, 2015 
FROM:  Tim Martin, Street Superintendent 
SUBJECT: Assistant Street Superintendent/ Ongoing Organizational Shift 
 
DECISION POINT:   
The purpose of this staff report is to look for input and update the department and 
city needs. 
 
HISTORY: 
With an upcoming retirement (Field Supervisor), the department is looking to add a 
valued focus into the process and expand our capabilities. Since the retirement of 
the Assistant Street Superintendent in 2012, this position has laid dormant in the 
department budget unfunded. Since this time we have had (2) two supervisors 
retire and a third field supervisor is retiring in September.   
  
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
This position classification will have more added managerial focus on the day-to-day 
operations, supervisory duties and managing teams and tasks.  I believe the position 
is crucial to next phase of the department organizational shift. This person will 
have an opportunity to be settled in place and have knowledge of the department 
and its personnel as we move forward with the final step in the department re-
organization. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The Assistant Street Superintendent position is not in the current financial plan.  
The Street Department will be doing the asphalt patching work for the Water 
Department this summer. This will save the Water Department money, is a process 
improvement and generate the funding necessary to implement and sustain this 
position in the general fund and assist with the costs as the street department has 
an organizational shift.   The position levels at a grade 15, $54,537-$76,752 per 
year.   
 
DECISION POINT/ RECOMENDATION: 
The purpose of this report is to ask for Council Consent to approve this department 
re-organization. 
 









City of Coeur d’Alene Street Maintenance Department
Current Organizational Chart 

(27.82 FTE)

Street 
Superintendent (1)

Administrative 
Asst (1)

Mechanics 
(4)

Shop 
Supervisor (1)

Field 
Supervisor  (1)

Elec./Signal 
Tech (1) HEO (11)

Street 
Maint. 

Worker (4)

Field 
Supervisor  (1)

Field 
Supervisor  (1)

Part-Time 
(1.82)





City of Coeur d’Alene Street Maintenance Department
Re-Organizational Chart 

(27.82 FTE)

Street 
Superintendent (1)

Asst. Street 
Superintendent (1)

Administrative 
Asst (1)

Mechanics 
(4)

Shop 
Supervisor (1)

Field 
Supervisor  (1)

Operation 
Lead 

Worker (1)

Operation 
Lead 

Worker (1)

Operation 
Lead 

Worker (1)

Operation 
Lead 

Worker (1)

Elec./Signal 
Tech (1)

HEO (2)

Street 
Maint. 

Worker(1)

HEO (2) HEO (2) HEO (2)

Street 
Maint. 

Worker(1)

Street 
Maint. 

Worker(1)

Street 
Maint. 

Worker(1)

Part-Time 
(1.82)



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

May 11, 2015 
4:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT                                                STAFF PRESENT 
Councilmember Woody McEvers     Amy Ferguson, Executive Assistant  
Councilmember Dan Gookin      Gordon Dobler, Eng. Svcs. Director 
Councilmember Kiki Miller     Jim Hammond, City Administrator 
        Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney 
        Troy Tymesen, Finance Director 
        Tim Martin, Street Superintendent 
        Keith Erickson, Comm. Coordinator 
        Hilary Anderson, Cmty. Planning Director 
         
 
    
       
Item 1  Loading Zone for Proposed Hotel on 4th Street  
Agenda Item 
 
Gordon Dobler, Engineering Services Director, presented a request for council approval of a request for 
loading zone (15 minute parking) on 4th Street, south of Sherman Avenue, for a proposed hotel. 
 
Mr. Dobler stated in his staff report that the applicant, Miller-Stauffer Architects, is proposing a hotel on 
the southeast corner of 4th & Sherman.  They contend that a loading zone in front of the hotel on 4th Street 
and on Sherman, is critical to its viability, and have requested approval of physical alterations to the 
sidewalk on 4th and installation of a loading zone (15 minute parking), as well as extending the 15 minute 
zone on Sherman.  There would be no fiscal impact to the City.  The developer would be required to bear 
the cost of the physical improvements on 4th Street.  Maintenance costs of the signs and striping would be 
minimal.   
 
Mr. Dobler further noted in his staff report that the applicant is proposing that the sidewalk on 4th Street 
be narrowed to 8’ adjacent to the proposed loading zone in order to accommodate the road widening.  In 
addition, staff has received requests from adjacent businesses for additional on street parking on this 
portion of Front Street.  In order to avoid potential repercussions from the adjacent business, Council 
could consider reducing this portion of 4th Street to a one lane road and adding parking to the west side in 
conjunction with the proposed loading zone.   It is staffs’ understanding that the Downtown Association 
and the Parking Commission are aware of this request and generally have no objections. 
 
Mr. Dobler said that modification of the sidewalk would not be specific to the hotel use, and does not 
require a design departure after all since the 8’ sidewalk does meet downtown sidewalk standards.  He 
further commented that if the council might want to consider balancing the available parking by adding 
parking to the west side of 4th Street and making 4th Street a single lane northbound.     
 
Councilman Gookin asked if the opportunity for modification of the sidewalk and parking could be 
extended to everyone up and down the block, and noted that he doesn’t like the idea of putting the parking 
where the lane is right now because it would reduce the street to one lane and delivery trucks would 
probably block the whole street.  He further commented that there was parking there before, including 
parking spaces, which the city took out when it extended the sidewalks.   

Public Works Committee 05/11/15 
 

1 



 
Mr. Dobler commented that city code allows for them to just post the 15 minute parking requirement, but 
two-hour parking is pursuant to ordinance.  He confirmed that there is no parking garage included with 
the hotel project.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked about food trucks and whether there was a requirement for them to load and 
unload in a 15 minute parking spot.  Mr. Dobler said that there is no requirement other than not being 
allowed to stop traffic pursuant to the vehicle code.  He further said that typically they would install a 15 
minute parking sign to demarcate the zone, but with the pop out it will probably be self-designating with 
the sign.   
 
Councilmember Miller asked if there have been other requests for designated no parking and/or drop off 
zones.  Mr. Dobler said that he has received numerous requests over the years from businesses all over the 
city.  In the downtown area they have not allowed loading and unloading zones.  They may have 
designated 15 minute parking here and there just to keep traffic moving in front of businesses.  He 
confirmed that the loading zone on 4th Street would take up approximately three parking spaces, and the 
15 minute zone on Sherman would probably be extended into two parking spaces. 
 
Terry Cooper, of the Downtown Association, said that ever since the design of McEuen Park, it has been 
taking parking off of 4th Street.  It has really made an impact for fewer customers in that geographic area, 
so anything that could be done to help bring some parking back on 4th Street would be supported by the 
Downtown Association.   
 
Councilmember McEvers stated that it is kind of irritating that we want to change everything after a year 
and a half.  He thinks that increased parking on the other side of the street needs to come back as a 
separate standalone request.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if one of the requested spaces could be used as a valet service.  Mr. Dobler 
responded that it could and there are no requirements against a valet service.  He also noted that if the 
parking spaces aren’t marked, you are not required to put handicapped parking in.  There is an ADA spot 
on Front Avenue.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend council approval of a loading 
zone on 4th Street south of Sherman, and to extend the 15 minute loading zone on Sherman Avenue, 
and direct staff to come back to council with a proposal for all parking options and 
recommendations regarding the rest of the parking south of 4th Street.  Motion carried.   
 
Item 2  Approval of Standard Drawings 
Consent Calendar 
 
Gordon Dobler, Engineering Services Director, presented a request for council approval of various 
standard drawings which have been recently revised. 
 
Mr. Dobler noted in his staff report that the Water and Wastewater departments have reviewed the 
existing drawings and Water has added several more new drawings.  In addition, Engineering revised 
several drawings to address minor housekeeping issues.  There is no cost associated with adopting the 
standards.  There may be a small cost differential to property owners and developers in implementing the 
new standards.  The revisions and additions will result in lower maintenance costs, uniformity, and 
consistency. 
 

Public Works Committee 05/11/15 
 

2 



Mr. Dobler said that the last time the drawings were revised was in 2008.  They have compiled all of the 
changes to bring forward at one time.  Most of the changes are very minor changes, with no major 
changes.   
 
Councilmember Miller said that her concern was the process by which the engineers and contractors 
would get the revisions and if they would have time to tool them into what they are doing this year.  Mr. 
Dobler said that these are policies, not ordinances, which are interpreted for best fit.  The department tries 
not to hold them over people’s heads.   They are integrated on a drawing by drawing basis, and the 
department will notify the engineers and contractors that the drawings having changes and are available 
online.   
 
Mr. Dobler explained that by having everything the same for standard drawings, it creates efficiencies by 
knowing what materials to stock, etc.  He confirmed that there is no conflict with the Idaho Standard 
Public Works Codes.     
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller , seconded by Gookin, to recommend approval of Resolution No. 15-
023 approving the revised standard drawings as requested.  Motion carried.     
 
 
Item 3  Approval of State/Local Agreement for Design of Seltice Way 
Consent Calendar 
 
Gordon Dobler, Engineering Services Director, presented a request for council approval of an agreement 
with ITD for design of Seltice Way, from Huetter Avenue to Northwest Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Dobler stated in his staff report that in 2013, the city applied for a federal grant of $305,000 for the 
design only.  The grant was approved for this fiscal year.  The agreement must be fully executed by both 
parties prior to the end of the month in order to retain the funding.  There is a 7.34% match required, so 
the total match for design is estimated at $22,387.  Staff anticipates that the cost for design will exceed 
the grant amount and, therefore, they have obtained a commitment from LCDC for an additional 
$250,000 this fiscal year.  The total project cost including construction is estimated to be $3,705,000; 
however, this will probably increase once final design is complete.  The city has budgeted the match for 
design this fiscal year.  Although funds for construction are not programmed yet, it is anticipated that they 
will be available in Fiscal Year 2020 or 2021.   
 
Mr. Dobler explained that the agreement is time sensitive and that signing the agreement obligates the 
money.  Councilmember McEvers asked who will have input on the design.  Mr. Dobler said that the 
design is pretty standard and most of it will be reconstructing what is already out there and making the 
street conform to existing code.  Councilmember McEvers asked about the special interests who would 
want a say in what it looks like.  Mr. Dobler said that they have actually had a fair amount of interaction 
already and are on track with bike lanes.  They have had some discussion regarding bike lanes with regard 
to the proposed annexation to the mill site.  He will carry that design forward, but will also come back to 
the Ped/Bike Committee and check in when they have something to show them.   
 
Councilmember Gookin said that he is uncomfortable with the process of having the mayor sign the 
agreement prior to the council voting on it.  Mr. Hammond explained that this has come up quickly 
because of ITD.  There was no forewarning that they needed the agreement by the end of the month.  He 
suggested that council can put this item as an emergency agenda item on the Council’s workshop 
tomorrow.   
 

Public Works Committee 05/11/15 
 

3 



Mr. Dobler said that he would contact ITD in the morning regarding having the agreement to them by the 
middle of next week.  They they aren’t comfortable with that, then they can put it on the agenda for 
tomorrow’s council meeting.   
 
Mr. Dobler confirmed that this is a budgeted item.  Councilmember Miller asked Mr. Dobler to modify 
the staff report to include the reason why this item came up so quickly, and to clarify the numbers.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend that council approve Resolution 
No. 15-024, authorizing the State/Local Agreement with ITD for the design of Seltice Way.  Motion 
carried.   
 
Item 4  Prairie Trail Crossing Bella Terra (formerly Hawks Nest) Subdivision 
Consent Calendar 
 
Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney presented a request for council approval of the development of a 
signalized at-grade crossing of the Prairie Trail at the intersection of Carrington Lane and Hanley Avenue 
in the Bella Terra subdivision. 
 
Mr. Wilson stated in his staff report that on November 4, 2014 the City Council approved a contract with 
Welch-Comer to study the viability of grade separated crossings (either a tunnel or a bridge) at the 
intersection of the Prairie Trail and the future extensions of Hanley Avenue and Carrington Lane as well 
as providing cost estimates for each alternative.  Cost estimates were necessary to enable staff to 
determine the feasibility of obtaining grant funding for the potential development of grade separated 
crossings.  Welch-Comer has now provided its final report and recommends the development of a 
signalized at-grade bike crossing rather than a grade separated crossing because of site topography and 
cost.   Development costs for a signalized at-grade bike crossing would be nominal since much of the cost 
would be the responsibility of the developer in developing the required intersection.  The League of 
American Bicyclists has indicated that a signalized at-grade bike crossing would have the largest impact 
in the city’s goal of becoming a silver level bike friendly community due to its ease of use and sense of 
safety as compared to a grade-separated crossing.  Based on this information and the potential cost, staff 
recommends developing a signalized at-grade bike crossing; however, the Ped/Bike Committee and the 
Centennial Trail Foundation have indicated that the preference of each group is a bridge, tunnel, at-grade 
crossing, in that order. 
 
Mr. Wilson presented a video showing the proposed at-grade crossing signal.  He noted that it is cutting-
edge design.  He explained that staff recommends an at-grade crossing because they have to work around 
water, wastewater, and topography.  The area is exceedingly flat so to get enough grade to go up or down, 
you would have to start way back on the trail, and if there are two spans, you would be doubling the cost.  
They looked at grant opportunities for a grade-separated crossing for funding for the 2018 grant cycle in 
the amount of $500,000, but they would have to compete for that number and would probably have to 
come up with the rest of the money in-house.   
 
Mr. Wilson explained that the at-grade crossing signal could be similar to a signal in Clackamas County, 
Oregon.  No buttons are required to be pushed and a detection loop is used that picks up the bikes, and not 
pedestrians.  The bike lane is on the diagonal so most of the signal is shielded to avoid confusion with 
other drivers.  In addition, there is a “bike” in the light signal.   
 
Mr. Wilson said that their recommendation is to pursue the at-grade crossing as their permanent solution, 
rather than hoping they might get a grant that would only pay for a portion of the grade-separated 
crossing.  The cost would be significantly less for the at-grade crossing, and there are perceived safety 
issues with grade-separated crossings.  The developer is planning on starting construction this summer. 

Public Works Committee 05/11/15 
 

4 



Councilmember Miller asked what is the learning curve for the diagonal crossing.  Mr. Dobler said that 
within two weeks, the bicyclists using the Clackamas County signal had figured it out.  Councilmember 
Miller asked if this at-grade crossing was done and then a couple of years down the road the Centennial 
Trail Foundation came up with the money and wanted to put a bridge crossing in there, could it be done.  
Mr. Wilson said that it could be done but would be difficult once the roads are completed.  He also noted 
that one of the problems with bridges is that there are back yards where the bridge would go so there 
would be a perceived loss of privacy.  He also commented that Chris Bosley, Chairman of the Pedestrian 
and Bicycle Committee, recommends an at-grade crossing.   
 
Mr. Hammond explained that at this point, the council is not obligating any dollars – they are just giving 
guidance to staff which direction they should move in regard to design.  As development grows and at 
some point council wants to put something in to accommodate the trail, this would be the design that 
would be used, and certainly the at-grade crossing makes the most sense from an affordable point of view.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller,  seconded by Gookin, to recommend that Council approval of 
Resolution 15-024 approving the development of a signalized at-grade crossing of the Prairie Trail 
at the intersection of Carrington Lane and Hanley Avenue in the Bella Terra subdivision.  Motion 
carried. 
 
 
Item 5  Property Swap with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association 
Consent Calendar 
 
Warren Wilson, Deputy City Attorney, presented a request to declare the City’s intent to exchange 
property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owners Association and set a public hearing for a proposed swap 
of real property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association. 
 
Mr. Wilson stated in his staff report that the City owns the small triangle of real estate that serves as the 
entrance into the Coeur d’Alene North parking garage.  The property is heavily encumbered with an 
access easement for the Coeur d’Alene North building, a 20’ no-build easement along the eastern property 
line in favor of the abutting property to the east as well as a remnant of the flood protection wall.  The 
City has leased this property to the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association for a term of 25 years.  The 
lease includes a provision that the parties would pursue a trade of this real estate if another parcel of land 
of equivalent value could be located.  The City recently determined that portions of Northwest Boulevard 
along the Coeur d’Alene North frontage is not wholly within City owned right of way.  As such, staff has 
worked with the Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association to prepare the proposed property swap.  
Under the terms of the proposed exchange, the City would obtain a sliver of property along Northwest 
Boulevard to place all of Northwest Boulevard in City owned right of way and a 9 foot wide easement to 
allow for the placement of traffic control devices and signage, utilities and sidewalks.  Additionally, the 
City would retain an easement to maintain the flood protection wall for as long as is necessary.  The 
Coeur d’Alene North Owner’s Association would receive Lot 1, Block 2, Isles of Troy Subdivision and 
$250, which represents the lease payments on the property.  The proposed trade is significant for the City 
because it gives the City complete ownership of Northwest Boulevard in this area.  The proposed land 
exchange requires a public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Gookin asked what a prescriptive easement is and why the city doesn’t have one.  Mr. 
Wilson explained that a prescriptive easement is not self-actuating, but is something that you can go to 
court and argue about.   
 
Councilmember Miller clarified that the lease payment is a one-time payment of $250.00.  Mr. Wilson 
said that it is, and that it was a nominal value lease for a nominal value piece of property.  He also noted 

Public Works Committee 05/11/15 
 

5 



that they anticipate that the flood protection wall may be able to be removed after the dike recertification, 
but for now they will retain an easement.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Miller, to recommend council approval of Resolution 
15-024 declaring the City’s intent to exchange property with the Coeur d’Alene North Owners 
Association and set a public hearing for a proposed swap of real property with the Coeur d’Alene 
North Owners Association.  Motion carried.    
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:08 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Amy C. Ferguson 
Public Works Committee Liaison 

Public Works Committee 05/11/15 
 

6 



 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE  
 STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE: May 11, 2015  
FROM: Gordon Dobler, Engineering Services Director 
SUBJECT: Loading zone for proposed hotel on 4th St.  
  
 
DECISION POINT 
 
For Council to approve or deny the request for a loading zone (15 min parking) on 4th 
Street, south of Sherman Ave, for a proposed hotel 
 
HISTORY 
 
The applicant, Miller-Stauffer Architects, is proposing a hotel on the southeast corner of 
4th and Sherman (see attached).  They contend that a loading zone in front of the hotel, 
on 4th street and on Sherman, is critical to its viability.  They have requested approval of 
physical alterations to the sidewalk on 4th and installation of loading zone (15 min 
parking), as well as extending the 15 min zone on Sherman. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
There would be no fiscal impact to the City.  The developer would be required to bear 
the cost of the physical improvements on 4th street.  Maintenance costs of the signs and 
striping would be minimal. 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant is proposing that the sidewalk on 4th St would be narrowed to 8’ adjacent 
to the proposed loading zone in order to accommodate the road widening.  This would 
require a design departure approval from the Planning Director.  In addition, staff has 
received requests from adjacent businesses for additional on street parking on this 
portion of Front street.  In order to avoid potential repercussions from the adjacent 
business, Council could consider reducing this portion of 4th St to a one lane road and 
adding parking to the west side in conjunction with the proposed loading zone.  Staff 
has reviewed this option and believes that it could be facilitated.   
It is staffs understanding that he Downtown association and the Parking commission 
are aware of this request and generally have no objections. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council may approve or deny the subject request and consider the one lane alternative 
with the addition of parking on the west side of 4th street. 

 





OTHER BUSINESS 



 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
 
May 19, 2015 
 
From:  Bill Greenwood Park & Recreation Superintendent  
 
Subject:  AGREEMENT FOR FOOD CONCESSION AT HARBOR HOUSE 
 
Decision Point:  Approval of the Concession agreement at the Rotary Harbor House with 
Randy and Akiko Folk for 2015 season. 
 
History:  Last season was the first year for concessions only at Rotary Harbor House. 
This year we advertised for an RFP concession to included Beer and Wine sales in a 
specific “Garden Area” that is roped off.    
 
Financial Analysis: The Folks were the only responsive bidder.  The fee for the 2015 
season was $6250; additionally the Folks will pay 5% of all beer and wine sales over 
$50,000.   
 
Performance Analysis:  The food vendor provides a service to the public that we do not 
provide.   It is in a good location that is well known and visible to daily park visitors and 
new visitors. 
 
Decision Point: Approval of the Concession agreement at the Rotary Harbor House with 
Randy and Akiko Folk for 2015 season.  



  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-025 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AUTHORIZING LEASE OF THE ROTARY HARBOR HOUSE CONCESSIONS TO RANDY 
AND AKIKO FOLK DBA TIKI HUT HOSPITALITY. 
 

WHEREAS, staff has recommended that the City of Coeur d'Alene enter into a lease 
agreement with Randy and Akiko Folk dba Tiki Hut Hospitality, a copy of which lease agreement is 
attached hereto marked Exhibit "1" and by reference made a part hereof; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 
citizens thereof to enter into such agreement; NOW, THEREFORE,  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the city 
enter into a lease agreement with Randy and Akiko Folk dba Tiki Hut Hospitality, a copy of which 
lease agreement is attached hereto marked Exhibit "A" and by reference made a part hereof. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City enter into a lease agreement with Randy and 

Akiko Folk dba Tiki Hut Hospitality with the provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City 
Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said lease agreement to the extent the substantive 
provisions of the agreement remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be  and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such Lease Agreement  on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 19th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
 
                                   _____________________________ 
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

Resolution No. 15-025 1 | P a g e  



  
 

 
Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 

resolution.   
 

ROLL CALL: 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS   Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER   Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 
 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 
 

Resolution No. 15-025 2 | P a g e  



 LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this 19th day of May, 2015, between the CITY 
OF COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Idaho, hereinafter called “City,” and RANDY and AKIKO 
FOLK, d/b/a TIKI HUT HOSPITALITY, with its principal place of business at 2019 Crestline 
Drive, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814 hereinafter called “Folks,” 
 
W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

THAT, WHEREAS, Folks have been awarded the contract for a food concession at a 
McEuen Park Harbor House as shown on Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and hereby declared 
and incorporated herein by reference;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED, that for and in consideration of the covenants and 

agreements set forth herein that, Folks shall operate and maintain a food concession at the McEuen 
Park Harbor House (“Harbor House”) according to the terms set forth herein and under the penalties 
expressed herein.  
 
Section 1. Use of Leased Premises:  Folks agree to operate a food and beverage concession at the 
Harbor House for the term of this Agreement. The Harbor House is to be operated for public outdoor 
recreation purposes in compliance with the provisions of the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act 
and implementing guidelines (36 CFR 59).  Folks agree to include in all signage, literature and/or 
advertising that the Harbor House is a City owned public outdoor recreation facility.     
 
Section 2.   Term and Days of Operation:  The term of this Agreement will run through December 
31, 2015.  Folks are required to operate the concession stand daily from 10:00 a.m. until 9:00 p.m. 
until September 7, 2015.  Beginning September 8, 2015 and ending September 30, 2015, Folks may 
close the concession stand at 6:00 p.m.  Folks may elect to open the concession stand between 10:00 
a.m. and 9:00 p.m. at other times during the term of this Agreement.  
 
Section 3. Lease Payment:  Folks will pay the City the sum of Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty 
Dollars ($6,250.00) as payment for use of the leased facility.  Additionally, Folks will pay to the City 
5% of all beer and wine sales, if any, over Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00).  The initial lease 
payment is due to the City upon execution of this Agreement.  Payment for beer and wine sales will 
be due no later than January 15, 2016.  Folks agree to keep and maintain beer and wine sales records 
to document the amount of sales and agrees that the City may audit these records following five (5) 
days’ notice.  
 
Section 4. Health Permit:  Folks agree to obtain a health permit as required by law for the Harbor 
House. The permit must be displayed in a conspicuous place at the leased premises. A copy of the 
health permit is required to be provided to the City Clerk within two (2) weeks of the effective date 
of this Agreement.   

Resolution No. 15-025 1 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



 
Section 5. Food:  Folks may serve all foods within the scope of the health permit. The Folks 
must also offer healthy options as part of the “Let’s Move CDA” as adopted by City Council. See 
Exhibit “B”. The Folks must also display Exhibit “C” on-site during operational hours. 
 
Section 6. Beer and Wine:  Folks may sell beer and wine from the food concession for on-site 
consumption if they obtain all necessary state and local licenses.  All licenses are required to be 
displayed in a conspicuous place.  Beer and wine consumption must be limited to the area depicted 
on the attached Exhibit “A”.  Folks must take reasonable steps to prevent beer and wine from leaving 
the depicted area.  
 
Section 7.  Non-food Items:  Sunscreen will be the only non-food item allowed for sale. Sale of 
any other items must have written approval from the Parks & Recreation Director. 
 
Section 8. Competitive Prices:  Folks agree that the prices charged for all items at the concession 
will be competitive with similar private facilities in the City. 
 
Section 9. Community Relations:  The Folks agree they and their employees will be courteous 
and informed about the community and will assist with questions from tourists and other park users. 
Particularly, Folks must become familiar with the immediate area including North Idaho College, 
Coeur d’Alene Resort, Tubbs Hill, McEuen Park and the Visitors Center. 
 
Section 10. Appropriate Attire:  Folks agree they and their employees must be appropriately 
dressed at all times in either an approved T-shirt or polo shirt with identifying logo and pants or 
shorts extending to mid-thigh.  
 
Section 11. Staffing:  Folks’ food concession must be staffed by at least one employee at all 
times.  Folks will require all employees to comply with the requirements of this Agreement. 
 
Section 12. Refuse:  Folks agree not to dispose of their refuse at a City maintained trash 
receptacles. Refuse must be removed from site and disposed of at Folks’ expense. The Harbor House 
concession and immediately surrounding site must be kept clean at all times. 
 
Section 13. Not Exclusive:  Folks understand and agree that the City from time to time during the 
term of this permit may allow other food and non-food concessions to operate in McEuen Park 
including, but not necessarily limited to, mobile food concessions permitted by bid award, food and 
non-food concessions permitted as a part of any concerts, or any special event in the park including, 
but not limited to, Ales to Trails, Smoke on the Water, the Fourth of July, and sports tournaments. 
 
Section 14. Worker’s Compensation:  Folks agree to maintain worker's compensation coverage on 
all employees during the term of this contract as required by Idaho Code Sections 72-101 through 72-
806. Should Folks fail to maintain such insurance during the entire term hereof, Folks shall 
indemnify the City against any loss resulting to the City from such failure, either by way of 

Resolution No. 15-025 2 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



compensation or additional premium liability. Folks shall furnish to the City, prior to the granting of 
a permit, such evidence as the City may require affirming worker's compensation coverage or in the 
alternative submit an affidavit stating that all employees have worker’s compensation coverage as 
required by Idaho law. 
 
Section 15. Compliance with Civil Rights and Accessibility Laws:  Folks agree to comply with all 
applicable civil rights and accessibility laws (e.g., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act, and the Americans with Disability Act).  Folks will indicate compliance with 
these acts by posting signs in conspicuous locations at the Harbor House and statements in public 
information and brochures, etc. 
 
Section 16. Negligent or Wrongful Act:  Folks agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
City from any and all liability, loss or damage which the City may suffer arising out of, or in 
connection with the negligent or wrongful acts, errors and omissions of Folks, their agents, or 
employees. Folks further agree, at Folks’ cost, to defend the City against all claims arising out of this 
agreement, including any claims resulting from the operation of Folks’ concession or in connection 
with the negligent or wrongful acts, errors and omissions of Folks, their agents or employees. 
 
Section 17. City Ordinances:  Folks shall abide by all applicable City ordinances and regulations.   
 
Section 18. Glass Containers:  Folks agree not to dispense drinks in glass containers. 
 
Section 19. Violation of Regulations:  Folks agree that the City may inspect the Harbor House 
concession area at any time during business hours and may inspect Folks records and sales receipts 
with five (5) day’s to ensure that the provisions of this Agreement are being complied with.  Folks 
understand that any violation of regulations, contract, ordinance, or any evidence of collusion may 
result in criminal prosecution and/or termination of this Agreement, forfeitures of the full 
consideration, and Folks may not be allowed to rebid or resubmit a proposal for a period of three (3) 
years.   
 
Section 20. Non-transferable:  Folks also agree and understand the Harbor House concession site 
cannot be transferred to another vendor without permission of the City. 
 
Section 21. No Truck Parking:  Except for parking in lawfully designated parking spaces, neither 
Folks nor their agent (s) or employees shall park trucks or other vehicles adjacent to the concession 
site for longer than thirty (30) minutes. Failure to comply with this provision shall be considered a 
material breach of this Agreement. 
 
Section 22. Lessor's Option to Terminate Lease:  The Lessor may at any time after ten (10) day's 
written notice terminate this lease, retake possession of the leased space upon payment to the Lessee 
of the prorated, unearned portion of the lease payment.  The notice of the exercise by the Lessor of 
its option to terminate the lease for no cause shall be given in the same manner as notice of 
termination in case of default. 

Resolution No. 15-025 3 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



 
Section 23. Time is of the Essence:  It is understood that time is of the essence and should Folks 
fail to perform all of the covenants herein required of them, the City may declare this Agreement 
forfeited, Folks shall cease operation of the concession at the location, and any monies paid shall be 
pro rated as of the date of forfeiture. However, that before declaring such forfeiture, the City shall 
notify Folks in writing of the particulars in which the City deems Folks to be in default and Folks 
will have three (3) days to remedy the default. 
 
Section 24. Notice:  Any notice including notice of default resulting from failure to perform shall 
be made by placing the written particulars in the United States Mail addressed to Folks at the address 
above, with proper postage affixed. Any notice required herein to be given to City shall be written 
and deemed received by City when personally delivered to the office of the City Clerk, 710 Mullan 
Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814. In lieu of service by mail, a notice of default and/or of 
termination may be served in the manner provided for the service of process under the Idaho Rules of 
Civil Procedure, Rule 5(b). 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Clerk of the CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
have executed this contract on behalf of said City, and Folks have caused the same to be signed, the 
day and year first above written. 
 
CITY:       LESSEE: 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE    RANDY AND AKIKO FOLK 
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO   dba Tiki Hut 
 
 
By:        By:       
         Steve Widmyer, Mayor   Randy Folk 
 
 
       By:       
   Akiko Folk 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
        Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 15-025 4 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



STATE OF IDAHO ) 
 ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this 19TH day of May, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve 
Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of 
the City of Coeur d'Alene and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that said City of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
   
 Notary Public for Idaho 
 Residing at   
 My Commission expires:    
 

 
******************************* 

 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
 ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this ______ day of May, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
Randy Folk whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he 
executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
   
 Notary Public for Idaho 
 Residing at   
 My Commission expires:    
 
 
 

******************************* 
 

Resolution No. 15-025 5 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
 ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this ______ day of May, 2015, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
Akiko Folk whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that she 
executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the 
day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
   
 Notary Public for Idaho 
 Residing at   
 My Commission expires:    
 
 
 
                  

Resolution No. 15-025 6 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 

Resolution No. 15-025 7 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

 
 

Resolution No. 15-025 8 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



EXHIBIT “C” 
 

 

Resolution No. 15-025 9 | P a g e  E X H I B I T  “ 1 ”  



o.
/,

\

) (

o

I

I
II

l"(

I

II

/

IiltIiltiliiIllliilIit
I fr--f--r

\

I

I

I

t
I

{
t

t
I

t

r3.Irir ---:-;- :-r:



 

 COEUR D'ALENE CITY COUNCIL 

 FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

A. INTRODUCTION 

This matter having come before the City Council on, April 21, 2015, and there being present a person 
requesting approval of ITEM A-1-15, a request for zoning prior to annexation from County Industrial to 
City C-17 (Commercial at 17units/acre) zoning district.  

 

APPLICANT: CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE 

 LOCATION:  +/- 9.557 ACRES OF FORMER RAILROAD PROPERTY LYING BETWEEN THE 
EAST END OF MILL RIVER SUBDIVISION AND RIVERSTONE DEVELOPMENT.  

   

B. FINDINGS:   JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS 

RELIED UPON 

 

B1. That the existing land uses are commercial to the north and across Seltice Way and Riverstone 
Development further to the east. Mill River Subdivision to the west. Vacant unincorporated 
property is to the north, and south of a portion of the subject property. 

 
B2. That the Comprehensive Plan Map designation is Transition. 
 
B3. That the zoning is County Industrial. 
 
B4. That the notice of public hearing was published on, April 4, 2015, which fulfills the proper legal 

requirement. 
 
B5. That the notice of public hearing was not required to be posted, which fulfills the proper legal 

requirement.  
 
B6. That 88 notices of public hearing were mailed to all property owners of record within three-

hundred feet of the subject property on April 3, 2015. 
 
B7. That public testimony was heard on April 21, 2015 with no public comments being received. 
 
B8. That this proposal is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan policies as follows:  

 Objective 1.03 – Waterfront Development:  Encourage public and private development to 
incorporate and provide ample public access, both physical and visual, to the lakes and rivers. 

 
 Objective 1.04 – Waterfront Development:  Provide strict protective requirements for all public 

and private waterfront developments. 
 
 Objective 1.11- Community Design:  Employ current design standards for development that pay 

close attention to context, sustainability, urban design, and pedestrian access and usability 
throughout the city. 

 
 Objective 1.12 – Community Design:  Support the enhancement of existing urbanized areas and 

discourage sprawl 
  
 Objective 1.16 – Connectivity:  Promote bicycle and pedestrian connectivity and access between 

neighborhoods, open spaces, park’s and trail systems. 

PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS:  A-1-15          MARCH 10, 2015 Page 1 
 



 
 Objective 2.05 – Pedestrian & Bicycle Environment:  Plan for multiple choices to live, work, and 

recreate within comfortable walking/biking distances. 
 
 Objective 3.05 – Neighborhoods: Protect and preserve existing neighborhoods from 

incompatible land uses and developments. 
 
 Objective 3.13 – Parks:  Support the development, acquisition, and maintenance of property and 

facilities for current and future use, as described in the Parks Master Plan. 
 
 Objective 3.14- Recreation:  Encourage city-sponsored and/or private recreation facilities for 

citizens of all ages.  This includes sports fields and facilities, hiking and biking pathways, open 
space, passive parks, and water access for people and boats. 

 
 This property is located in the Spokane River District that includes a mix of commercial and 

residential properties.  
  
B9. That, based on the staff report, public facilities and utilities are available and adequate for the 

proposed use. 
 

B10. That the physical characteristics of the site do make it suitable for the request at this time 
because the topography is relatively flat and has no significant development constraints. 

 

B11. That the proposal would not adversely affect the surrounding neighborhood with regard to traffic, 
neighborhood character, or existing land uses because the zoning is consistent with the 
surrounding zoning and the surrounding area is currently undeveloped. 

 

C. ORDER:   CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The City Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request of THE CITY OF COEUR 
D’ALENE for zoning prior to annexation, as described in the application should be approved. 
 
Suggested provisions for inclusion in an Annexation Agreement are as follows: 

Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger, to adopt the foregoing Findings and Order. 

 

ROLL CALL: 
 

Council Member  Gookin  Voted  Yes 
Council Member  Edinger  Voted  Yes 
Council Member  Evans   Voted  Yes 
Council Member  McEvers  Voted  Yes 
Council Member  Adams  Voted  Yes 
Council Member  Miller   Voted  Yes          
 
Motion to approve carried by a 6 to 0 vote. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
          MAYOR STEVE WIDMYER 

 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS:  A-1-15          MARCH 10, 2015 Page 2 
 



  
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 15-1008 

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO AND DECLARING TO BE A PART OF THE 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, A +/- 9.557 ACRES OF 
FORMER RAILROAD PROPERTY LYING BETWEEN THE EAST END OF MILL RIVER 
SUBDIVISION AND RIVERSTONE DEVELOPMENT, MORE SPECIFICALLY  
DESCRIBED AS A PORTION OF GOVERNMENT LOT 4 OF SECTION 9, GOVERNMENT 
LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, ALL LOCATED 
IN TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN; ZONING SUCH 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED PROPERTY HEREBY ANNEXED; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES  AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY 
OF THIS ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of 
the City of Coeur d'Alene and the citizens thereof that said property be annexed; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene, 
Kootenai County, Idaho: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the property as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, contiguous and adjacent to the City of Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, 
Idaho, be and the same is hereby annexed to and declared to be a part of the City of Coeur 
d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, and the same is hereby zoned as C-17 (Commercial at 17 
units/acre). 
 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Zoning Act of the City of Coeur d'Alene, known as Ordinance 
No. 1691, Ordinances of the City of Coeur d'Alene, is hereby amended as set forth in the 
preceding section hereof.   
 
 
SECTION 3.  That the Planning Director is hereby instructed  to make such change and 
amendment on the three (3) official  Zoning Maps of the City of Coeur d'Alene. 
 
 
SECTION 4.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
 

Page 1    [A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW] 



  
 

SECTION 5.  After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly 
enacted an Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene at a regular session of the City Council on 
May 19, 2015. 
 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 19th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Page 2    [A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW] 



  
 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ALENE ORDINANCE  NO. ______ 
Annexation A-1-15 – BNSF RAILROAD R.O.W. 

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TO AND DECLARING TO BE A PART OF THE 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, A +/- 9.557 ACRES OF 
FORMER RAILROAD PROPERTY LYING BETWEEN THE EAST END OF MILL RIVER 
SUBDIVISION AND RIVERSTONE DEVELOPMENT, MORE SPECIFICALLY  
DESCRIBED AS PORTION OF GOVERNMENT LOT 4 OF SECTION 9, GOVERNMENT 
LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 10, ALL LOCATED 
IN TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN; ZONING SUCH 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED PROPERTY HEREBY ANNEXED; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH AND 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE 
UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS SUMMARY.  THE FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED 
ORDINANCE NO. ______ IS AVAILABLE AT COEUR D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. 
MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY 
CLERK.   

 
 
             
      Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 1    [A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW] 



  
 

 
 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.  I 
have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ______, Annexation A-1-
15 – BNSF RAILROAD R.O.W., and find it to be a true and complete summary of said 
ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 19th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
                                          
                                  Warren J. Wilson, Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney 
 

Page 2    [A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW] 



Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW



Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW



Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW



DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

DWG NAME:

DATE:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:www.welchcomer.com
350 E. Kathleen Ave.
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815

208-664-9382
 (toll free) 877-815-5672

 (fax) 208-664-5946

41196ANNEX.DWG

1-26-15

41196

TJF

MLH

1' = 600'

MAP FOR
COEUR D'ALENE ANNEXATION

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 9 & 10,
T. 50 N., R. 4 W., B.M.,

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO

Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW









SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

DWG NAME:

DATE:

SHEET NO:

w
w

w
.w

el
ch

co
m

er
.c

om
35

0 
E.

 K
at

hl
ee

n 
Av

e.
Co

eu
r d

'A
le

ne
, I

D 
83

81
5

20
8-

66
4-

93
82

 (t
ol

l f
re

e)
 8

77
-

81
5-

56
72

 (f
ax

) 2
08

-
66

4-
59

46

41196ANNEX.DWG

1-26-15

41196

TJF

MLH

M
A

P
 F

O
R

C
O

E
U

R
 D

'A
L
E

N
E

 A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N

A
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S
 9

 &
 1

0
,

T
. 

5
0

 N
.,

 R
. 

4
 W

.,
 B

.M
.,

K
O

O
T
E

N
A

I 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

, 
ID

A
H

O

1" = 60'

Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW







SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

DWG NAME:

DATE:

SHEET NO:

w
w

w
.w

el
ch

co
m

er
.c

om
35

0 
E.

 K
at

hl
ee

n 
Av

e.
Co

eu
r d

'A
le

ne
, I

D 
83

81
5

20
8-

66
4-

93
82

 (t
ol

l f
re

e)
 8

77
-

81
5-

56
72

 (f
ax

) 2
08

-
66

4-
59

46

41196ANNEX.DWG

1-26-15

41196

TJF

MLH

M
A

P
 F

O
R

C
O

E
U

R
 D

'A
L
E

N
E

 A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N

A
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S
 9

 &
 1

0
,

T
. 

5
0

 N
.,

 R
. 

4
 W

.,
 B

.M
.,

K
O

O
T
E

N
A

I 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

, 
ID

A
H

O

1" = 60'

Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW





DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

DWG NAME:

DATE:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:www.welchcomer.com
350 E. Kathleen Ave.
Coeur d'Alene, ID 83815

208-664-9382
 (toll free) 877-815-5672

 (fax) 208-664-5946

41196ANNEX.DWG

1-26-15

41196

TJF

MLH

1' = 60'

MAP FOR
COEUR D'ALENE ANNEXATION

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 9 & 10,
T.50N., R.4W., B.M.,

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO

Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW



SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

DWG NAME:

DATE:

SHEET NO:

w
w

w
.w

el
ch

co
m

er
.c

om
35

0 
E.

 K
at

hl
ee

n 
Av

e.
Co

eu
r d

'A
le

ne
, I

D 
83

81
5

20
8-

66
4-

93
82

 (t
ol

l f
re

e)
 8

77
-

81
5-

56
72

 (f
ax

) 2
08

-
66

4-
59

46

41196ANNEX.DWG

1-26-15

41196

TJF

MLH

M
A

P
 F

O
R

C
O

E
U

R
 D

'A
L
E

N
E

 A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N

A
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S
 9

 &
 1

0
,

T
. 

5
0

 N
.,

 R
. 

4
 W

.,
 B

.M
.,

K
O

O
T
E

N
A

I 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

, 
ID

A
H

O

1" = 60'

Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW



SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

PROJECT NO.:

DWG NAME:

DATE:

SHEET NO:

w
w

w
.w

el
ch

co
m

er
.c

om
35

0 
E.

 K
at

hl
ee

n 
Av

e.
Co

eu
r d

'A
le

ne
, I

D 
83

81
5

20
8-

66
4-

93
82

 (t
ol

l f
re

e)
 8

77
-

81
5-

56
72

 (f
ax

) 2
08

-
66

4-
59

46

41196ANNEX.DWG

1-26-15

41196

TJF

MLH

M
A

P
 F

O
R

C
O

E
U

R
 D

'A
L
E

N
E

 A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N

A
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S
 9

 &
 1

0
,

T
. 

5
0

 N
.,

 R
. 

4
 W

.,
 B

.M
.,

K
O

O
T
E

N
A

I 
C

O
U

N
T
Y

, 
ID

A
H

O

1" = 60'

Council Bill No. 15-1008 EXHIBIT "A" A-1-15 BNSF Rail Road ROW



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: May 13, 2015  
FROM: Mike Gridley – City Attorney 
SUBJECT: Final Approval of Purchase and Sale Agreement for BNSF Railroad property 

=============================================================== 
DECISION POINT: 
Should the city council give final approval to the purchase of the 2.2 mile long BNSF right of 
way property along the Spokane River in Coeur d’Alene?  
 
HISTORY: 
On July 15, 2014 city council authorized the purchase of the BNSF Railroad property in Coeur 
d’Alene for $2,500,000.  LCDC has agreed to pay $1,483,727 for the land in the River and Lake 
Districts and the City will pay $1,016,273 for the land between the two LCDC districts.  The 
City and LCDC have paid 10% earnest money in the amount of $250,000.  The City’s balance to 
be paid at closing is $914,646.  The date of closing has been extended twice to allow the city and 
LCDC to complete environmental and title due diligence investigations.  The current closing date 
is set for May 28, 2015. 
 
DEQ had funded a Phase 1 environmental analysis on the property that was completed on May 4, 
2015.  The analysis recommended possible further testing depending on the intended use of the 
property.  If further testing is deemed appropriate the City can proceed through the DEQ 
Brownfield program for funding and technical assistance. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The purchase price for the land is $2,500,000. LCDC has agreed to pay $1,483,727 for the land 
in the River and Lake Districts.  The City will pay $1,016,273 for the land between the two 
LCDC districts.  The money to fund the City’s portion of the purchase was previously authorized 
approved by city council and will be repaid with annexation fees from property adjacent to the 
right of way. 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
The acquisition of this railroad property has been discussed for many years and is part of 
the Parks and Trails master plan.  The acquisition will allow for public use and private 
development in an area that is currently under-utilized.  
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the city council give final approval for the purchase of the 2.2 mile BNSF 
Railroad property and also direct the Parks and Recreation Commission to begin the process for 
planning the use of the property.  
 
 
 



INFORMATION SECTION 
Including 

Correspondence 
Board, Commission, Committee Minutes 



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
Treasurer's Report of Cash and Investment Transactions

 BALANCE DISBURSE- BALANCE
    FUND 3/31/2015 RECEIPTS MENTS 4/30/2015

General-Designated $460,102 $2,331 $23,011 $439,422
General-Undesignated 8,469,624      4,293,989      4,682,016       8,081,597    
Special Revenue:
   Library 233,024         72,722           153,506          152,240       
   CDBG (97)                 21,023            (21,120)        
   Cemetery (17,517)          15,139           26,982            (29,360)        
   Parks Capital Improvements 166,271         62,452           54,679            174,044       
   Impact Fees 3,784,676      52,583           3,837,259    
   Annexation Fees 328                328              
   Insurance 1,528             5,858             168,927          (161,541)      
   Cemetery P/C 1,760,185      2,049             1,749              1,760,485    
   Jewett House 43,442           6                    4,702              38,746         
   Reforestation 17,131           157                17,288         
   Street Trees 218,904         8,128             2,170              224,862       
   Community Canopy 2,380             251                2,631           
   CdA Arts Commission 1,540             52                   1,488           
   Public Art Fund 73,275           9                    73,284         
   Public Art Fund - LCDC 376,713         49                  1,200              375,562       
   Public Art Fund - Maintenance 125,313         16                  74                   125,255       
Debt Service:
   2002 & 2006 G.O. Bonds 1,029,616      22,228           1,051,844    
   LID Guarantee 20,414           14,009           34,423         
   LID 130 Lakeside / Ramsey / Industrial Park 48,444           48,444         
   LID 149 4th Street 1,005             1,005           
Capital Projects:
  Street Projects 57,925           221                852,189          (794,043)      
Enterprise:
   Street Lights 85,058           42,191           87,335            39,914         
   Water 59,392           319,781         460,108          (80,935)        
   Water Capitalization Fees 3,444,910      90,072           3,534,982    
   Wastewater 5,544,134      641,053         842,515          5,342,672    
   Wastewater-Reserved 881,045         27,500           908,545       
   WWTP Capitalization Fees 4,860,277      121,108         4,981,385    
   WW Property Mgmt 60,668           60,668         
   Sanitation (181,915)        296,765         295,386          (180,536)      
   Public Parking (227,257)        4,083              (231,340)      
   Drainage 499,064         89,095           249,076          339,083       
   Wastewater Debt Service 1,012,984      130                1,013,114    
Fiduciary Funds:
   Kootenai County Solid Waste Billing 196,834         166,273         196,834          166,273       
   LID Advance Payments 3,238             3,238           
   Police Retirement 1,407,354      17,087           13,427            1,411,014    
   Sales Tax 2,848             4,056             2,848              4,056           
   BID 160,945         3,520             20,000            144,465       
   Homeless Trust Fund 511                482                511                 482              

GRAND TOTAL $34,684,315 $6,371,310 $8,164,403 $32,891,222



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT

SEVEN MONTHS ENDED
April 30, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2015 EXPENDED

Mayor/Council Personnel Services $225,227 $130,462 58%
Services/Supplies 11,800 5,811 49%

Administration Personnel Services 245,263 119,404 49%
Services/Supplies 49,620 47,588 96%

Finance Personnel Services 642,985 370,853 58%
Services/Supplies 92,760 62,074 67%

Municipal Services Personnel Services 1,058,369 586,428 55%
Services/Supplies 479,731 332,286 69%
Capital Outlay 14,500 14,500 100%

Human Resources Personnel Services 203,529 109,267 54%
Services/Supplies 43,400 7,694 18%

Legal Personnel Services 1,377,493 793,574 58%
Services/Supplies 98,853 40,876 41%

Planning Personnel Services 511,938 275,461          54%
Services/Supplies 38,050 14,966 39%

Building Maintenance Personnel Services 320,587 171,926 54%
Services/Supplies 159,515 71,935 45%
Capital Outlay

Police Personnel Services 10,161,453 5,693,113 56%
Services/Supplies 913,287 571,871 63%
Capital Outlay 141,720 87,596 62%

Fire Personnel Services 7,846,872 4,441,920 57%
Services/Supplies 418,836 186,665 45%
Capital Outlay

General Government Services/Supplies 49,150 49,207 100%
Capital Outlay 147,303

Byrne Grant (Federal) Personnel Services
Services/Supplies 11,810
Capital Outlay

COPS Grant Personnel Services 169,690
Services/Supplies

CdA Drug Task Force Services/Supplies 25,710 9,065 35%
Capital Outlay

Streets Personnel Services 1,864,947 1,017,984 55%
Services/Supplies 575,130 364,503 63%
Capital Outlay 75,500 207,719 275%



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT

SEVEN MONTHS ENDED
April 30, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2015 EXPENDED



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT

SEVEN MONTHS ENDED
April 30, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2015 EXPENDED

ADA Sidewalk Abatement Personnel Services 226,757 125,170 55%
Services/Supplies 38,900 (8,354) -21%

Engineering Services Personnel Services 543,375 313,129 58%
Services/Supplies 744,450 463,975 62%
Capital Outlay

Parks Personnel Services 1,302,194 602,822 46%
Services/Supplies 475,250 189,446 40%
Capital Outlay 92,500 97,553 105%

Recreation Personnel Services 627,711 315,280 50%
Services/Supplies 142,130 87,648 62%
Capital Outlay 26,500 15,458 58%

Building Inspection Personnel Services 810,926 472,140 58%
Services/Supplies 31,131 20,042 64%

    Total General Fund 32,877,739 18,638,170 57%

Library Personnel Services 1,077,761 605,481 56%
Services/Supplies 189,350 95,186 50%
Capital Outlay 120,000 63,806 53%

CDBG Services/Supplies 359,966 83,963 23%

Cemetery Personnel Services 145,526 86,905 60%
Services/Supplies 98,664 30,105 31%
Capital Outlay 40,000 39,585 99%

Impact Fees Services/Supplies 194,956 1,385 1%

Annexation Fees Services/Supplies 117,000 117,000 100%

Parks Capital Improvements Capital Outlay 244,000 216,050 89%

Insurance Services/Supplies 420,000 349,795 83%

Cemetery Perpetual Care Services/Supplies 97,500 48,492 50%

Jewett House Services/Supplies 67,089 34,359 51%

Reforestation Services/Supplies 2,000 4,417 221%

Street Trees Services/Supplies 65,000 10,545 16%

Community Canopy Services/Supplies 1,500 1,193 80%

CdA Arts Commission Services/Supplies 6,750 62 1%

Public Art Fund Services/Supplies 210,600 32,420 15%

     Total Special Revenue 3,457,662 1,820,749 53%



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT

SEVEN MONTHS ENDED
April 30, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2015 EXPENDED

Debt Service Fund 1,249,015 177,807 14%



CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE
BUDGET STATUS REPORT

SEVEN MONTHS ENDED
April 30, 2015

FUND OR TYPE OF TOTAL SPENT THRU PERCENT
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE BUDGETED 4/30/2015 EXPENDED

Seltice Way Design Capital Outlay 530,000
Front Avenue Project Capital Outlay 22,385
Govt Way - Hanley to Prairie Capital Outlay 2,300,000 1,674,997 73%
Levee Certification Capital Outlay 362,500         149,206 41%
I-90 Curb Ramps Capital Outlay 65,000
3rd / Harrison signal Capital Outlay
Atlas Road Widening Capital Outlay
Kathleen Ave Widening Capital Outlay

      Total Capital Projects Funds 3,257,500 1,846,588 57%

Street Lights Services/Supplies 535,600         307,358          57%

Water Personnel Services 1,844,726 1,045,969 57%
Services/Supplies 4,196,929 681,390 16%
Capital Outlay 2,284,300 1,068,826 47%

Water Capitalization Fees Services/Supplies 700,000

Wastewater Personnel Services 2,440,897 1,355,826 56%
Services/Supplies 6,527,764 1,372,293 21%
Capital Outlay 3,714,470 1,656,234 45%
Debt Service 2,026,641 532,519 26%

WW Capitalization Services/Supplies 1,913,000

Sanitation Services/Supplies 3,560,334 2,126,926 60%

Public Parking Services/Supplies 220,839 92,144 42%
Capital Outlay

Stormwater Mgmt Personnel Services 133,179 61,192 46%
Services/Supplies 610,930 170,894 28%
Capital Outlay 435,000 256,954 59%

     Total Enterprise Funds 31,144,609 10,728,525 34%

Kootenai County Solid Waste 2,200,000      1,163,823       53%
Police Retirement 183,920 96,710 53%
Business Improvement District 186,000 60,000 32%
Homeless Trust Fund 5,500 2,588 47%

     Total Fiduciary Funds 2,575,420 1,323,121 51%

     TOTALS: $74,561,945 $34,534,960 46%


	Agenda
	Library Presentation
	Minutes 05/04/15
	Minutes 05/05/15
	Minutes 05/12/15
	Req for PH CAPER
	Setting of Public Hearing - Land Exchange w CDA North
	Beer/WineApps
	SR - Condemnation Proceedings Amen Res 15-022
	SR - Standard Drawings 5-15
	Consent Reso 15-024
	SR - state local agreement-Seltice Wy design rev1
	SR - Prairie Trail Crossing
	SR - Coeur d'Alene North Property Swap
	GSMinutes 042715
	SR - Parking Garage Loiter Ordinance
	SR - Legislative Process Repeal
	PWMinutes042715
	SR - Street Dept. Reorg Plan
	Street Dept Reorg Presentation
	PWMinutes051115
	SR - 4th Street Loading Zone
	SR - Harbor House
	A-1-15 Findings and Order
	CB 15-1008
	SR - BNSF Purchase & Sale Agreement
	Information Section



